
EMERGENCY EVACUATION INSTRUCTIONS 

1 If you hear the alarm, leave the building immediately. 
2 Follow the green signs. 
3 Use the stairs not the lifts. 
4 Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 
 

 
If you require further information, please contact: Priya Patel 
Telephone: 01344 352233 
Email: priya.patel@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
Published: 19 January 2016 

  

 

 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

Overview and Scrutiny Commission 
Thursday 28 January 2016, 7.30 pm 
Council Chamber, Fourth Floor, Easthampstead House, Bracknell 

To: OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMISSION 

Councillor Leake (Chairman), Councillor Angell (Vice-Chairman), Councillors Allen, Mrs Angell, 
Mrs Birch, Brossard, Finnie, Harrison, Mrs McCracken, Mrs Mattick, Phillips, Porter and 
Mrs Temperton 

Church Representative Members (Voting in respect of education matters only) 

One Vacancy, (Church of England) 
One Vacancy, (Roman Catholic) 

Parent Governor Representative Members (Voting in respect of education matters only) 

Mr R Briscoe and Mrs L Wellsteed 

cc: Substitute Members of the Commission 

Councillors Dudley, King OBE, Tullett, Thompson and Worrall 

 

ALISON SANDERS 
Director of Corporate Services 
 



 

 

Overview and Scrutiny Commission 
Thursday 28 January 2016, 7.30 pm 
Council Chamber, Fourth Floor, Easthampstead House, 
Bracknell 

Sound recording, photographing, filming and use of social media at meetings which are 
held in public are permitted.  Those wishing to record proceedings at a meeting are 
however advised to contact the Democratic Services Officer named as the contact for 
further information on the front of this agenda as early as possible before the start of 
the meeting so that any special arrangements can be made. 
 
Note:  There will be a private pre-meeting for members of the Commission at 6.45pm 

in the Meeting Room 1, Fourth Floor, Easthampstead House 

AGENDA 
 
 Page No 

1. Apologies for Absence/Substitute Members   

 To receive apologies for absence and to note the attendance of any 
substitute members. 
 

 

2. Minutes and Matters Arising   

 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Commission held on 19 November 2015. 
 

5 - 12 

3. Declarations of Interest and Party Whip   

 Members are requested to declare any disclosable pecuniary or 
affected interest, including the existence and nature of the Party Whip, 
in respect of any matter to be considered at this meeting. 
 
Any Member with a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest or an affected 
interest in a matter should withdraw from the meeting when the matter 
is under consideration and should notify the Democratic Services 
Officer in attendance that they are withdrawing as they have such an 
interest. If the Disclosable Pecuniary Interest is not entered on the 
register of Members interests the Monitoring Officer must be notified of 
the interest within 28 days. 
 

 

4. Urgent Items of Business   

 Any other items which, pursuant to Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, the Chairman decides are urgent. 
 

 

5. Public Participation   

 To receive submissions from members of the public which have been 
submitted in advance in accordance with the Council’s Public 
Participation Scheme for Overview and Scrutiny. 
 
 

 



 

 

6. The Council's Budget Consultation   

 To consider the Council’s draft budget proposals for 2016/17: 
a) Corporate Services Department 
b) Chief Executive’s Office 
c) Feedback from Overview and Scrutiny Panels and overall 
conclusions. 
 

13 - 70 

7. Information and Communications Technology Update   

 To receive a presentation from the Chief Information Officer on the 
work of the ICT Services function, its current priorities and future plans.  
 

 

PERFORMANCE MONITORING 

8. Corporate Performance Overview Report (CPOR) 2015/16   

 To consider the Chief Executive’s Corporate Performance Overview 
Report for the second quarter of 2015/16 (July to September). 
 
The Chairman has asked that any questions arising from the 
report should be referred to the Assistant Chief Executive in 
advance and only raised in the meeting if you consider the issue 
requires wider discussion. 
 

71 - 92 

HOLDING THE EXECUTIVE TO ACCOUNT 

9. Executive Forward Plan   

 Forthcoming items on the Executive Forward Plan of a corporate nature 
are attached for consideration. 
 

93 - 102 

OVERVIEW AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT 

10. Work Programme and Panel Activity Update   

 To note the progress against the Overview and Scrutiny work 
programme for 2015-16, and the reports from Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel Chairmen on each Panel’s progress against the work 
programme. 
 

103 - 108 

11. Overview and Scrutiny Progress Report   

 To note the Bi-Annual Progress Report of the Assistant Chief 
Executive. 
 

109 - 122 

12. Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme and Annual Report   

 To suggest items to be included in the Commission’s Work Programme 
for 2016/17 and to note the process for production of the annual report 
for O&S. 
 

123 - 126 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

10 March 2016. 





Unrestricted 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMISSION 
19 NOVEMBER 2015 
7.30  - 9.15 PM 

  

 
Present: 
Councillors Leake (Chairman), Angell (Vice-Chairman), Mrs Angell, Mrs Birch, Brossard, 
Finnie, Harrison, Mrs McCracken, Mrs Mattick, Phillips and Mrs Temperton and Tullett 
(substitute for Councillor Allen) 
 
Executive Members: 
Councillor Heydon, Executive Member for Transformation and Finance  
Councillor McCracken, Executive Member for Culture, Corporate Services and Public 
Protection   
 
Apologies for absence were received from: 
Councillors Allen and Porter 
Mr R Briscoe and Mrs L Wellsteed (Parent Governor Representatives) 

 
In Attendance: 
Richard Beaumont, Head of Overview and Scrutiny 
Tony Madden, Chief Officer: Human Resources 
Bobby Mulheir, Chief Officer: Customer Services 
Alison Sanders, Director of Corporate Services 
 

28. Minutes and Matters Arising  

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Overview and Scrutiny Commission meeting held 
on 24 September 2015 be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 

29. Declarations of Interest and Party Whip  

Councillor Mrs Birch declared an interest as the spouse of the Executive Member for 
Adult Services, Health and Housing. Councillor Mrs McCracken declared an interest 
as the spouse of the Executive Member for Culture, Corporate Services and Public 
Protection.  

30. Urgent Items of Business  

There were no urgent items of business. 

31. Public Participation  

There were no submissions from members of the public in accordance with the 
Council’s Public Participation Scheme for Overview and Scrutiny. 

32. Human Resources  

The Chief Officer: Human Resources gave a presentation and made the following 
points: 



 

 

 The key activities of the human resources function were; organisational 
development, workforce planning, policy development, employee relations, 
contractual and employment law advice, occupational health and welfare, 
corporate health and safety, learning and development and problem solving. 

 Total employee costs amounted to £164 million (£110 million accounting for 
schools staff). This was the single largest spend for the Council and so it was 
critical that the human resources function was undertaken in a cost effective 
way and provided value for money. 

 The Chief Officer: Human Resources had four officers directly reporting to him 
as well as having professional responsibility for the human resources function 
embedded in the three service departments. There were 33 FTE Human 
Resources officers in total in the Council.  

 The Chief Officer outlined the recent achievements of the human resources 
service, this included implementing 184 redundancies over the past four 
years. The roll out of the e-learning concept, the Good to Great Programme, 
preparing for a new HR/payroll system and developing the use of online forms 
and webpages. In addition, moving the workforce to a more flexible way of 
working, a new digitised appraisal scheme and addressing the issue of lower 
paid workers. 

 Some of the challenges in the future would include; operating under reducing 
financial resources and the need to reduce staffing resources by between 10 
and 15% over the next four years. The transformation programme and the 
senior officer demographic ‘bulge’ and its implications. In addition, the greater 
use of technology, flexible and mobile working, legislative change and looking 
at new ways to resource the workforce. 

 
In response to members’ queries, the Chief Officer reported that; 

 One of the particularly difficult challenges in recent times had been job 
evaluation and equal pay. This had proved to be difficult to tackle and officers 
had spent considerable time providing evidence to show that the Council’s 
pay and grading structure was fair.   

 The transformation programme currently underway would review all support 
services and as a result all management structures could be considered and 
the most cost effective model adopted. 

 The Chief Officer reported that secondments internally and with other local 
authorities were always considered. Currently the civil service were offering 
three fast track graduates at no charge to the Council and this would be 
explored further. 

 The primary comparator for staff sickness rates and turnover were other 
similar sized local authorities, the private sector was considered not to be a 
like for like comparator. 

 Staff were being provided with e-learning opportunities as well as more 
traditional training opportunities. Work had been undertaken to achieve 
greater value for money so that staff still had access to the same level of 
training opportunities. 

 In terms of the senior demographic bulge, given the senior nature of the posts 
there would be plenty of notice that any senior officer wished to retire. In 
addition, implications around access to pensions may encourage officers to 
stay in post longer. 

 
In response to members’ queries, the Director of Corporate Services reported that it 
would be key to keep staff informed and involved throughout the reviews that would 
be taking place as a result of the transformation programme and to assure staff that 



 

there would be no knee jerk reactions, decisions would be planned and considered. 
This would be important to ensure that staff morale was maintained. 
 
The Executive Member reported that given the cost of hiring people was the Council’s 
single largest spend, the human resources function was an important one. In 
particular over the next few years, as the transformation programme was worked 
through the Council, the role of human resources would be critical.  
 
The Chairman thanked the Chief Officer for his informative and interesting 
presentation. He stated that the human resources function was key as it valued 
people. It would be important over the next few years to be open and honest with 
staff and to treat people fairly and with respect and the human resources function 
would play a central role in this. 
 
The Chairman offered his thanks to the Chief Officer on behalf of the Commission 
and personally for all the work that he had undertaken over the years. He stated that 
the services of the Chief Officer had been valued by him personally as well as much 
more widely and wished him well for the future.      

33. Customer Contact  

The Chief Officer: Customer Services gave a presentation and made the following 
points: 
 

 The customer contact strategy was first adopted in 2003, more recently the 
2011-2014 strategy had been extended to 2016. A channel shift strategy had 
been adopted as it presented the most cost effective means of contact with 
the public. The savings gained from website use as opposed to face to face 
or telephone contact were considerable. 

 Key performance indicators included 92% of calls were answered within 20 
seconds, abandoned call rates were under five percent and customer 
satisfaction was over 75%. 

 The Council’s website had experienced 6.3million views in the last year, 
providing strong evidence that this was the method that customers preferred 
to contact the Council in most instances. The Chief Officer had responded to 
this by reducing Customer Service staff and increasing website staff, who 
were now well established in the overall team. 

 The benefits of the CRM system included that customers could manage their 
own accounts and track progress themselves. It enabled a customised 
service, provided visibility and reduced avoidable contact. 7,500 customers 
had now set up an account. 

 At present the CRM system could accommodate customer online accounts, 
allow integration with Highway services and Capita to take payments. In 
addition, diary bookings. 

 The next tranche of services to be integrated into the CRM system were 
Registrars, Electoral, Council Tax, Licensing, Pest Control, Environmental 
Health and the E+ card. 

 The Chief Officer reported that it was crucial to understand customer journeys 
and to structure the website around that. Website redevelopment would be 
continual and respond to customer preferences and developments in 
technology. 

 
The Chairman commended the improvements which had been achieved. In response 
to members’ queries, the Chief Officer made the following points: 



 

 The Chief Officer reported that a major project had recently been undertaken 
across the Council to map data flows of anyone taking payments, to ensure 
there was an understanding of exactly where encrypted data was being held. 
Suppliers including Capita had assured officers that data was being held 
within the EU and was very securely held. In addition, Capita would be 
imminently upgrading their level of security of encrypted data and a recent 
internal audit report had concluded there was ‘significant assurance’ over the 
security of web transactions.  Members requested that the Chief Officer 
provide a brief explanation of what each level of security meant. 

 The Chief Officer reported that whilst there were peaks and troughs 
throughout the year in the workload of the customer services team, it was not 
efficient to staff to peak levels and as a result staffing was maintained at an 
average level. Changes in weather and school admissions often led to peaks 
to customer contact. Peaks were managed by carefully managing staff leave 
and ensuring that staff worked to strict rules. It took six months to train 
customer services staff, given the wide range of calls they would be 
expected to deal with and as a result temporary staff could not be deployed. 

 A call back service was hoped to be used in the future, to be offered to 
customers who were waiting more than 30 seconds, it was recognised that 
this would need to be managed and implemented carefully.  

 
The Executive Member and Chairman thanked the Chief Officer: Customer Services 
for her informative presentation and was pleased to see the close working 
relationship between customer services and ICT services.  

34. Complaints Against the Council in 2014/15  

The Head of Overview and Scrutiny reported that the number of complaints lodged at 
stage two and above had fallen by 25% in 2014/15. He also highlighted the changes 
in the Local Government Ombudsman’s treatment of complaints and that the 
Corporate Complaints Procedure had been streamlined from four stages to three as 
detailed in paragraph 5.22 of the report. 
 
The Commission noted the report. 

35. Quarterly Service Reports (QSRs) 2015/16  

Corporate Services Quarterly Service Report: 
In response to members’ queries, the Director of Corporate Services agreed to 
confirm arrangements for informing Members about schools becoming academies, in 
particularly St Margaret Clitherow RC as many members’ were unaware of this. 
 
It was noted that the Catholic Diocese had taken a decision that all its schools should 
become academies.   
 
The Director of Corporate Services reported that a social landlord was being sought 
for the disposal of East Lodge following the withdrawal of Radian Housing 
Association’s offer. Planning permission had already been tested, making East Lodge 
an attractive proposition. The relevant Executive Member’s approval would be sought 
to go forward with seeking another social landlord. 
 
The Commission noted the Chief Executive’s Office Quarterly Service Report.  

36. Executive Forward Plan  



 

The Commission noted the forthcoming items on the Executive Forward Plan of a 
corporate nature. 

37. Work Programme and Panel Activity Update  

The Commission noted the progress against the Overview and Scrutiny work 
programme 2015-16 and the reports from Overview and Scrutiny Panel Chairmen on 
each Panel’s progress against the work programme. 
 
The Chairman of the Adult Social Care O&S Panel reported that good progress was 
being made by the Panel. The Panel had met in September and looked at the 
Safeguarding Adults Annual Report. The Panel had also looked at deferred payments 
and the way in which payments would be claimed from clients after death and how 
this was managed. The Panel had also considered the Council’s Homelessness 
Policy. 
 
 
 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 





INFORMATION REQUESTED: OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMISSION 
MEETING – 19 NOVEMBER 2015 
 
 

Agenda Item 
 

Information Requested Response 

7. Customer 
Contact 

To provide a summary of 
the safeguards for 
people making 
payments via the 
Council’s website 

Customers’ card details are directly 
processed by the Payment Management 
Division of Capita Software Services, a 
leading provider of secure online payment 
services to local government, and are not 
collected nor accessible by the Council.  
All online card payments are protected by 
a Secure Socket Layer (SSL) with an 
encryption key length of 128 bits, which is 
the highest level commercially available.  
 
Capita Software Services’ online payment 
management solutions are independently 
and rigorously security assessed, and are 
certified by Visa and MasterCard as a 
Payment Card Industry Data Security 
Standard (PCI DSS) Level 1 payment 
processor.   
 

8. Quarterly 
Service 
Report – 
Corporate 
Services 
Department 

To confirm 
arrangements for 
informing Members 
about schools becoming 
academies. 

The Director, Children, Young People & 
Learning has advised that, in future, if a 
school becomes an academy officers will 
circulate a note advising Members of the 
situation at the point of conversion. 

 





Unrestricted 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMISSION 
28 JANUARY 2016 
 _________________________________________________________________________  

 
DRAFT BUDGET PROPOSALS 2016/17  

CORPORATE SERVICES, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S OFFICE & COUNCIL WIDE 
(Borough Treasurer) 

 

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT  

1.1 The Executive agreed the Council’s draft budget proposals for 2016/17 at its meeting 
on 15 December 2015 as the basis for consultation with the Overview and Scrutiny 
Commission, Overview and Scrutiny Panels and other interested parties.  The 
Executive will consider all representations made at its meeting on 9 February 2016, 
before recommending the budget to Council. 

2 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 That the Overview and Scrutiny Commission comment on the Corporate 
Services, Chief Executive’s Office and Council Wide draft budget proposals for 
2016/17. 

3 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

3.1 Attached to this report are extracts from the 2016/17 Revenue Budget and Capital 
Programme reports relating to Corporate Services and the Chief Executive’s Office, 
together with the Council Wide elements of the budget proposals.  These extracts are 
for information and background to assist consideration of the Council’s draft budget 
proposals and comprise: 

 

 Revenue Budget Report 
 

 Commitment Budget 
 

 Draft Revenue Budget Pressures 
 

 Draft Revenue Budget Savings Proposals 
 

 Proposed Fees and Charges  
 

 Capital Programme Report and Summary 
 

 Proposed Capital Schemes 
 

The full 2016/17 Revenue Budget and Capital Programme reports are available on 
the Council’s public website as part of the wider budget consultation 
(http://consult.bracknell-forest.gov.uk/portal).  
 
 

 

http://consult.bracknell-forest.gov.uk/portal


Unrestricted 

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED/ ADVICE RECEIVED FROM STATUTORY AND 
OTHER OFFICERS/ EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT/ STRATEGIC RISK 
MANAGEMENT ISSUES / OTHER OFFICERS/ CONSULTATION – Not applicable 

Background Papers 
None 
 
Contacts for further information 
 
Alan Nash: 01344 352180 
Alan.nash@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
 
Arthur Parker – 01344 352158 
Arthur.parker@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
 

mailto:Alan.nash@bracknell-forest.gov.uk
mailto:Arthur.parker@bracknell-forest.gov.uk


Unrestricted 
  

(ITEM  ) 
TO: THE EXECUTIVE 
DATE: 15 DECEMBER 2015 
 

 
GENERAL FUND REVENUE BUDGET 2016/17 

(Chief Executive/Borough Treasurer) 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 Under the Council’s constitution, the Executive is required to consult on its detailed 

budget proposals with the Council’s Overview & Scrutiny Commission and any other 
interested parties or individuals for a period of at least six weeks.  This report 
summarises the current position on the Council’s budget preparations for 2016/17. 

   
1.2 At the time the Executive agenda was published the Provisional Local Government 

Financial Settlement had not been announced and is not expected until late 
December 2015. Therefore, in the absence of the Provisional Settlement, the report is 
based on a number of assumptions regarding government funding.   

 
1.3 All comments received on these budget proposals will be submitted to the Executive 

on 9 February along with details of the final Financial Settlement.  This will allow the 
Executive to determine its final budget package and recommend the appropriate 
Council Tax level to Council, who will formally approve the 2016/17 budget and 
Council Tax on 24 February 2016. 

 
2 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 That the Executive: 
 
2.1 Agree the draft budget proposals for 2016/17 as the basis for consultation with 

the Overview & Scrutiny Commission and other interested parties or 
individuals. 

 
2.2 Agree the Treasury Management Strategy and associated documents at Annexe 

E and request that the Governance and Audit Committee review each of the key 
elements. 

 
2.3 Agree that the 2016/17 Schools Budget be set at the eventual level of grant 

income plus any accumulated balances, with the Executive Member for 
Children, Young People and Learning authorised to make amendments and 
agree budgets for schools and services centrally managed by the Council. 

 
2.4 Approve the virements relating to the 2015/16 budget as set out in Annexes F 

and G and recommend those that are over £0.100m for approval by Council. 
 
3 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 The recommendations are designed to allow the Executive to consult on its draft 

budget proposals for 2016/17 as required by the Local Government Act 2003. 
 
4 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
4.1 The range of options being considered is included in the report and its Annexes. 



Unrestricted 
  

 
SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 
5 INTRODUCTION 

5.1 Following the national elections in May 2015, the overriding message from 
Government has been extremely clear. The priority is to eliminate the deficit and 
reduce the national debt. This is to be achieved through a continuation of austerity 
measures, with the focus principally on reducing public expenditure. The Chancellor of 
the Exchequer announced the plans in his Spending Review on the 25th November 
2015. The Spending Review determines how the Government will spend public 
money over the course of this Parliament by setting budgets for each central 
department. The level of detail provided will not enable individual councils to identify 
their exact funding for 2016/17 but this will become clear once the Provisional Local 
Government Finance Settlement (LGFS) is published in late December. 

5.2 Core central government funding to local government, comprising Business Rates and 
Revenue Support Grant, will fall by 24% in real terms over the period to 2019/20, 
however this masks a larger reduction of £6.1bn or 53% in cash funding between 
2015/16 (£11.5bn) and 2019/20 (£5.4bn). In recognition of the funding pressures 
faced by local government however, the Chancellor announced a further £1.5bn to be 
added to the Better Care Fund over the period alongside the introduction of a “Social 
Care Precept” enabling authorities to levy an additional 2% increase in Council Tax 
over and above the threshold (above which a referendum is required) that is set each 
year. Further announcements included a 3.9% cut in the ring-fenced Public Health 
Grant, a £600m cut in the Education Services Grant and a reform of the New Homes 
Bonus. 

5.3 The implications of the above for Bracknell Forest will become apparent when the 
Department for Communities and Local Government publishes the Provisional LGFS 
in December, however the assumptions included in this report remain valid based on 
the information that is currently available following the Chancellor’s announcements. 

5.4 In response to this challenging financial climate a new Council Plan covering the 
period 2015 to 2019 has been adopted. Underpinning the Plan is a new narrative or 
philosophy for the organisation which contains the following key messages: 

• many residents are affluent, well educated and independent. The Council 
wants to continue to support that by providing core services that all residents 
can benefit from 

• but we recognise that we need to prioritise if we are to live within our means, 
and that will mean making difficult decisions 

• we will prioritise people and areas with the greatest need and provide early 
help and prevention so struggling or vulnerable people can maximise their 
opportunities to become independent. 

5.4 Future Council budgets will reflect both the national context within which local 
government operates and specifically the Council’s new narrative. 2016/17 is the first 
of those budgets. 

6 COMMITMENT BUDGET 2016/17 – 2020/21 
 
6.1 Initial preparations for the 2016/17 budget have focussed on the Council’s 

Commitment Budget for 2016/17 – 2020/21.  This brings together the Council’s 



Unrestricted 
  

existing expenditure plans, taking account of approved commitments and the ongoing 
effects of service developments and efficiencies that were agreed when the 2015/16 
budget was set.   

 
6.2 A number of changes are proposed to the Commitment Budget since it was last 

considered by the Executive in September and are reflected in the summary in Table 
1.  The most significant are set out below:  

 
• The inclusion of recruitment and retention proposals for Children’s’ Social Care 

approved by the Executive on the 21 July (£1.118m). 
• The projection for the Minimum Revenue Provision now incorporates the latest 

forecast for capital spend and receipts (£0.064m).  
• The departmental saving resulting from the Street Lighting Invest to Save 

Scheme has been included, following the supplementary capital estimate 
being approved by Council on 25 November (-£0.175m). 

• Reductions in Bed and Breakfast accommodation costs and Home to School 
Transport costs resulting from the purchase of Tenterden Lodge have been 
added (-£0.182m). 

• Updated Waste Disposal projections based on the latest tonnages and 
recycling data (£0.179m). 

• Interest on external borrowing required to finance the construction of Binfield 
Learning Village (£0.075m). 

 
The overall impact of these changes is to increase the Council’s Commitment Budget 
by £1.032m compared to the position reported in September. 

 
6.3 Taking account of these changes, Table 1 summarises the position and shows that 

base expenditure (excluding schools) is planned to increase by £1.556m to 
£80.735m next year, before consideration is given to allowances for inflation and the 
budget proposals identified by individual Departments in 2016/17.  The commitment 
budget is shown in more detail in Annexe A. 

 
 
 Table 1: Summary Commitment Budget 2016/17-2020/21 
 

 Planned Expenditure 

 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 
 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Base Budget 79,179 80,735 81,946 82,978 83,883 
      

Movements in Year:      
Adult Social Care, Health and Housing -152 0 0 0 0 
Children, Young People and Learning 
(excluding schools) 

1,088 36 10 -10 -10 

Corporate Services / Chief Executive’s 
Office  

-159 -44 29 51 29 

Environment, Culture & Communities 42 -376 184 152 226 
Non Departmental / Council Wide 737 1,595 809 712 400 
Total Movements 1,556 1,211 1,032 905 645 
      
Adjusted Base 80,735 81,946 82,978 83,883 84,528 

 
 



Unrestricted 
  

7 SPENDING REVIEW 2015 AND PROVISIONAL LOCAL GOVERNMENT FINANCE 
SETTLEMENT 2016/17 

 
7.1 Following the General Election in May 2015, the Government announced a Spending 

Review to be concluded and published on 25 November 2015. The Spending Review 
was duly delivered by the Chancellor of the Exchequer and provided a high-level 
overview of the Government’s spending totals over the next 4 years to 2019/20. 
Although there has been some improvement in public finances, the headline news 
was that Local Government will see a more than 50% reduction in central 
government support over the next 4 years. This, in part, relates to the forthcoming 
review of Business Rates where the Government plans to remove all central 
government support through the Revenue Support Grant (RSG) by 2019/20. This 
reduction in Government support will undoubtedly place substantial financial pressure 
on all councils with total local government spending expected to remain at 2015/16 
levels by 2019/20.  

 
7.2 On a more positive note, the Government also announced it will allow councils with 

social care responsibilities to increase Council Tax income by 2%, in the form of a 
“social care precept”, with the criteria that it is spent fully on relieving Adult Social 
Care pressures. This is understood to be in addition to the 2% threshold that 
currently exists before a referendum must be called for a Council Tax rise. Further 
details will be announced in December. In addition, a further £1.5bn of funding will be 
earmarked and ring-fenced for the Better Care Fund by 2019/20, although it is not yet 
clear where this funding has been found from. 

 
7.3 The Government will also protect the schools budget in real terms, enabling a per 

pupil protection for the Dedicated Schools Grant and the pupil premium. However, 
this will involve making around £600 million savings from the Education Services 
Grant (ESG) and supporting schools to realise efficiencies, including phasing out the 
additional funding schools receive through the ESG. The government will reduce the 
local authority role in running schools and remove a number of statutory duties. 
 

7.4 Consultations on the following areas were also announced as part of the Spending 
Review: 
 

• Changes to the local government finance system to pave the way for the 
implementation of 100% Business Rates retention and to rebalance support 
to those councils with Social Care responsibilities; 

 
• Options to fully fund Public Health from retained Business Rates receipts as 

part of the move towards 100% Business Rates retention; 
 

• A national funding formula for schools, high needs and early year, which will 
be introduced in 2017/18.  

 
7.5 Other announcements which are likely to impact on the Council included the following. 
 

• Extension of the doubling of small Business Rates relief until April 2017. 
• Councils will have the flexibility to spend capital receipts (excluding Right to 

Buy receipts) from asset sales on the revenue costs of reform projects. 
• An apprentice levy will be introduced in April 2017 at the rate of 0.5% of an 

employer’s pay bill. 
• Additional capital funds for infrastructure and schools. 

 



Unrestricted 
  

7.6 As with past Spending Reviews, the information is provided at a Government 
Department level and is of limited value in terms of identifying the impact on 
Bracknell Forest as an individual council. Some of this detail will be provided as part 
of the provisional LGFS which is expected to be announced in mid to late December. 
Even then, however, uncertainties will exist due to the consultations referred to in 
paragraph 7.4    

 
7.7 Funding from central government is currently received through RSG and Specific 

Grants. For planning purposes an estimate of the reduction in central government 
support has been incorporated within these Budget Projections reflecting a further cut 
of £3.0m in RSG for 2016/17. For the remaining period of the Commitment Budget, a 
reduction of 6% per annum in overall government support has been assumed. This 
would amount to an overall reduction over the next five years of a real terms cut of 
30%. These figures will be refined when the provisional LGFS is received. As details 
are still awaited on the phasing out of RSG by 2020 (as the retention of Business 
Rates is increased), this has not been incorporated into the budget proposals. 
Further information on the potential impact is included in paragraph 7.10.  

 
7.8 The Council also receives substantial external funding through a number of specific 

grants for which the following assumptions have been included within the latest 
budget projections. 

 
a) New Homes Bonus 
 

This non-ringfenced grant is designed to reward and encourage development of 
new properties in local communities and will generate -£3.290m for the Council 
in 2015/16. An increase of £0.600m has been incorporated at this stage of the 
budget process, bringing the total level of budget support to -£3.890m. The 
funding mechanism was initially designed to deliver a rolling 6-year’s worth of 
funding and with the scheme starting in 2011/12, that years funding will fall out 
in 2017/18. The Government will be consulting on reforms to the New Homes 
Bonus, including the means of sharpening the incentive to reward communities 
for additional homes and reducing the length of payments from 6 years to 4 
years. This will include a preferred option for savings of at least £800 million, 
which will be used to fund social care. This would result in income tapering off at 
a faster rate than currently forecast. 
 

b) Other Specific Grants 
 

Some of the largest specific grants received by the Council are the ring-fenced 
Public Health, NHS funding streams and Better Care Fund, totalling over -£11m 
in 2015/16. The Government has confirmed that the ring-fence on Public Health 
spending will be maintained in 2016/17 and 2017/18 and that a 3.9% cut in 
funding will be required. The Government will also consult on options to fully 
fund Public Health spending from retained Business Rates receipts, as part of 
the move towards 100% Business Rates retention. The Spending Review also 
refers to additional social care funds being made available to local government 
from 2017/18, rising to £1.5 billion by 2019/20 and to be included as part of an 
improved Better Care Fund. 
 
It has been assumed that these funding streams will be used to support services 
and initiatives within the health and social care area and as such are financially 
neutral for planning purposes at this stage in the budget cycle.  

  



Unrestricted 
  

7.9 A third important stream of income for the Council is Business Rates, a proportion of 
which is retained locally following the introduction of the Business Rates Retention 
reforms in April 2013. The level of Business Rates change each year due to 
inflationary increases (set by central government) and local growth or decline as local 
businesses and economic conditions expand or contract. The Government sets a 
baseline level of funding against which any growth or reduction is shared between 
local and central government.  

 
7.10 The Government has announced that by 2020, local government will be able to retain 

100% of Business Rates, RSG will be phased out and local government will be 
expected to take on new responsibilities. The government will abolish the Uniform 
Business Rate and give councils the power to cut Business Rates to boost economic 
activity in their areas.  The Department for Communities and Local Government will 
consult on changes to the local government finance system to pave the way for the 
implementation of the 100% Business Rates retention. Currently the Council collects 
significantly more Business Rates than it is allowed to keep (although presumably a 
baseline will need to be established under the new arrangements) and only receives 
approximately a quarter of any Business Rates growth. However, until the finer 
details of the scheme are announced, any potential benefits need to be viewed with 
caution bearing in mind the need to take on new responsibilities, the overall deficit 
reduction programme and the increased exposure to volatility from appeals and 
business movements that will arise as a consequence.  

 
7.11 During 2013/14 a large multi-national company transferred on to the Council’s 

valuation list which materially increased the level of Business Rates collected locally. 
The 2015/16 base-budget was supported by an on-going transfer of £3m from this 
additional income on top of a one-off transfer of £3.988m from accumulated surpluses 
held in the Business Rates Equalisation Reserve. This company has successfully 
appealed against the rateable value of its business and details are awaited on the 
impact of the appeal from the Valuation Office. The timing of this information is 
uncertain but for the budget projections it has been assumed that a 50% reduction in 
rateable value will result from the appeal. A significant deficit is now projected on the 
Business Rates element of the Collection Fund as a result and ongoing income will 
also be reduced if this level of reduction is confirmed. Assuming baseline funding is 
increased by September RPI and taking into account known changes in section 31 
income and local circumstances, the budget projections assume overall income of        
-£17.986m. This projection is subject to change and will be revised when the 
provisional LGFS is received, the annual Business Rates forecast is completed in 
January and any appeal notifications are received. There is a risk associated with 
these projections due to the impact of the outstanding appeals, the Town Centre 
regeneration and changes in the local economic conditions; however officers monitor 
total yield, revaluations, changes-in-circumstances, appeals and refunds on a monthly 
basis.  

 
8 COLLECTION FUND 

 
8.1 Following the acceptance of Council Tax Freeze Grant and the resultant zero 

increase for the last five years, Council Tax at present levels will generate total 
income of -£46.706m in 2016/17.  The Local Council Tax Benefit Support Scheme is 
treated as a discount i.e. a reduction in the calculation of the Council Tax Base. The 
latest information on the take-up of Council Tax support indicates that it will be 
significantly less than that budgeted for in 2015/16. Based on the latest forecast, 
Council Tax income will increase by £0.345m as a result in 2016/17. If the proposed 
changes to the Scheme, which are included elsewhere on the agenda, are approved 
this will increase Council Tax income by a further £0.302m.  An increase in the Tax 



Unrestricted 
  

Base arising from the occupation of new properties during 2016/17 is expected to 
contribute an additional £0.655m.  Based on these provisional figures, Council Tax 
income is therefore expected to be -£48.008m for 2016/17. These figures will be 
updated when the Council Tax Base is finalised during December.  

 
8.2 The Spending Review made no reference to Council Tax Freeze Grant and it has 

been assumed that the existing funding received by the Council up to 2015/16 will be 
maintained, but that there will be no new support going forward. 

 
8.3 The Government limits Council Tax increases by requiring councils to hold a local 

referendum for any increases in excess of a threshold percentage which is normally 
included in the final Local Government Financial Settlement. No guidance is therefore 
currently available for 2016/17 but in 2015/16 a referendum was required for Council 
Tax increases of 2% or more. A 2% increase in Council Tax would generate 
approximately -£1m of additional income. As a council with Social Care 
responsibilities, it will now also be possible for Council Tax to be raised by a further 
2% to support Social Care pressures. 

 
8.4 A surplus will be generated on the Council Tax element of the Collection Fund in the 

current year, primarily due to a lower than expected take up of the Local Council Tax 
Benefit Support Scheme. The Council’s share of this surplus, which can be used to 
support the 2016/17 budget, is estimated to be -£0.425m.  

 
8.5 A deficit is expected to be generated on the Business Rates element of the Collection 

Fund and the Council’s share is estimated to be £10.516m. This deficit will be funded 
from a one-off transfer out of the Business Rate Equalisation Reserve. 

 
8.6  The Executive at its meeting in February will recommend to Council the level of 

Council Tax in light of the Final Settlement, the results of the consultation and the 
final budget proposals. 

 
9 BUDGET PROPOSALS 2016/17 
 

Service Pressures and Developments 
 

9.1 In the face of significant reductions in public expenditure in general and in grants to 
Local Government in particular the scope to invest in new service provision is self 
evidently severely restricted.  Nevertheless, it is important to retain a clear focus to 
ensure that the Council continues to deliver the Council’s six strategic themes.  In 
preparing the 2016/17 draft budget proposals each department has evaluated the 
potential pressures on its services and these are set out in Annexe B. Table 2 
summarises the pressures by department. 

  
  

Table 2: Service Pressures/Development 
 

Department £’000 
Adult Social Care, Health and Housing 708 
Children, Young People and Learning (excluding schools) 246 
Corporate Services / Chief Executive’s Office 291 
Environment, Culture & Communities 263 
Non Departmental / Council Wide 841 
Total Pressures/Developments 2,349 

 
  



Unrestricted 
  

9.2 Many of the pressures are simply unavoidable as they relate to demographic trends, 
changes in funding and new legislation.  They do, however, also support the six 
strategic themes included in the new Council Plan in the following way: 

  
• A strong and resilient economy (0151.m) 
• people have the life skills and education opportunities they need to thrive 

(£0.100m); 
• people live active and healthy lifestyles (£0.614m); 
• a clean, green, growing and sustainable place (0.099m); 
• strong, safe, supportive and self-reliant communities (£0.260m); 

 
9.3 Service pressures will be kept under review throughout the budget consultation 

period. There is always the risk in Social Care in particular, that the numbers of 
people requiring care packages, the content of existing care packages and contract 
inflation will vary considerably from the assumptions included in these draft budget 
proposals. Any revisions to service pressures will be reported to the Executive in 
February. 
 

9.4 In addition to these revenue proposals the Council continues to invest in its priorities 
through targeted capital expenditure. A substantial investment in the long term future 
of the Borough is planned, to secure the delivery of regeneration in Bracknell town 
centre, to ensure that there are sufficient school places for our children and young 
people, and to protect and enhance the Borough’s outstanding leisure offer.  Details 
of these major investments are contained in the capital programme report, but the 
cost of funding all potential commitments arising from these various proposals is 
included in these draft budget proposals. 
 
Service Economies /Balancing the Budget 

 
9.5 Members and officers have held regular meetings to determine options for savings 

and a list of potential draft budget savings has been developed. This list totals             
-£3.687m and is attached at Annexe C and summarised in Table 3. As in previous 
years, these economies focus as far as possible on central and departmental support 
rather than on front-line services. However, since it became a Unitary Authority the 
Council has successfully delivered savings of around £65m in total. Against this 
background of continually bearing down on costs and driving to improve efficiency it is 
becoming increasingly difficult to find further savings in these areas, which would not 
compromise the Council’s ability to function effectively.  Additional economies 
identified by Adult Social Care, Health and Housing that result from changes to the 
Local Council Tax Benefit Support Scheme have now been incorporated into the 
Council Tax calculation as outlined in paragraph 8.1. 

 
 
Table 3: Summary Service Economies  

 
Department £’000 
Adult Social Care, Health and Housing -710 
Children, Young People and Learning (excluding schools) -714 
Corporate Services / Chief Executive’s Office -756 
Environment, Culture & Communities -1,161 
Non Departmental / Council Wide -346 
Total Savings -3,687 

 
 



Unrestricted 
  

Significant Budget Decisions 
 
9.6 Consideration and approval of the budget is a major policy decision.  However, the 

budget, by its nature, includes a range of proposals, some of which in themselves 
represent important policy decisions.  More details on each of the proposals are 
included in Annexe C. 
 

9.7 As the budget report is a policy document and is subject to at least six weeks 
consultation, the identification of these issues within the budget report facilitates 
detailed consultation on a range of significant policy decisions. 

 
Council Wide Issues 

 
9.8 Apart from the specific departmental budget proposals contained in Annexes B and C 

there are some Council wide issues affecting all departments’ budgets which need to 
be considered. The precise impact of these corporate budgets is likely to change 
before the final budget proposals are recommended, however the current view on 
these issues is outlined in the following paragraphs. 
 
a) Capital Programme 

 
 As outlined above, the scale of the Council’s Capital Programme for 2016/17 

will impact upon the revenue budget and will itself be subject to consultation 
over the coming weeks. All new spending on services will need to be funded 
from new capital receipts, government grants, developer contributions or 
borrowing. The proposed Council Funded Capital Programme of £51.387m 
and externally funded programme of £17.498m for 2016/17 features in a 
separate report on tonight’s agenda. After allowing for projected receipts of 
approximately £5m in 2016/17 and carry forwards, the additional revenue 
costs will be £0.041m in 2016/17 and £0.971m in 2017/18. These figures 
include on-going costs associated with the maintenance and support of IT 
capital purchases. 

 
b) Interest and Investments 

 
Investment returns are likely to remain relatively low during 2016/17 and for some 
time to come compared to historic averages rates. The Bank of England in its 
latest Inflation Report (November 2015) forecast the Bank Rate to remain 
unchanged at 0.5% during the next nine months before starting to rise in the last 
months of 2016. With inflation low and predicted to stay low for the next 12 
months, the decision to raise rates by the Bank of England will be a dificult one 
with risks coming from concerns on declining global trade and geo-political 
tensions. Given the Council’s approach to managing risk and keeping investments 
limited to a maximum of 6 months maturity with the exception of the part-
nationalised UK Banks, the opportunity to achieve rates in excess of the Bank Rate 
is limited. 

The 2016/17 budget is therefore based on an average rate of return of 
approximately 0.5% on its investments and reflects the lower cash balances as 
a result of the proposed 2016/17 Capital Programme. This programme is 
substantially larger than any previous plans and includes some major long-
term projects (Binfield Learning Village, Local Housing Company, Street 
Lighting Replacement) that will span a number of years and which are reliant 
on a range of complex factors including agreements with partners, planning 
approvals and other issues outside of the control of the Council. The timing of 



Unrestricted 
  

the cash-flows related to these schemes will to a large extent be dependent on 
these factors. Given that taken together these major schemes cannot be 
funded completely from existing resources and will require external borrowing 
to complete, the projection of investment income is particularly difficult this 
year.  
 
Maximum use of internal cash will be used in the first instance before going to 
the external market for borrowing, the timing of which will depend largely on 
the progress made on completing the major capital projects. However over the 
last two years underlying cash balances have been higher than predicted, 
enabling the Council to earn a greater income than budgeted (this has been 
reported as part of the budget monitoring process).It has also enabled the 
Council to maximise the opportunity of paying pension contributions 12 months 
up-front (rather than monthly in arrears) benefitting from a much higher return 
than could be achieved in the cash markets. 
 
Taking these factors into account (the higher cash balances, the low interest 
rates and the benefit from pension pre-payments) the net impact of the capital 
programme, excluding the Binfield Learning Village, is an economy of              
-£0.034m - a gain of -£0.075m from the higher than expected cash balances 
less the £0.041m pressure from the Capital Programme.  
 
There is an expectation that the cash flows required to complete the Binfield 
Learning Village will require external finance and this has been allowed for in 
the Commitment Budget (£0.075m). 
 
There is a risk, however, that the Council’s cash-flow will differ from past years 
as a result of the reforms to Business Rates Retention which has a dramatic 
impact on the cash-profile of the Council. With a number of outstanding large 
scale appeals and the shortly to be announced reforms to Business Rates this 
area represents a further layer of uncertainty. 
 
As such any change in interest rates or cash balances will clearly have an 
impact on the overall investment income generated by the Council and may 
require the Council to borrow externally sooner than expected. It is difficult to 
estimate the impact given this transition between internal and external 
borrowing. Long-term interest rates are at historical lows with 25-year Public 
Works Loan Board rates at 3.5% compared to an internal investment return of 
0.5%. 

 
The Council reviews the annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement 
under the requirement of the 2011 revised CIPFA Treasury Management in 
Public Services Code of Practice and Cross Sectoral Guidance Notes (“the 
CIPFA TM Code”). The Local Government Act 2003 required the Council to 
“have regard to the Prudential Code and to set Prudential Indicators for the 
next three years to ensure that the capital investment plans are affordable, 
prudent and sustainable”. Annexe E outlines the Council’s prudential indicators 
for 2016/17 – 2018/19 and sets out the expected treasury management 
activities for this period. It is recommended that the Executive agree the 
Treasury Management Strategy and associated documents and in line with the 
Code of Practice request that the Governance and Audit Committee review 
each of the key elements. 

 
 
 



Unrestricted 
  

c) Provision for Inflation and Pay Awards 
  

 The Commitment Budget excludes the cost of inflation on both expenditure 
and income.  In past years, the Council has restricted the provision for 
inflation on prices as a general economy measure, to help address the 
underlying budget gap, although pay awards have been fully funded.  In the 
context of the Council’s overall financial position, it is again prudent to 
consider where the provision for inflation on prices can be limited as an 
economy measure, although some exceptions will be necessary to reflect 
actual increases that will not be containable without real service reductions or 
to meet contractual commitments. In particular it will be important to have 
realistic discussions with key providers about what level of inflation is 
genuinely necessary on some contracts and placements. 

 
At this stage the inflation provision is not finalised, although for planning 
purposes a sum of £0.800m (£1.511m 2015/16) has been added to the 
budget.  This will be achieved by: 
 

• Assuming a pay award of no more than1%; 
• Negotiating to minimise inflation on contracts; 
• Reviewing the Bracknell Forest Supplement; 
• Increasing fees and charges in line with the Council’s income policy.  

 
The Council will need to consider where it is appropriate and necessary to 
provide for inflation over the coming weeks so that the actual inflation 
provision can be added to the final budget report in February 2016. 

   
d) Fees and Charges 

 
 Increases in fees and charges are determined by the overall economic 

conditions, the willingness of customers to pay the higher charges and 
continued demand for Council services. The Council policy for fees and 
charges requires each Department to consider the level of charges against 
the following criteria: 

 
• fees and charges should aim, as a minimum, to cover the costs of 

delivering the service; 
• where a service operates in free market conditions, fees and charges 

should at least be set at the market rate; 
• fees and charges should not be levied where this is an ineffective use 

of resources, i.e. the cost of collection exceeds any income generated. 
 

Certain other fees will attract the percentage determined by statute. The 
proposed fees and charges are included in Annexe D. These exclude the 
Fees and Charges for Coral Reef which will need to be reviewed before it is 
re-opened. 

 
 e) Corporate Contingency 
 
 The Council manages risks and uncertainties in the budget through the use of 

a general contingency added to the Council’s budget.  Every year the Council 
faces risks on its budget in relation to demand led services, Business Rates 
and the general economic climate. 
 



Unrestricted 
  

A range of significant risks were identified in preparing the 2015/16 Budget 
and it was deemed prudent to increase the Contingency from £1m to £2m. 
Whilst the Council continues to face uncertain times, given the level of 
reserves held by the Council and progress made on some of these factors at 
this stage, it is proposed to reduce the level back to £1m for 2016/17.   
 

  The Executive will need to make a judgement on the appropriate level of 
contingency at its February meeting, taking advice from the Borough 
Treasurer who will need to certify the robustness of the overall budget 
proposals in the context of the Council’s remaining general and earmarked 
reserves. All the reserves will be reviewed to ensure that they are sufficient to 
manage the financial risks facing the Council in the coming years.   

 
  
 Spending on Schools  

 
9.9 The Schools Budget continues to be funded by grants, the most significant of which is 

the specific ring-fenced Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG). This comprises three 
notional blocks; schools, which includes delegated school budgets and a small 
number of centrally managed services aimed at 5 – 16 year olds; early years, which 
again includes funds to pay providers and a limited range of central support services 
for 2 – 4 year olds; and the high needs block, which is generally centrally managed 
and is intended to fund the cost of education for 0 – 25 year olds when individual 
needs exceed £10,000. The gross DSG totalled -£83.081m in 2015/16. 

 
9.10 The allocations are not ring-fenced to each block, so more or less can be planned to 

be spent within each element, but a ring-fence continues on the DSG as a whole so 
that it can only be spent on the functions defined within the School and Early Years 
Finance Regulations. 

 
9.11 In setting the 2015/16 Schools Budget, the Schools Forum agreed that £2.093m of 

funding allocated by the Department for Education (DfE) for schools needed to be 
diverted to fund an unavoidable cost increase on statutory provisions supporting high 
needs pupils. The cost pressure mainly arose from changes introduced through the 
Children and Families Act, the most significant of which related to extending LA 
funding responsibilities for the provision of education to young people with special 
educational needs up to age 25 rather than the existing age 19. Whilst additional 
resources were added into the DSG for these changes, the amount was based on 
2011/12 student numbers, which typically rose by 40% by the time actual funding 
responsibility changed. 

 
9.12 In terms of the 2016/17 funding settlement for the Schools Budget, the DfE has 

confirmed that DSG per pupil funding rates for the Schools and Early Years Blocks 
will remain unchanged from 2015/16. For the High Needs Block, the DfE has indicated 
that councils should also plan for no change in funding from 2015/16. 

 
9.13 Many of the financial difficulties faced by the council on non-school services also 

impact on schools, with pressures arising on pay and other inflationary cost increases, 
a 2.5% increase in contributions to the teachers’ pension fund and increases in 
National Insurance contributions which coupled with other pressures indicate an 
average cost pressure next year on individual school budgets of 4.5%. In the longer 
term, further cost pressures will arise from the school building programme which is 
responding to new housing developments. These new schools will generally open with 
relatively low pupil numbers and will need additional financial support until pupil 
numbers grow to a sustainable level. This pressure will ordinarily need to be managed 



Unrestricted 
  

through the DSG and even with inflationary increases in funding settlements now 
expected over the next four years, reductions to individual school budgets to finance 
future, unavoidable pressures, cannot be ruled out. The impact of the Government’s 
proposed consultation on a national funding formula for schools is also unknown at 
this stage. 

 
9.14 Whilst it is expected that the schools and early years block elements of the DSG will 

be confirmed by the end of December, it is unlikely that the high needs block amount 
will be known until March 2016. However, the DfE requires councils to confirm the 
basis on which actual school budgets will be allocated, including per pupil and all 
other funding rates, by 21 January 2016 even though relevant information required to 
calculate budgets will not be supplied before 10 December 2015. To meet this 
requirement, 2016/17 school budgets will have to be set on the basis of the estimated 
level of DSG plus any other grants and accumulated balances. The draft budget 
proposals therefore assume the Schools Budget is set at the estimated level of grants 
and that any accumulated deficit or surplus is managed to a nil balance by the end of 
the funding period. 

 
9.15 In addition to the DSG, schools also receive revenue funding from other specific 

grants including School Sixth Forms (currently -£4.643m), the Pupil Premium             
(-£3.345m), Primary PE and Sports Premium (-0.292m) and the Universal Infant Free 
School Meals Grant (-£1.487m). All of these amounts are subject to change in 
2016/17. 

 
9.16 Decisions around the final balance of the budget between spending by schools and 

that on services managed by the Council is the responsibility of the Executive Member 
for Children, Young People and Learning, although the Schools Forum must be 
consulted, and in certain circumstances, agree to budget proposals. 

 
Summary 

 
9.17 Adding the draft proposals to the Commitment Budget and taking account of the 

corporate issues identified above would result in total expenditure of £72.035m as 
shown in Table 5.   

  
Table 5: Summary of proposals: 

 
 £’000 
Commitment Budget 80,735 
Budget Pressures 2,349 
Budget Economies  -3,687 
Capital Programme 41 
Changes in Investment  Income -75 
Inflation Provision 800 
Reversal of one-off transfer from Business Rates Equalisation Reserve 
used to balance the Budget in 2015/16 

3,988 

Change in Contingency -1,000 
One-off transfer from the Business Rates Equalisation Reserve to meet 
the Collection Fund - Business Rates Deficit 

-10,516 

New Homes Bonus 2016/17 -600 
  
Draft Budget Requirement 2016/17 72,035 

 
 



Unrestricted 
  

 
9.18 Without the Provisional Finance Settlement assumptions have had to be made on the 

level of grant income. It has been assumed that the Council can anticipate income of 
up to -£65.991m.  This arises from Revenue Support Grant and Business Rates 
baseline funding (-£28.074m), the Collection Fund – Council Tax surplus (-£0.425m), 
Council Tax at the 2015/16 level (-£48.008m) less the deficit of £10.516m on the 
Collection Fund – Business Rates. 

 
9.19 With the potential overall cost of the budget package being consulted on in the region 

of £72.035m, this leaves a potential gap of around £6.044m.  Members can choose to 
adopt any or all of the following approaches in order to bridge the remaining gap: 

 
• an increase in Council Tax; 
• an appropriate contribution from the Council’s revenue reserves, bearing in 

mind the Medium Term Financial Strategy; 
• identifying further expenditure reductions. 

 
9.20 With regards to identifying additional economies the Council has established a 

Transformation Board which will take the lead on reviewing the way in which all 
Council services are delivered over the next four years.  This represents a continuous 
programme of work, with the aim of identifying significant savings that can be 
incorporated into the 2016/17 budget and beyond.  The following services have been 
included in the first phase of Transformation Board’s work programme: 

  
• Adult Social Care Commissioning 
• Highways and Transport 
• Housing Benefits 
• Cultural and Leisure Services 
• Public Health 

 
9.21 It is anticipated that a significant proportion of the budget gap identified in paragraph 

9.19 (£6.044m) will be met from the five service areas above. 
 
 
10 RESERVES 
 
10.1 The Council has an estimated £10.0m available in General Reserves at 31 March 

2016.  Details are contained in Table 6. 
  
 

Table 6: General Reserves as at 31 March 2016 
 

 £m 
General Fund  10.9 
Planned use in 2015/16 (0.9) 
Estimated Balance as at 31 March 2016 10.0 

 
 
10.2  The Council has, in the past, planned on maintaining a minimum prudential balance of 

£4m. This assessment is based on the financial risks which face the Council and the 
Borough Treasurer considers these in the February report to the Executive at which a 
final decision on the use of balances can be taken, taking account of the financial 
position likely to face the Council over the next five years. 

 



Unrestricted 
  

 
11 CONCLUSION 
 
11.1 The Council’s constitution requires a consultation period of at least six week on the 

draft budget proposals.  In this context, it is inevitable that, of the broad range of 
options proposed for consultation, not all will necessarily be included in the final 
budget package.  It is also likely that some further issues with a financial impact will 
arise between now and February. When the Final Settlement is known, the Executive 
can consider the prudent use of revenue balances to support expenditure in line with 
the overall medium term financial strategy, along with any further expenditure 
reductions.   

 
11.2 It is suggested, therefore, that the normal process whereby the Overview & Scrutiny 

Commission reviews the overall budget package and determines whether any 
specific issues should be considered further by the Overview and Scrutiny Panels at 
their meetings in January, is followed. The proposals will also be placed on the 
Council’s website for public consultation. 

 
11.3 All comments from the Overview & Scrutiny Commission, Overview and Scrutiny 

Panels and all others will then be submitted to the Executive on 09 February 2016.  
This will allow the Executive to determine the final budget package and recommend 
the appropriate Council Tax level to the Council on 24 February 2016. 

 
 
12 BUDGET MONITORING 2015/16- VIREMENT REQUEST 
 
12.1 A virement is the transfer of resources between two budgets but it does not increase 

the overall budget approved by the Council.  Financial Regulations require formal 
approval by the Executive of any virement between £0.050m and £0.100m and of 
virements between departments of any amount. Full Council approval is required for 
virements over £0.100m. During 2015/16 a number of virements have been identified 
which require the approval of the Executive.  These have been previously reported to 
the Corporate Management Team which recommends them to the Executive for 
approval. They have been included in the Quarterly Service Reports. Details of 
virements between departments are set out in Annexe F.  Details of internal 
departmental virements exceeding £0.050m are set out in Annexe G. 

 
 
13 ADVICE RECEIVED FROM STATUTORY AND OTHER OFFICERS 
 
 Borough Solicitor 
 
13.1 Nothing to add to the report. 
 
 Borough Treasurer 
 
13.2 The financial implications of this report are included in the supporting information.   

 
Equalities Impact Assessment 

 
13.3 The Council’s final budget proposals will potentially impact on all areas of the 

community.  A detailed consultation process is planned in order to provide individuals 
and groups with the opportunity to comment on the draft proposals.  This will ensure 
that in making final recommendations, the Executive can be made aware of the views 
of a broad section of residents and service users.  A number of the budget proposals 



Unrestricted 
  

require specific equality impact assessments to be carried out and draft versions of 
these are attached in Annexe H. Consultation with equalities groups that are likely to 
be affected by the proposal is part of the assessment process. 
 
Strategic Risk Management Issues 

 
13.4 A sum of £1m is currently included in the draft proposals to meet the costs of 

unpredictable or unforeseen items that would represent in year budget risks.  The 
Executive will need to make a judgement on the level of Contingency at its meeting in 
February. 

 
13.5 The Borough Treasurer, as the Council’s Chief Finance Officer (Section 151 Officer), 

must formally certify that the budget is sound.  This will involve identifying and 
assessing the key risk areas in the budget to ensure the robustness of estimates and 
ensuring that appropriate arrangements are in place to manage those risks, including 
maintaining an appropriate level of reserves and Contingency.  This formalises work 
that is normally undertaken each year during the budget preparation stages and in 
monthly monitoring after the budget is agreed.  The Borough Treasurer will report his 
findings in February, when the final budget package is recommended for approval.   

 
14 CONSULTATION 
 
 Principal Groups Consulted 
 
14.1 The Overview & Scrutiny Commission will be consulted on the budget proposals and 

may also choose to direct specific issues to individual overview and scrutiny panels.  
Targeted consultation exercises will be undertaken with business rate payers, the 
Schools Forum, town and parish councils and voluntary organisations.  Comments 
and views will be sought on both the overall budget package and on the detailed 
budget proposals.  In addition, this report and all the supporting information are 
publicly available to any individual or group who wish to comment on any proposal 
included within it.  To facilitate this, the full budget package will be placed on the 
Council’s web site at http://consult.bracknell-forest.gov.uk/portal. There will also be a 
dedicated mailbox to collect comments. 

 
14.2 The timetable for the approval of the 2016/17 Budget is as follows 
 

Executive agree proposals as basis for consultation 15 December 2015 
Consultation period 
  

16 December 2015 - 
31 January 2016 

Executive considers representations made and 
recommends budget. 

09 February 2016 

Council considers Executive budget proposals 24 February 2016 
 
 
 
Background Papers 
None 
 
Contacts for further information 
 
Timothy Wheadon – 01344 355601 
Timothy.wheadon@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
 
Alan Nash – 01344 352180 

http://consult.bracknell-forest.gov.uk/portal
mailto:Timothy.wheadon@bracknell-forest.gov.uk


Unrestricted 
  

Alan.nash@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
 
Arthur Parker – 01344 352158 
Arthur.parker@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 

mailto:Alan.nash@bracknell-forest.gov.uk
mailto:Arthur.parker@bracknell-forest.gov.uk


2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Corporate Services / Chief Executive's Office
Approved Budget 14,243 14,362 14,203 14,159 14,188 14,239
Vacating Seymour House/Ocean House -14
Borough Elections -80 80
Residents Survey 29 -29 29 -29 29
Councillors access to the Local Government Pension Scheme -3
Legal Sevices income relating to S106 agreements 8
Facilities Management Category Savings -50
Revenue impact of 2015/16 Capital Programme - ICT costs 6
Capital Invest to Save 2015/16- ICT Backup System -35 -15
Tenterden Lodge - impact on Home to School Transport -20
Net Inter Departmental Virements 119
Chief Executive / Corporate Services Adjusted Budget 14,362 14,203 14,159 14,188 14,239 14,268

Non Departmental / Council Wide
Approved Budget -8,377 -8,585 -7,848 -6,253 -5,444 -4,732
2015/16 Capital Programme (Full Year Effect) - Interest 40
Minimum Revenue Provision 364 852 230 400 100
2015/16 Use of Balances (Full Year Effect) - Interest 2
Ceasing to pay Pension Fund contributions in advance 100
Increase in employers Pension Fund contributions 256 300 300 300 300
Interest on External Borrowing 75 343 279 12
Net Inter Departmental Virements -208
Non Departmental / Council Wide Adjusted Budget -8,585 -7,848 -6,253 -5,444 -4,732 -4,332

Commitment Budget 2016/17 to 2020/21

Annexe A



 

Description of Commitment Budget Items for 2016/17 to 2018/19 
 
Department and Item Description 

Corporate Services / Chief Executive’s Office 

Vacating Seymour 
House/Ocean House 

The demolition of Seymour House is now complete and staff have 
moved from Ocean House to Time Square. The Council was liable 
for the lease of the building and associated costs until August 2015. 
 

Borough Elections Borough Elections were held in May 2015 and the budget will 
therefore not be required again until May 2019. 
 

Residents Survey The Council commission Qa Research to carry out a biennial survey 
of residents in the Borough in order to help guide future policies. 
Undertaken in 2014/15, it is next due in 2016/17. 
 

Councillors access to the 
Local Government Pension 
Scheme 

Councillor’s access to the Local Government Pension Scheme 
ceased on the 7 May 2015. 
 

Legal Services income 
relating to S106 Agreements 

The income target in 2015/16 was increased to reflect projected 
income for 2014/15.  This is a demand led service and there is no 
assurance that these levels can be maintained beyond 2015/16, 
resulting in a reduction in the saving from 2016/17 onwards. 

 
Facilities Management 
Category Saving 

Framework saving were built into the 2014/15 budget but it was not 
possible to identify the full amount within the year. A pressure was 
therefore built into the budget for 2015/16 only to allow for the 
phasing of the saving over two years. It is anticipated that the full 
savings will be achieved in 2016/17. 
 

Revenue impact of 2015/16 
Capital Programme – ICT 
costs  

ICT have additional annual support and maintenance costs for 
maintaining the network following a refresh of ICT infrastructure to 
ensure equipment is both current and supportable.  
 

Capital Invest to Save 
2015/16 – ICT Backup 
System 
 

This investment will provide a technically superior backup system 
and deliver ongoing revenue savings. 
 

Tenterden Lodge - Impact on 
Home to School Transport 
 
 

Homeless families with children attending schools in Bracknell 
Forest, who are currently in Bed and Breakfast accommodation 
outside of the Borough, will be housed in Tenterden Lodge, thus 
reducing Home To School Transport costs. 
 

Non Departmental / Council 
Wide 
  

 

2015/16 capital programme    
(full year effect) -Interest 

The full year effect of the loss of interest based on the 2015/16 
capital programme. 
 

Minimum Revenue Provision The change in the principal repayment on loans used to finance 
capital expenditure.   
 

2015/16 use of balances (full 
year effect) -Interest 

The full year effect of the interest loss on the use of balances in 
2015/16. 
 

Annexe A



 

Department and Item Description 

Ceasing to pay Pension Fund 
contributions in advance 

The Council is unlikely to have the cash resources available to pay 
any employers and employees contributions, in advance, from 
2017/18. 
 

Increase in employers 
Pension Fund contributions 

Increase in payments required to meet prior year deficits. 

Interest on External 
Borrowing 

Interest on borrowing required to finance the construction of Binfield 
Learning Village. 
 

 

Annexe A



DRAFT REVENUE BUDGET PRESSURES Annexe B 

CORPORATE SERVICES / CHIEF EXECUTIVE ‘S OFFICE 
 

 
Description 
  

 
2016/17 
£’000 

 
2017/18 
£’000 

 
2018/19 
£’000 

Human Resources 
 
Renewing the licencing agreement with Learning Pool, 
which expires in February 2016. Learning Pool provide the 
e-learning platform for the Council.  The Council's Learning 
& Development strategy is to develop e-learning as an 
alternative/supplementary approach to traditional forms of 
learning/training. The new e-learning system has the ability 
to link into the new iTrent HR system which presents 
opportunities to improve business processes. 
 

 
 

15 
  

Home To School Transport 
 
Fewer available places in schools are leading to children 
being allocated places in schools which may not be nearest 
to their home address.  This is a particular problem for 
primary school children as they are not expected to travel 
alone so bus passes are also issued to parents. 
 

20   

Finance 
 
Due to an increase in insurance premiums together with the 
increase in the annual provision for insurance claim excess 
payments. 
 

105   

Chief Executive’s Office 
 
Cost of providing the Business and Enterprise Team, a new 
priority area of work for the Council, agreed by members in 
December 2013. The first two years of the team has been 
funded from the Economic Development Reserve, as 
agreed by the Executive, on the basis that the costs would 
be brought into the revenue budget for 2016/17. 
 
The cost includes two Full Time Equivalent posts, together 
with funding to promote the Council's priorities including 
inward investment and work to support local firms. 
 

151   

 
CORPORATE SERVICES / CHIEF EXECUTIVE TOTAL 
 

291 0 0 

 
 



DRAFT REVENUE BUDGET PRESSURES Annexe B 

COUNCIL WIDE 
 

 
Description 
Impact  
  

 
2016/17 
£’000 

 
2017/18 
£’000 

 
2018/19 
£’000 

Employers National Insurance Contributions 
 
Removal of the contracted out rebate for occupational 
pension schemes will significantly increase employer 
National Insurance contributions.  The Council has no 
option but to implement this change in legislation. 
 

841   

 
COUNCIL WIDE TOTAL  
 

841 0 0 

 



DRAFT REVENUE BUDGET SAVINGS PROPOSALS        Annexe C 
 
 
CORPORATE SERVICES / CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S OFFICE  
 

 
Description 
Impact  
  

 
2016/17 
£’000 

 
2017/18 
£’000 

 
2018/19 
£’000 

Finance 
 

The Audit Commission confirmed a reduction in the contract 
costs before being wound down on 31 March 2015 of £0.035m. 
In addition there has been a reduction of £0.016m for the audit 
costs of the certification of the Housing Benefit subsidy claim. 
 

-51 
   

Finance/Human Resources 
 
Annual licence costs reduced following the implementation of the 
new HR/Payroll system. The total saving is split evenly between 
HR and Finance 
 

-20   

Finance 
 

Reduction in costs following the retender of the banking service 
contract 
 

-18   

Legal Services 
 
The increased income target is based on the assumption that 
income will be maintained at current levels. However, this is a 
demand led service and there can be no assurance that the 
existing levels of income will continue. 
 

-23   

ICT 
 
Renegotiated software support contracts, including Zenworks, 
and network maintenance costs have resulted in a saving. The 
assumption is the estate remains the same, however if it 
increases annual support and licencing costs also increase. 
 

-72   

ICT 
 
New contract with BT for fixed line telephony on a call inclusive 
tariff has resulted in a saving of £0.010m. Further the re-
negotiation of the wide area network connection contract has 
reduced costs by £0.012m. 
 
 

-22   

Property Services 
 
The electric vehicle will reduce fuel charges.  However, we may 
have to reduce charges on the new vehicle as it is cheaper to 
run. 
 

-5   

Member & Mayoral Services 
 
Members’ allowances have been previously underspent and 

-13   



DRAFT REVENUE BUDGET SAVINGS PROPOSALS        Annexe C 
 
 

 
Description 
Impact  
  

 
2016/17 
£’000 

 
2017/18 
£’000 

 
2018/19 
£’000 

there has been no increase in the cost of Special Responsibility 
Allowances for the new administration. 
 
Revenue Services 
 
Implementation of the Surcharging module of the Capita 
payments system would allow the Council to pass the charge for 
using a credit card back to the customer. Currently the use of 
credit cards is costing the authority approximately £37,600 per 
annum (based on June 2015 income, managed through the 
Capita payment system). Failure to implement these changes 
would result in a significant pressure on the Revenues budget, 
as the allocated budget falls far short of the costs anticipated in 
2015/2016 and 2016/2017 due to an increase in charges by 
banks. 
 

-11   

Property Services 
 
Home to School Transport savings are anticipated following the 
review of school runs, new tender process and the review of the 
services.   
 

-60   

Electoral Services 
 

This was seasonal spend on temporary staff used to support the 
canvass which has changed with the advent of Individual 
Electoral Registration. 
 

-3   

Human Resources 
 
Reduction in Occupational Health budget. This may result in 
longer turn around times on occupational health 
appointments/more limited availability of the Occupational 
Health Advisor. 
 

-5   

Departmental Posts 
 
The Department will reduce it’s Full Time Equivalent (FTE) 
establishment in the following areas: 
Finance    FTE 1.0   £0.031m 
Community Safety Team  FTE 1.0   £0.021m 
Member & Mayoral Services         FTE 0.6   £0.007m 
Registration Services   FTE 0.4   £0.008m 
Customer Services   FTE 1.0   £0.037m 
Digital Services   FTE 0.5   £0.012m 
Human Resources   FTE 0.5   £0.018m 
Property Services   FTE 1.0   £0.015m 
 
These vacant posts currently help the Department achieve its 
managed vacancy target. By reducing the number of vacancies 
held there will be a need to slow the recruitment process 

-149  15 



DRAFT REVENUE BUDGET SAVINGS PROPOSALS        Annexe C 
 
 

 
Description 
Impact  
  

 
2016/17 
£’000 

 
2017/18 
£’000 

 
2018/19 
£’000 

generally and there will be less flexibility to enable the 
recruitment to critical service posts which may need to be held 
vacant for longer leading to potential non-delivery of key 
objectives. 
 
Departmental Supplies & Services 
 
Reduction in various supplies and services budgets across the 
Department 
 

-84   

Departmental Indirect Employee and Travel Costs 
 
Reduction in mileage, training, seminars and subsistence across 
the Department. 
 

-9   

Departmental Income 
 
There have been above inflation increases to Digital Services, 
Unified Training and Transport income targets in line with 
2015/16 estimated income.  
 

-12   

Departmental Third Party Payments 
 
The costs of the Lord Lieutenants Office joint arrangement with 
Reading have fallen and the Molly Millars joint arrangement with 
Wokingham has come to an end. 
 

-22 
   

Human Resources 
 
The Councils policy of Disclosure and Barring Service re-checks 
of existing staff will be revised to require them only for posts 
where there is a statutory requirement for them to be carried out. 
 

-27   

Revenue Services 
 
At the present time there is a discretionary Council Tax discount 
of 100% for a maximum period of one month when a property 
becomes empty; this was agreed by Council in February 2013 
for implementation with effect from 1 April 2013. It is proposed 
that this discount be removed with effect from 1 April 2016 and 
the full charge will then be payable when a property becomes 
empty, unless certain specific conditions apply. 
 

-150   

 
CORPORATE SERVICES / CHIEF EXECUTIVE TOTAL  
 

-756 0 15 

 



DRAFT REVENUE BUDGET SAVINGS PROPOSALS        Annexe C 
 
 
COUNCIL WIDE 
 

 
Description 
Impact  
  

 
2016/17 
£’000 

 
2017/18 
£’000 

 
2018/19 
£’000 

Senior Leadership Group 
 
A restructure of the senior leadership group. 
 

-200   

Earmarked Reserves 
 
Statutory guidance in the SEN Code of Practice 2014 requires all 
SEN Statements to be converted into Education Health Care 
Plans before April 2018. 190 statements will be required to be 
converted within the next financial year, to a shorter, 20 week 
timeframe which it is estimated will require additional short term 
capacity of 4.5 FTE staff. This has been shown as a pressure 
under the Children, Young People and Learning Department but 
will be funded from a transfer out of earmarked reserves. 
 

-146 73 73 

 
COUNCIL WIDE TOTAL  
 

-346 73 73 

 
 

 



Service: Legal & Surveyors' Fees

2015/16 
Budget

Proposed 
2016/17 
Budget

£'000 £'000
Income the proposed fees will generate: 117 131

Description Current Fee
(Exc VAT)

Proposed 
Fee

(Exc VAT)

Increase

£.p £.p %

Legal & Surveyors' Fees for Property Transactions

New Lease 440* 450* 2.3
Licence to Assign 330 340 3.0
Contracted Out Lease - fee is dependant on complexity 190/325 195/330 1.9
License to Alter - fee is dependant upon complexity 190/325 195/330 1.9
Deed of Variation - fee is dependant on complexity 190/325 195/330 1.9
Sale of Garages & Freehold Reversions 270 275 1.9
Letter/Deed of Postponement 120 125 4.2
Transfer (or hourly rate as appropriate) 315 320 1.6
Section 106 Agreements-£135 per hour 960** 975** 1.6
Processing of subject access requests 10 10 0.0

** With discretion for the Borough Solicitor to increase if time recorded costs exceed £975, at a rate of £160 per hour.

CORPORATE SERVICES & CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S DEPARTMENT

2016/17 PROPOSED FEES & CHARGES

* With discretion for the Borough Solicitor to increase if time recorded costs exceed £450, at a rate of £160 per hour.

Purpose of the Charge:  To contribute to the costs of the service

Are concessions available?  No

Annexe D



CORPORATE SERVICES & CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S DEPARTMENT

2016/17 PROPOSED FEES & CHARGES

Service: Electoral Registration

2015/16 
Budget

Proposed 
2016/17 
Budget

£'000 £'000
Income the proposed fees will generate: 5 5

Description Current Fee
(Exc VAT)

Proposed 
Fee

(Exc VAT)

Increase

£.p £.p %

Electoral Registration
21.00 22.00              4.5

Certificate of historical registration 60.00 62.00              3.2
22.00 23.00              4.3

Register of Electors:
20.00 20.00 0.0

10.00 10.00 0.0

20.00 20.00 0.0

10.00 10.00 0.0

10.00 10.00 0.0

10.00 10.00 0.0

Description Current Fee
(Exc VAT)

Proposed 
Fee

(Exc VAT)

Increase Proposed 
Fee

(Inc VAT)

£.p £.p % £.p

Household Delivery

Delivery Administration fee:
- across more than half of the Borough 180.00 185.00 2.8 222.00
- across less than half of the Borough 135.00 140.00 3.7 168.00

Plus charges per leaflet/property
0.20 0.21 5.0 0.25
0.15 0.16 6.7 0.19
0.02 0.03 50.0 0.04

Register of Overseas Electors:

- in data format £1.50 for every 1000 entries or part thereof plus the current 
fee#

- in paper format £5 for each 1000 entries or part thereof plus the current 
fee#

-rural properties per leaflet/property
-urban properties  per leaflet/property
-each additional leaflet (both urban and rural)

- in paper format £2 for each 1000 entries or part thereof plus the current 
fee#

Purpose of the Charge:  To Contribute to the costs of the service

Are concessions available?  No

- in data format £1 for every 1000 entries or part thereof plus the current fee#
Marked copy of the Register of Electors:

-in data format £1.50 for every 1,000 entries of part thereof plus the current 
fee#
- in paper format £5 for each 1000 entries or part thereof plus the current 
fee#

Certificate of current register

# These are statutory charges that are determined nationally through legislation.

Street Index

The Household Delivery Service has been reviewed to ensure that the fees and charges cover the cost of providing the service.

Charges may increase depending on the size and weight of the documents

Annexe D



CORPORATE SERVICES & CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S DEPARTMENT

2016/17 PROPOSED FEES & CHARGES

Service: Registration of Births, Deaths and Marriages Services

2015/16 
Budget

Proposed 
2016/17 
Budget

£'000 £'000
Income the proposed fees will generate: 190 190

Description Current Fee
(Exc VAT)

Proposed 
Fee

(Exc VAT)

Increase Proposed 
Fee

(Inc VAT)

2017/18 
Proposed 

Fee
(Inc VAT)

Increase

£.p £.p % £.p £.p %

Change of Name Service
Adult 37.50 38.33              2.2 46.00 48.00 4.4
 - Additional deed purchased at time of appointment 6.25 6.67                6.7 8.00 10.00 24.9
 - Copy of archived deed 12.08 12.50              3.5 15.00 17.50 16.7

Child 42.08 42.92              2.0 51.50 53.00 2.9
 - Additional deed purchased at time of appointment 6.25 6.67                6.7 8.00 10.00 24.9
 - Copy of archived deed 12.08 12.50              3.5 15.00 17.50 16.7

Family (parents and up to two children) 120.00 122.08            1.7 146.50 150.00 2.4

Marriage and Civil Partnership Ceremonies

Description Current Fee
(Exc VAT)

Proposed 
Fee

(Exc VAT)

Increase Proposed 
Fee

(Inc VAT)

2017/18 
proposed 

Fee (incl VAT 
where 

applicable)

Increase

£.p £.p % £.p £.p %

1,330.00 n/a n/a n/a

New Licence n/a 1,750.00 1790.00 2.3
Licence Renewal n/a 1,500.00 1530.00 2.0

35.00 35.00 0.0 35.00 0.0

- for a housebound person# 82.00
- for a detained person# 103.00

- at a registered building# 86.00
- of a housebound person# 81.00
- of a detained person# 88.00

- of a housebound person# 84.00
- of a detained person# 94.00

- Monday - Thursday 320.00 355.00 10.9 365.00 2.8
- Friday n/a 400.00 n/a 420.00 5.0
- Saturday 390.00 450.00 15.4 465.00 3.3
 -Sunday/Bank Holiday 450.00 500.00 11.1 520.00 4.0

46.00 46.00 0.0 46.00 0.0

These are statutory charges that are determined nationally through 
legislation. There are a number of additional statutory charges available 
on request

Are concessions available?  No, but a variety of services provided at differing prices.

Purpose of the Charge:  To Contribute to the costs of the service

Licensing of premises as marriage venues  (three year 
licence)

Notice of Intent fee for marriage and civil partnership 
ceremonies at the Register Office#

Notice of Intent fee for marriage and civil partnership 
away from the Register Office (includes fee for entry in 
marriage notice book):

Attendance of Registrar for a marriage or civil 
partnership:

Attendance of Superintendent Registrar for a marriage 
or civil partnership:

Marriage or Civil Partnership Ceremony in the Register 
Office or the Syrett Small Ceremony Room#

# These are statutory charges that are determined nationally through legislation. There are a number of additional statutory charges available on 
request
Note - Appointment fees will be taken at the time of booking

Attendance of Superintendent Registrar for a marriage 
or civil partnership at approved premises 

Annexe D



CORPORATE SERVICES & CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S DEPARTMENT

2016/17 PROPOSED FEES & CHARGES

Marriage and Civil Partnership Ceremonies (Cont)

Description Current Fee
(Exc VAT)

Proposed 
Fee

(Exc VAT)

Increase Proposed 
Fee

(Inc VAT)

2017/18 
proposed 

Fee (incl VAT 
where 

applicable)

Increase

£.p £.p % £.p £.p %

- Monday - Thursday 130.00 140.00 7.7 150.00 7.1
- Friday 155.00 195.00 25.8 210.00 7.7
- Saturday morning 175.00 n/a n/a
 -Saturday 285.00 295.00 3.5 300.00 1.7
 -Sunday / Bank Holiday 385.00 395.00 2.6 400.00 1.3

Ceremony service enhancements
 - Friday 32.00 n/a n/a
- Saturday morning 42.00 n/a n/a
 -Saturday afternoon 52.00 n/a n/a

- Monday - Friday 14.29 15.00 5.0 17.85 18.00 0.8
- Saturday morning 18.58 n/a n/a n/a

45.00

46.00

27.00

242.50 245.00 1.0 247.50 1.0

254.00 258.00 1.6 262.50 1.7

99.00

117.00
15.00

These are statutory charges that are determined nationally through 
legislation. There are a number of additional statutory charges available 
on request

These are statutory charges that are determined nationally through 
legislation. There are a number of additional statutory charges available 
on request

- of a seriously ill person not expected to recover#

# These are statutory charges that are determined nationally through legislation. There are a number of additional statutory charges available on 
request

Note - Appointment fees will be taken at the time of booking

- of a housebound person #

- of a detained person#

Pre-ceremony chat appointments for wedding/civil and 
other ceremonies 

- other licensed premises 

Attendance of Superintendent Registrar for a civil 
partnership conversion to a marriage:

Attendance of Superintendent Registrar for a civil 
partnership conversion to a marriage at a registered 
building#

Attendance of superintendent Registrar for a civil 
partnership conversion to a marriage with a non-
statutory ceremony 

Marriage or Civil Partnership Ceremony in the Syrett 
Large Ceremony Room (includes Superintendent 
Registrar's and registrar's attendance):

Application to convert a Civil Partnership to a 
marriage#

Attendance of Superintendent Registrar for a civil 
partnership conversion to a marriage at the Register 
office#

- Syrett Large Ceremony Room

Annexe D



CORPORATE SERVICES & CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S DEPARTMENT

2016/17 PROPOSED FEES & CHARGES

Description Current Fee
(Exc VAT)

Proposed 
Fee

(Exc VAT)

Increase Proposed 
Fee

(Inc VAT)

2017/18 
proposed 

Fee (incl VAT 
where 

applicable)

Increase

£.p £.p % £.p £.p %

Naming Ceremonies/Renewal of Vows

- single naming ceremony 164.71 n/a n/a n/a
- double naming ceremony 204.83 n/a n/a n/a
- triple naming ceremony 231.15 n/a n/a n/a
Monday-Thursday n/a 166.67 200.00 205.00 2.5
Friday n/a 204.17 245.00 255.00 4.1
Saturday n/a 229.16 275.00 280.00 1.8
Sunday/Bank Holiday n/a 187.50 225.00 230.00 2.2

- single naming ceremony 174.12 n/a n/a n/a
- double naming ceremony 213.30 n/a n/a n/a
- triple naming ceremony 248.98 n/a n/a n/a
Monday-Thursday n/a 177.50 213.00 218.00 2.3
Friday n/a 220.83 265.00 275.00 3.8
Saturday n/a 253.75 304.50 310.00 1.8
Sunday/Bank Holiday n/a 295.83 355.00 370.00 4.2

- single naming ceremony 216.67 n/a n/a n/a
- double naming ceremony 254.13 n/a n/a n/a
- triple naming ceremony 291.48 n/a n/a n/a

Other Ceremonies

- Syrett Large Ceremony Room 164.71 n/a n/a n/a
- other licensed premises 174.12 n/a n/a n/a

216.67 n/a n/a n/a

Other Ceremonies and Nationality Checking Service

Attendance of celebrant at a naming ceremony in non-
licensed premises (includes 1/2 hour pre-ceremony 
appointment and non-refundable risk assessment fee)

Attendance of celebrant at all other ceremonies 
(includes 1/2 hour pre-ceremony appointment)

- non licensed premises (includes a non-refundable 
risk assessment fee)

Attendance of celebrant at a ceremony in the Syrett 
Large Ceremony Room 

Attendance of celebrant at a naming ceremony in 
licensed premises 

Annexe D



CORPORATE SERVICES & CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S DEPARTMENT

2016/17 PROPOSED FEES & CHARGES

Description Current Fee
(Exc VAT)

Proposed 
Fee

(Exc VAT)

Increase Proposed 
Fee

(Inc VAT)

2017/18 
proposed 

Fee (incl VAT 
where 

applicable)

Increase

£.p £.p % £.p £.p %

Certificates

- at time of registration# 4.00 4.00 0.0 n/a
7.00 7.00 0.0 n/a

10.00 10.00 0.0 n/a

- at time of registration# 4.00 4.00 0.0 n/a
- at any other time# 10.00 10.00 0.0 n/a

Additional fee - certificates
Premium Service n/a 20.00 22.00 10.0
(in addition to statutory fee)
Postage admin per certificate n/a 2.60 2.70 3.8

Additional fee 
Personal search (up to 6 hours) n/a 18.00 19.00 5.6

Nationality Checking Service
48.33 54.17 12.1 65.00 75.00 15.4
65.00 75.00 15.4 90.00 100.00 11.1
19.17 29.17 52.2 35.00 45.00 28.6
27.50 45.83 66.7 55.00 65.00 18.2
62.50 n/a n/a n/a
78.75 n/a n/a n/a
79.17 n/a n/a n/a
94.17 n/a n/a n/a
95.83 n/a n/a n/a

108.33 n/a n/a n/a
83.33 n/a n/a n/a

100.00 n/a n/a n/a
125.00 n/a n/a n/a

137.50 n/a n/a n/a
16.67 n/a n/a n/a

Settlement Checking Service
83.33 87.50 5.0 105.00 110.00 4.8
83.33 87.50 5.0 105.00 110.00 4.8

Each additional child - Monday-Friday 19.17 20.00 4.3 24.00 25.00 4.2
16.67 n/a n/a n/a

Individual Citizenship Ceremonies
60.00 n/a n/a n/a

104.17 n/a n/a n/a
Syrett Large Ceremony Room:
- Monday - Friday 166.67 n/a n/a n/a

- Monday - Friday 104.17 108.33 4.0 130.00 135.00 3.8

n/a 20.83 n/a 25.00 30.00 20.0

Single child application - Saturday/evenings

Additonal fee for cancellation/amendment/follow-up 
appointment

Other Ceremonies and Nationality Checking Service cont.

Single adult and single child - Saturdays

- after registration but in current register#

Single adult and two children - Monday-Friday

Additional fee if a second appointment is required

Joint spouse application - Saturday

Single adult and three children -  Saturday

Single adult application - Saturday/evenigs

Single adult and single child - Monday-Friday

Single child application - Monday-Friday

Civil Partnership certificates (extract or full):

Single adult application - Monday - Friday

- after registration and after register closed#

Single adult and three children -  Monday-Friday
Single adult and two children - Saturday

Joint spouse and up to two children - Monday-Friday

Joint spouse and up to two children -Saturday

Birth (short and long), death and marriages 
certificates(extracts or full):

# These are statutory charges that are determined nationally through legislation.

Note - Appointment fees will be taken at the time of booking 

Single adult application - Monday-Friday
Single adult application and up to two children Monday-
Friday

Additional fee is a second appointment is required

Superintendent Registrar's Room - Monday-Friday
Syrett Small Ceremony Room - Monday-Friday

Joint spouse application - Monday-Friday

Annexe D



CORPORATE SERVICES & CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S DEPARTMENT

2016/17 PROPOSED FEES & CHARGES

Service: Democratic Services

2015/16 
Budget

Proposed 
2016/17 
Budget

£'000 £'000
Income the proposed fees will generate: 0 0
Very few requests are made for agendas and the income budgets are below £1,000

Description Current Fee
(Exc VAT)

Proposed 
Fee

(Exc VAT)

Increase

£.p £.p %

Council Publications

Agendas/Minutes, etc
165.00 168.00 1.8

Executive Agenda – Charge per Annum (based on 11 per Annum) 248.00 252.00 1.6
Planning Committee (based on 12 per Annum) 248.00 252.00 1.6
Any other Committee or Sub Committee Agendas

119.00 121.00 1.7
Charge per single copy 30.00 31.00 3.3

11.00 11.00 0.0

Service: Democratic Services

2015/16 
Budget

Proposed 
2016/17 
Budget

£'000 £'000
Income the proposed fees will generate: 3.0 3.0

Description Current Fee
(Exc VAT)

Proposed 
Fee

(Exc VAT)

Increase

£.p £.p %

2,500.00 2,550.00 2.0
4,700.00 4,800.00 2.1
250 each 255 each 2.0
250 each 255 each 2.0

Are concessions available?  Agendas are available online at no charge.

Purpose of the Charge:  To Contribute to the costs of the service

Up to 10 appeals and 2 ombudsmen cases a year for three years

Charges to Schools for administration and clerking of appeals

Appeals Service

Charge for unscheduled occasional appeals

Purpose of the Charge:  To Contribute to the costs of the service

Are concessions available?  No

Part extract (any Committee) including background papers - administration 
fee

Council agenda – Charge per Annum (Based on 8 per Annum)

Charge per Annum (Based on 4 per annum)

Up to 5 appeals and 2 ombudsman cases a year for three years

Additional appeal once the maximum has been reached

Annexe D



CORPORATE SERVICES & CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S DEPARTMENT

2016/17 PROPOSED FEES & CHARGES

Service: Democratic Services

2015/16 
Budget

Proposed 
2016/17 
Budget

£'000 £'000
Income the proposed fees will generate: 2.0 2.0

Description Current Fee
(Exc VAT)

Proposed 
Fee

(Exc VAT)

Increase Proposed 
Fee

(Inc VAT)

£.p £.p % £.p

Invoice Charge 23.00 24.00 4.3
Hourly Rate 55.00 56.00 1.8
Minimum Charge 29.00 30.00 3.4

A4 B&W 0.25 0.26 4.0 0.31
A3 B&W 0.40 0.42 5.0 0.50
A4 Colour 0.79 0.82 3.3 0.98
A3 Colour 1.47 1.50 2.3 1.80

Service: Education Transport

2015/16 
Budget

Proposed 
2016/17 
Budget

£'000 £'000
Income the proposed fees will generate: 0.1 0.1

Description Current Fee
(Exc VAT)

Proposed 
Fee

(Exc VAT)

Increase

£.p £.p %

Home to School Travel 

20.00 20.00 0.0

Are concessions available?  No

These are chargeable in addition or as default to recover actual costs for 

Purpose of the Charge:  To Contribute to the costs of the service

Are concessions available?  No

Photocopying Charges

Farepayer fees per term on existing routes
Lost Passes

Purpose of the Charge:  To contribute to the costs of the service where there is spare capacity on an existing route.

STANDARD OTHER CHARGES FOR DEMOCRATIC & REGISTRATION 

Annexe D



CORPORATE SERVICES & CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S DEPARTMENT

2016/17 PROPOSED FEES & CHARGES

Service: Town Centre Management

2015/16 
Budget

Proposed 
2016/17 
Budget

£'000 £'000
Income the proposed fees will generate: 44 44

Description Current Fee
(Exc VAT)

Proposed 
Fee

(Exc VAT)

Increase Proposed 
Fee

(Inc VAT)

£.p £.p % £.p

Stalls/promotions in the Charles Sq area Sun-Thurs daily charge 150.00 150.00 0.0 180.00
Stalls/promotions in the Charles Sq area Fri-Sat daily charge 300.00 300.00 0.0 360.00

500.00 500.00 0.0 600.00
Fairground type ride daily 40.00 40.00 0.0 48.00
Fairground type ride weekly 200.00 200.00 0.0 240.00

Purpose of the Charge:  To contribute to the costs of the service

Stalls/promotions in the Charles Sq area weekly charge

Are concessions available?  Yes, charities and not for profit organisations can have the area without the charge for a 
maximum of 2 weeks per year, however cancellations with less than 48 hours notice will incur a charge of £5 per day. Local 
SME's may be charged a reduced rate, this degree of discretion is delegated to the Regeneration Manager.

Annexe D



 
  ( ITEM  ) 

 
TO: THE EXECUTIVE 

15 DECEMBER 2015 
 
 

CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2016/2017 - 2018/2019 
(Borough Treasurer/Chief Executive) 

 
1 PURPOSE OF DECISION 
 
1.1 Under the Council’s constitution, the Executive is required to consult on its detailed 

budget proposals with the Council’s Overview & Scrutiny Commission and any other 
interested parties or individuals for a period of at least six weeks.  This report 
summarises the current position on the Council’s Capital Programme budget 
preparations for 2016/17. 

 
1.2 This report draws together each department’s proposals so that the Executive can 

agree a draft capital programme for 2016/17-2018/19 as the basis for consultation.  
In compiling the draft programme the main focus is inevitably on determining the 
requirements for 2016/17, although future year’s schemes do also form an important 
part of the programme.  

 
1.3 The financial implications of the recommendations in this report are reflected in the 

subsequent report on the Council’s draft revenue budget.  Any revisions to the 
proposals put forward by each service would also need to be reflected in that report 
which will also be published as the basis for consultation following the Executive’s 
meeting. 

 
2 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

That the Executive: 
 
2.1 Approves, for consultation, an initial Council funded capital programme of 

£55.037m for 2016/17 as set out in paragraph 5.30 a nd summarised in Annex 
A, including the schemes listed in Annexes B – F. 

 
2.2 Approves, for consultation, the inclusion of an  additional budget of £1m for  

Invest-to-Save schemes in addition to the specific schemes identified in 
paragraph 5.24 subject to the detailed business cas e being reviewed and 
agreed by the Borough Treasurer. 
 

2.3 Approves, for consultation, the inclusion of £2 .092m of expenditure to be 
funded from S106 as outlined in paragraph 5.31. 

 
2.4 Approves, for consultation, the inclusion of £1 7.498m of expenditure to be 

externally funded as outlined in paragraph 5.31. 
 

2.5 Recommends to Full Council the approval of vire ments totalling £0.481m to 
the 2015/16 Children Young People and Learning Prog ramme, as set out in 
Annex G, in order to meet the demands of the School  Places Plan. 

 
2.6 Recommends to Full Council the approval of £0.0 5m in 2015/16 from 

unallocated Basic Need Grant for Ascot Heath School s as outlined in 
paragraph 5.35 

 



 
 
3 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
3.1 The reasons for the recommendations are set out in the report. 
 
 
4 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
4.1 The alternative options are considered in the report. 
 
5 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 

Capital Resources 
 
5.1 Each year the Council agrees a programme of capital schemes.  In the past these 

schemes have been funded from three main sources: 
 

• the Council’s accumulated capital receipts  
• Government Grants 
• other external contributions 

 
5.2 The Local Government Act 2003 brought in radical changes to the financing of 

capital expenditure and from that date, the Government no longer issued borrowing 
approvals.  Instead, under a new “prudential framework”, Councils can set their own 
borrowing limits based on the affordability of the debt.  

 
5.3 As the Council’s accumulated capital receipts have been fully utilised, the Council 

returned to a position of internal borrowing in 2010 and as such a revenue 
contribution is required each year to repay this internal borrowing. Once the 
Council’s current level of investments is exhausted, which is expected to be within 
the next 18 months the Council will need to borrow externally. 

 
5.4 The Council’s estimated total usable capital receipts at 31st March 2015 are zero.  

As a debt free authority the Council is partly reliant on capital receipts to fund its 
capital programme, although interest generated from capital receipts can also help 
support the revenue budget in the short term.  The Council still receives a share of 
any Right-To-Buy proceeds from Bracknell Forest Homes in addition to a share of 
capital receipts from the VAT Shelter scheme.  

 
5.5 The proposed capital programme for 2016/17 has been developed, therefore, on the 

assumption that it will be funded by a combination of Government grants, other 
external contributions and borrowing in addition to £5m of capital receipts. With such 
a large programme there is a likelihood that the Council may need to borrow 
externally however this will depend largely on the progress made at Binfield 
Learning Village and at Coral Reef. Internal resources will be used in the first 
instance and borrowing from external sources (eg the PWLB or the Green 
Investment Bank) will be used when necessary. The financing costs associated with 
the General Fund Capital Programme have been provided for in the Council’s 
revenue budget plans which also appear on tonight’s agenda. 

 
New Schemes 

5.6 Within the general financial framework outlined above, Service Departments have 
considered new schemes for inclusion within the Council’s Capital Programme for 
2016/17 – 2018/19.  Given that both capital and revenue resources are under 
pressure, each Department has evaluated and prioritised proposed schemes into 
broad categories in line with the Council’s Asset Management Plan.  Having done 



 
this, only the very highest priority schemes and programmes are being 
recommended for inclusion in the Capital Programme. 
 
Town Centre  

5.7 Following the conclusion of the Development Agreement with Bracknell 
Regeneration Partnership (BRP) the Council set out its own planned investment on 
wider Town Centre infrastructure as part of the 2015/16 Capital Programme. These 
investment plans follow through into 2016/17 and beyond.  
 

5.8 Similarly in order to facilitate transport movements around the Borough, including 
the planned Town Centre redevelopment, it is necessary to continue to fund a 
number of infrastructure schemes. As such a funding need of £2.0m has been 
identified in the 2016/17 proposals with further commitments required in future years 
to ensure that the regenerated town centre functions as a “whole centre” and not 
just as an isolated shopping outlet. As such spending levels of around £2m per 
annum are likely to be required until the new Northern Retail Quarter area is open 
and established for trading. This additional expenditure is aimed at maximising the 
positive experience of visiting the regenerated town centre. 
 

5.9 All of these items have a much wider impact than the new development itself and 
will benefit the whole Borough. However the expenditure needs to be co-ordinated 
with the specific work that BRP are planning to carry out. 

 
Binfield Learning Village 

5.10 The Binfield Learning Village is a priority for the Council. The programme will deliver 
statutory places required in the Borough alongside meeting the need for new 
housing and the associated community facilities. The plans for the development 
continue to be progressed and the main construction works will shortly be tendered 
in the market and an update will be provided once these have been evaluated. The 
figures included in the Capital Programme are prior to the addition of inflation which 
will be calculated from the time of the original estimates to the date of the contract 
award. With the heightened level of demand for construction in the South East of 
England over the last 24 months this could add up to 15% to the final cost. 

 
Coral Reef Transformation 

5.11 The main roof structures at Coral Reef are complex and have required extensive 
monitoring and maintenance for the latter part of its life. The contracts for the main 
works are currently out to tender the evaluation will be reviewed by Executive in 
February 2016.  The figures included in the Capital Programme are prior to the 
addition of inflation which will be calculated from the time of the original estimates in 
Q12014 up to the date of the contract award. With the heightened level of demand 
for construction in the South East of England over the last 24 months this could add 
up to 15% to the final budgeted cost and will be agreed in February 2016. 
 
Old Magistrates’ Court Property 

5.12 Funding is requested to acquire the former magistrates’ court at £650,000 for the 
freehold premises. The Council is seeking to acquire this site to join with its own 
holdings for a significant and comprehensive future phase to support the 
development and vitality of the new town centre. There will be limited provision for 
some claw-back if sold/developed within 3 years, but this is unlikely to happen. 
Funding for this request also includes legal costs (£15,000), stamp-duty (£35,000) 
and refurbishment costs (£75,000) needed if the property is to be used pending any 
future redevelopment. 
 



 
Other Unavoidable & Committed schemes 

5.13 This category covers schemes which must proceed to ensure that the Council is not 
left open to legal sanction and includes items relating to health and safety issues, 
new legislation etc.  Committed schemes also include those that have been started 
as part of the 2015/16 Capital Programme.  Also included within this category are 
those schemes that were previously funded from the General Fund Revenue 
Account, but which by their nature could be legitimately capitalised, thereby 
reducing pressure on the revenue budget.  Schemes in this category form the first 
call on the available capital resources. 
 

5.14 Within these categories, provision has been made to address the rolling programme 
of disabled access requirements to Council buildings (£0.035m). The works have 
been identified through independent access audits and have been prioritised to 
meet the needs of users of these buildings. Significant progress has been made in 
past years and a programme of works has been planned across a range of service 
areas. 

 
Maintenance (Improvements and capitalised repairs) 

5.15 An assessment has been made of the condition of the Council’s property assets to 
arrive at an estimate of the outstanding maintenance works required. An 
assessment is made of the state of each building element and its repair priority with 
a condition rating and repair urgency. 

  
5.16 The figures below are based on the information held in the Construction and 

Maintenance Groups’ property management system. They have been adjusted to 
exclude those works that are already budgeted for within existing 2015/16 schools 
and corporate planned maintenance programmes.  

 
The priorities can be broken down as follows: 
 

Maintenance Backlog 
  £ 

(000) 
£ 

(000) 
    
Schools Priority 1C & 1D 4,799  
 Priority 2C & 2D 8,919  
 Lower Priorities 22,600 36,318 
    
Corporate Properties Priority 1C & 1D 1,677  
 Priority 2C & 2D 4,187  
 Lower Priorities 10,300 16,164 
Total   52,482 

 
 
5.17 The overall maintenance liability has increased from £25.2m in 2015/16 to £52.5m.  

The last couple of years have seen large increases in building costs.  As the Council 
is now running a five year programme of condition surveys, some of the older data 
was quickly becoming out-of-date and, as a consequence, adjustments have been 
applied to that data to bring it in line with current costs.  Secondly, the nature of the 
condition surveys has evolved such that more emphasis is now given to predicting 
the need for works further in advance than was previously the case. This is partly 
because of the five year programme approach mentioned above and partly because 
the asset management package that we now use to manage this data lends itself to 
better recording. As such much of the value attributed to lower priority works is for 
things that are likely to be required over the next several years.  
 



 
Schools 

5.18 Historically the Schools Maintenance Programme has been funded from the Capital 
Maintenance grant allocation from the Department for Education (DfE). The 
allocation from the DfE for 2016/17 of £2.105m will be used to tackle the highest 
priority items identified in the condition surveys indicated above. 

 
Non-schools 

5.19 From an initial analysis of the work required it is clear that some works, whilst 
urgent, cannot be legitimately capitalised and must be met from a revenue budget. 
An allowance of £200,000 is available in the 2016/17 Revenue Budget proposals to 
meet these liabilities.  
 

5.20 In line with the policy adopted last year the Asset Management Group has 
considered only those works that fall within categories 1C and 1D. Given the 
financial constraints on both the revenue and capital budgets an allocation of 
£1.670m is recommended to address the most pressing 1C &1D priorities.  

 
5.21 The implications of failing to maintain Council buildings and to address the backlog 

will be a significant issue for the Council over the coming years and efforts will be 
focussed on ensuring that the highest priority items are tackled first, that efficiencies 
are maximised in the procurement of works and that maintenance which will result in 
energy efficiencies are undertaken through the invest-to-save programme. 

 
Rolling programmes 

5.22 These programmes cover more than one year and give a degree of certainty for 
forward planning schemes to improve service delivery.  They make an important 
contribution towards the Council’s established Asset Management Plans. 
 
Other Desirable Schemes 

5.23 In addition to the schemes identified in the above categories, each service has 
requested funding for other high priority schemes that meet the needs and 
objectives of their service.  The net cost of schemes which attract partial external 
funding are included in the schemes put forward.   
 
Invest-To-Save Schemes 

5.24 These are schemes where the additional revenue income or savings arising from 
their implementation exceeds the Council’s borrowing costs. In the past the Council 
has allocated £1m per annum to fund potential Invest-to-Save (ITS) schemes that 
may present themselves during the year. However in addition to this, two significant 
schemes have come forward that are best considered within the overall programme 
as a whole. These are to invest £1m on a new Chapel at the Cemetery and 
Crematorium and to redevelop the Waymead Flats at a cost of £0.580m creating 
additional emergency accommodation for care leavers. 
 
Additional Chapel 

5.25 Over the past five years, business at the Cemetery and Crematorium has grown 
significantly at the expense of local competitors.  This growth is believed to be 
largely due to the investment, attractiveness of the site and the attitude of the staff.  
All of the feedback received from funeral directors confirms that they are promoting 
Easthampstead Park Cemetery and Crematorium as their preferred facility. A 
second chapel could potentially double capacity and generate income to recover the 
capital investment and deliver future additional income. A feasibility report has been 
commissioned and an operationally acceptable solution has been devised and 
costed. The proposal includes for additional car parking with the minimal visual 
impact to the grounds.  The estimated cost would be £1m. 
 



 
5.26 It is believed that demand for the facility will increase both as a result of population 

growth and the diminishing burial plots as local churchyards reach capacity. In order 
to fund the investment, a net income stream of approximately £67,000 per annum 
will be required based on a 25 year life and current interest rates for a 25-year loan 
of 3.5%. Based on past performance and future demand it is believed this level of 
additional cremations can be easily met. Annual running costs of the Chapel are 
estimated to be in the region of £60,000 and include Business Rates (£16,000), 
Utilities (£10,000), Staffing (£24,000), Cleaning (£5,000) and miscellaneous 
expenditure (£5,000). To fund this level of net income an additional 15 cremations a 
month would need to be undertaken generating income of £127,000 per annum.  
 

5.27 The existing Chapel is currently supporting up to 150 cremations a month and as 
such there is scope to increase the net income from the new facility in future years. 
Any additional income over and above that needed to payback the initial investment 
will be used to support the budget savings required by the Council over the medium-
term and will be monitored as part of the Council’s normal budget monitoring 
processes. 
 
Waymead Flats 

5.28 Waymead Flats is currently void and a plan is proposed to refurbish the property in 
order to provide accommodation for a supported housing group (Care Leavers) 
which in turn will generate revenue savings for the Council. Through a combination 
of rental income and savings in the current budget for care leavers accommodation 
an Invest-to-Save bid can be successfully developed that will bring back into use 
Waymead Flats as a viable asset and improve the level of service provided by the 
Council. In addition, by working closely with a Registered Social Landlord who will 
take a long-lease of the newly refurbished Waymead Flats, this proposal offers the 
opportunity of developing an additional site for redevelopment. 
 

5.29 These two schemes are proposed for inclusion within the Council’s 2016/17 Capital 
Programme and a further £1m made available for opportunities that arise during the 
year.   
 
Capital Programme 2016/17 – 2018/19 
 

5.30 A summary of the cost of schemes proposed by Departments is set out in the table 
below and in Annex A. A detailed list of suggested schemes within the draft capital 
programme, together with a brief description of each project, for each service is 
included in Annexes B – F.  Total Council funding amounts to £55.037m. However 
excluding the funding for Binfield Learning Village, Coral Reef Transformation, the 
Invest to Save Schemes, the Local Housing Company, the Magistrates’ Court, the 
Town Centre Redevelopment and the LED Streetlight Replacement scheme 
(approved in 2015/16 as part of a two-year scheme) the total Council funding 
requested is £8.054m in 2016/17 and this is in line with previous programmes and 
the amount allowed for in the Revenue Budget proposals. 



 
 

 

Capital Programme 2016/17-2018/19  

Annex Service Area 2016/17 
£000 

2017/18 
£000 

2018/19 
£000 

B Adult Social Care, Health & Housing 9,227 500 0 

C Children, Young People & Learning 36,465 19,759 8,850 

D Corporate Services 165 0 0 

E Council Wide 6,493 2,180 544 

F Environment Culture & Communities 20,185 8,956 6,509 

 Total Capital Programme 72,535 31,395 15,903 

 Externally Funded 17,498 14,096 11,014 

 Total request for Council funding 55,037 17,299 4, 889 

 
Externally Funded Schemes 

 
5.31 A number of external funding sources are also available to fund schemes within the 

capital programme.  External support has been identified from two main sources: 
 
Government Grants 
A number of capital schemes attract specific grants.  It is proposed that all such 
schemes should be included in the capital programme at the level of external 
funding that is available.  
 
A significant element of the grant-funded capital programme relates to the planned 
investment in Schools. The schools investment programme included in this report 
reflects the highest priority schemes identified by the Department and the Education 
Capital Programme Board. Excluding Binfield Learning Village, the total identified 
investment for Schools is £10.030m. 
 
A second key constituent of capital grant funding relates to the Highway 
Maintenance and Integrated Transport Block. Grant approvals of £2.28m are 
currently anticipated for 2016/17. 

 
Section 106 (£2.092m) 
Each year the Council enters into a number of agreements under Section 106 of the 
Town & Country Planning Act 1990 by which developers make a contribution 
towards the cost of providing facilities and infrastructure that may be required as a 
result of their development.  Usually the monies are given for work in a particular 
area and/or for specific projects.  The total money available at present, which is not 
financially committed to specific projects, is £3.8m, although conditions restricting its 
use will apply to almost all of this. 
 

  Officers have identified a number of schemes that could be funded from Section 106 
funds in 2016/17, where funding becomes available. These are summarised below 



 
 
 

Department  Schemes  Budget  
  £000 

ASCHH Affordable Housing 501 
CYPL Various School Schemes 601 
ECC Leisure & Culture 125 
ECC Local Transport Plan 865 

 Total  2,092 
 
  The level of new funding available through Section 106 is expected to reduce in the 

future following the introduction of the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). 
However the more flexible CIL funding should offset this reduction. 

 
  On-going Revenue Costs 
5.32 Schemes may have associated on-going revenue costs and tend to become 

payable in the year after implementation. As such these costs will be included within 
the Council’s Commitment Budget for 2016/17. These total £36,000 and relate to 
the licence and maintenance contracts associated with the new IT hardware 
investment. 
 

  2015/16 CYPL (Schools) Capital Programme 
5.33 The CYPL Education Capital Programme is monitored on a monthly basis to assess 

progress against individual schemes and to track issues that impact on the costs 
and progress of schemes in the programme; e.g. inflationary pressures, planning 
delays, changes to requirements.  This process leads to recommendations being 
put to the Education Capital Programme Board (ECPB) to approve virements within 
the programme at its regular meetings, enabling the impact of such issues to be 
best managed. 
 

5.34 At its meetings in June and September the ECPB approved a number of virements 
to the allocation of Basic Need Grant within the programme which exceeded £0.25m 
in value; thereby requiring the final approval of the full Council.  The Borough 
Treasurer has delegated authority to give final approval for virements up to this 
amount.  The net change to the programme as a result of these changes is nil.  The 
detailed schemes for which final approval is required is set out in Annex G 
 

5.35 To ensure that the council is able to provide sufficient school places, advance 
design for new schemes is sometimes required ahead of a final decision on the 
individual schemes themselves.  One such scheme is that of the proposed rebuild 
and expansion of the Ascot Heath Schools and in order to incur spending against 
this project, approval is sought for the scheme to be added to the 2015-16 capital 
programme. 
 

5.36 There is the potential to move both the infant and junior schools into a single, 
bespoke building offering the opportunity to increase capacity in each of the infant 
and junior schools to 3FE from 2FE.  Each school would occupy its own self 
contained wing within the single building.  The scheme would involve a land swap 
for use of the existing school site by the developer for a housing project.  However 
this scheme is still in its early stages and is subject to further consultation and 
planning permission. It is expected this scheme will require initial funding of £0.05m 
which is proposed to be financed from unallocated Basic Need Grant.  Approval is 
being sought as Financial Regulations require Council approval to add new 
schemes to the capital programme. 
 

   



 
Funding Options 

5.37 Following the transfer of the housing stock in 2008, the Council’s capital receipts are 
limited to miscellaneous asset sales, the contribution from the VAT Shelter Scheme 
and Right-to-Buy claw back agreed as part of the transfer and the new Community 
Infrastructure Levy (CIL).   

 
5.38 The Council introduced CIL in April 2015 and it is expected that this will begin to 

generate capital receipts in the latter half of 2015/16. It is difficult to estimate the 
potential amount of CIL that will be generated as this will depend on the delivery of 
additional housing development in the Borough, which is to a large extent outside of 
the control of the authority. However based on the most recent housing trajectory 
estimates and knowledge of development schemes that will come forward in the 
next 18 months, it is estimated that £2m is an appropriate assumption for 2016/17. 
 

5.39 The Council will also be bringing forward the sale of land at Sandy Lane during 
2016/17. The aim is to market the land with the benefit of outline planning 
permission which should maximise the potential receipt. However this will increase 
the time taken to dispose of the site and at this stage it is not certain that this can be 
achieved in 2016/17, as such it has been excluded from the projected value of 
receipts in 2016/17. It is also hoped that other small scale miscellaneous receipts 
will arise over the year. 
 

5.40 The proposed capital programme for 2016/17 has been developed, therefore, on the 
assumption that it will be funded by a combination of £5m of capital receipts, 
Government grants, other external contributions and borrowing.  The financing costs 
associated with the Capital Programme have been provided for in the Council’s 
revenue budget plans. Should any additional capital receipts be generated in 
2016/17 the interest earned on these will be used to mitigate the revenue cost of the 
capital programme. 

 
5.41 Given the level of investment proposed in 2016/17, in particular Binfield Learning 

Village and Coral Reef, it is inevitable that the Council will be required to borrow 
externally over the short-to-medium term. The timing of this will depend on the level 
of surplus cash held by the Council which will be used in the first instance to fund 
the Capital Programme commitments.  

 
5.42 The use of these monies is known as internal borrowing and the Capital Finance 

regulations require the Council, through the General Fund, to set aside an amount, 
the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP), which would be broadly equivalent to the 
amount the Council would need to re-pay if it borrowed externally.  Any external 
borrowing will also require MRP in addition to an interest charge depending on the 
maturity of the loan. 
 

5.43 If any amendments are made to the capital programme, the revenue consequences 
will need to be adjusted accordingly. Executive Members will therefore need to 
consider the impact of the capital programme as part of the final revenue budget 
decisions. 

 
5.44 Following the introduction of the Prudential Borrowing regime local authorities are 

able to determine the level of their own capital expenditure with regard only to 
affordability on the revenue account.  In practice this represents the amount of 
borrowing they can afford to finance, and will necessitate taking a medium-term 
view of revenue income streams and capital investment needs.   

 
5.45 To achieve its aim of ensuring that capital investment plans are affordable, prudent 

and sustainable, the Local Government Act requires all local authorities to set and 



 
keep under review a series of prudential indicators included in the CIPFA Prudential 
Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities. The Capital Programme 
recommended in this report can be sustained and is within the prudential guidelines. 
Full Council will need to agree the prudential indicators for 2016/17 to 2018/19 in 
February 2016, alongside its consideration of the specific budget proposals for 
2016/17 and the Council’s medium-term financial prospects. 

 
5.46 Members will need to carefully balance the level of the Capital Programme in future 

years against other revenue budget pressures and a thorough review, including the 
prioritisation of those schemes planned for 2017/18 onwards, will need to be 
undertaken during next summer.  

 
6 ADVICE RECEIVED FROM STATUTORY AND OTHER OFFICERS  
 
 Borough Solicitor 
6.1 The authorisation for incurring capital expenditure by local authorities is contained in 

the legislation covering the service areas.  Controls on capital expenditure are 
contained in the Local Government Act 2003 and regulations made thereunder. 

 
 Borough Treasurer 
6.2 The financial implications are contained within the report. 
 

Equalities Impact Assessment 
6.3 The Council’s final budget proposals will potentially impact on all areas of the 

community.  A detailed consultation process is planned in order to provide 
individuals and groups with the opportunity to comment on the draft proposals.  This 
will ensure that in making final recommendations, the Executive can be made aware 
of the views of a broad section of residents and service users.   Where necessary, 
impact assessments on specific schemes within the capital programme will be 
undertaken before work commences. 

 
Strategic Risk Management Issues 

6.4 The most significant risk facing the Council is the impact of the capital programme 
on the revenue budget.  The scale of the Council’s Capital Programme for 2016/17 
will impact upon the revenue budget and will itself be subject to consultation over 
the coming weeks. All new spending on services will need to be funded from new 
capital receipts or borrowing from internal resources. This effect is compounded by 
future year’s capital programmes.  As revenue resources are limited it is clear that a 
capital programme of this magnitude is not sustainable in the medium term without 
significant revenue economies.  The generation of capital receipts in future years 
may mitigate the impact on the revenue budget, but as the timing and scale of these 
receipts is uncertain their impact is unlikely to be significant. 

 
6.5 There are also a range of risks that are common to all capital projects which include: 

• Tender prices exceeding the budget 
• Planning issues and potential delays 
• Uncertainty of external funding  
• Building delays due to unavailability of materials or inclement weather 
• Availability of staff with appropriate skills to implement schemes  

 
6.6 These can be managed through the use of appropriate professional officers and 

following best practice in project management techniques. The report also identifies 
the risk associated with the shortfall in maintenance expenditure compared to that 
identified by the latest condition surveys. With only those highest priorities receiving 
funding in 2016/17, there will be a further build up in the maintenance backlog and a 



 
risk that the deterioration in Council assets will hamper the ability to deliver good 
services. 

 
7 CONSULTATION 
 
7.1 The Overview & Scrutiny Commission will be consulted on the budget proposals 

and may also choose to direct specific issues to individual overview and scrutiny 
panels.  Targeted consultation exercises will be undertaken with business rate 
payers, the Schools Forum, town and parish councils and voluntary organisations.  
Comments and views will be sought on both the overall budget package and on the 
detailed budget proposals.  In addition, this report and all the supporting information 
are publicly available to any individual or group who wish to comment on any 
proposal included within it.  To facilitate this, the full budget package will be placed 
on the Council’s web site at http://consult.bracknell-forest.gov.uk/portal. There will 
also be a dedicated mailbox to collect comments. 

 
7.2 The timetable for the approval of the 2016/17 Budget is as follows 
 

Executive agree proposals as basis for consultation 15 December 2015 
Consultation period 
  

16 December 2015 - 
31 January 2016 

Executive considers representations made and 
recommends budget. 

9 February 2016 

Council considers Executive budget proposals 24 February 2016 
 
Background Papers 
None 
 
Contact for further information 
Alan Nash -01344 352180 
alan.nash@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
 
Calvin Orr – 01344 352125 
calvin.orr@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
 



Annex A

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 TOTAL
£000 £000 £000 £000

Committed 895 495 425 1,815

Unavoidable 1,141 821 935 2,897

Town Centre Highway Works 2,000 2,000 2,000 6,000

Maintenance 2,165 470 470 3,105

Rolling Programme / Other Desirable 1,853 939 59 2,851

Council Funding 8,054 4,725 3,889 16,668

LED Streetlight Replacement 3,650 0 0 3,650

Town Centre Improvements 3,300 1,700 0 5,000

Local Housing Company 6,020 0 0 6,020

Coral Reef Roof & Flumes 8,358 574 0 8,932

Binfield Learning Village 23,300 10,300 1,000 34,600

Magistrates Court Building 775 0 0 775

Invest-to-Save Scheme 1,580 0 0 1,580

Total Council Funding 55,037 17,299 4,889 77,225

Total External Funding 17,498 14,096 11,014 42,608

Total Capital Programme 72,535 31,395 15,903 119,833

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 TOTAL
£000 £000 £000 £000

ASCH 9,227 500 0 9,727

CYPL 36,465 19,759 8,850 65,074

Corporate Services 165 0 0 165

Council Wide 6,493 2,180 544 9,217

ECC 20,185 8,956 6,509 35,650

Total Capital Programme 72,535 31,395 15,903 119,833

External Funding 17,498 14,096 11,014 42,608

Council Funding 55,037 17,299 4,889 77,225

CAPITAL PROGRAMME - BY CATEGORY

CAPITAL PROGRAMME - ALL DEPARTMENTS



Annex D

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19
£000 £000 £000

Committed
0 0 0
0 0 0

Unavoidable
Financial Systems Upgrade (Agresso) 50 0 0

50 0 0
Maintenance

See Council Wide 0 0 0
0 0 0

Rolling Programme / Other Desirable 
Disposal of Land at Sandy Lane 100 0 0
Capita Payment Portal - Surcharge Module 15 0 0

115 0 0

TOTAL REQUEST FOR COUNCIL FUNDING 165 0 0

External Funding 

TOTAL EXTERNAL FUNDING 0 0 0

CAPITAL PROGRAMME - CORPORATE SERVICES / CHIEF EXEC UTIVE



Annex D 

1 

Corporate Services and Chief Executive  - New Schem es 
 
Financial System (Agresso) Upgrade  £50,000 

 
The Council relies on Agresso as its primary accounting and financial reporting 
system, delivering a General Ledger, Accounts Payable and Receivable function that 
is used to manage, control and report on the Council’s expenditure, as well as deliver 
on its statutory financial reporting requirements. 
 
The current version of Agresso used by the Council, Version 5.5, went out of 
“support” in December 2013. Whist Unit4 still provide maintenance for the software, it 
is no longer being developed or patched, and the vendor will no longer provide any 
updates. The current stable release, Milestone 4 will go out of support in November 
2016, and as such Unit4 are delivering Milestone 5 to new clients which will be the 
preferred route for the Council. 
 
 
Capita Payment Portal - Surcharge 
Modules 

£15,000 
 

All payments that are received electronically via a credit or debit card are charged a 
surcharge (cost of transaction processing) by the card provider. This charge has 
always been met by the Council. These costs are escalating, and following the 
introduction of an EU (European Union) cap on charges the costs associated with 
debit card payments will in future be charged at a % of the transaction amount, 
having previously been a fixed charge. This will increase the charge for the use of 
debit cards both electronically, on-line and over the phone. The debit card surcharge 
rate is currently lower than the rate for credit card payments, although this may well 
increase over time.  The Council receives the majority of payments on-line via a debit 
card; there has been a 16% increase in 2014/15 over the previous year, showing 
evidence that payments received electronically are increasing substantially as 
customers are more mobile, wish to use self service and carry out automated 
payments. 
 
The Capita Payment Portal, a hosted system used to administer payments, such as 
Council tax or Planning applications, provides modules for passing this surcharge on 
to customers, rather than the Council meeting the cost. This is a practice adopted by 
many other service providers. The Payment Portal is being upgraded during 2015 
and the introduction of passing on the transaction surcharge to the customer will be 
introduced, if approved, during Q2 of 2016. 
 
The surcharging modules can be set up to pass on the charge for credit cards, or for 
debit cards, or for both.  Currently the use of credit cards is expected to cost the 
authority approx. £40,000 in 2015/2016.  The cost of the use of debit cards over the 
same period is expected to be in the region of £21,000. Failure to implement the 
surcharging modules would result in a significant pressure on the Revenue budget, 
as the allocated budget falls far short of the costs anticipated in 2015/2016 and 
2016/2017.  The proposal at this point is to implement the surcharging for credit 
cards, and to review the situation with debit cards in due course, with the option to 
implement that at a later date. Any decision to pass on this charge may require 
Members’ approval. 
 
The licence cost is £12,000 and will have a revenue support charge of £500 per year. 
The total cost of this module is estimated to be £15,000, allowing for consultancy and 
set-up charges. 



Annex E

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 TOTAL
£000 £000 £000 £000

Committed
Town Centre Redevelopment 3,300 1,400 0 4,700
Town Centre Redevelopment - Stamp Duty 0 300 0 300

3,300 1,700 0 5,000
Unavoidable

Microsoft Office  Licences 60 0 0 60
Multi Functional Device & Desktop Printer Refresh 24 24 20 68
Network Refresh 57 50 50 157
Server Refresh 45 98 35 178
Desktop Services Estate Management 423 269 430 1,122
Server Anti-Virus/Intrusion Prevention 65 0 0 65
Access Improvement Programme (Equalities Act) 35 0 0 35
Asbestos 30 30 0 60

739 471 535 1,745
Maintenance

Buildings Planned Maintenance Programme 1,670 n/a n/a 1,670
1,670 0 0 1,670

Rolling Programme / Other Desirable 
Purchase of Magistrates' Court Building 775 0 0 775
Replacement of JEL Building Mgt System Controls 9 9 9 27

784 9 9 802

TOTAL REQUEST FOR COUNCIL FUNDING 6,493 2,180 544 9,217

External Funding 

TOTAL EXTERNAL FUNDING 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CAPITAL PROGRAMME 6,493 2,180 544 9,217

CAPITAL PROGRAMME - COUNCIL WIDE



Annex E 

1 

Council Wide – New Schemes 
 
 
Microsoft Office licences  £60,000 

 
The Council has 1,650 workstations that previously had Microsoft Office 2003 
installed. The licencing that covered this with made up from two areas; 1,400 x Office 
2010 licences and 250 x Office 2003 Licences. When the Council upgraded 
corporately to Office 2010 there was a shortfall of 250 Office 2010 licences. An 
initiative to acquire “recycled” Office 2010 licences from the Crown Commercial 
Services has not been possible, and as such full licences will need to be purchased.  
 
 
Multi Functional Device Refresh, 
Desktop Printer Refresh, plotter 

£24,000 
 

Following a recent tender process for MFDs, local printers and network printers, 
Konica Minolta was awarded a four year contract (2014-2017) that allows Bracknell 
Forest Council and Schools under BFC Local Authority control to purchase printers 
and MFDs at the lowest possible purchase price and click rates for day to day 
printing. Since the contract was awarded, the Bracknell Forest Council estate now 
has 54 Konica devices which the user base has reported as having a better print 
quality and cheaper click rates, reducing the on-going revenue costs for each 
department. 
 
It is not proposed to refresh all the Ricoh MFDs in the financial year 2016/17 and 
2017/18 as some MFDs will only be 3-4 years old and the print volumes on the these 
MFDs will still be very low as some are located at small remote locations where only 
a handful of staff are based. The budget request is based on a strategy of refreshing 
MFD’s & printers were hardware is old / printer failures are frequent and colour is 
required. A list of MFDs and Printers was reviewed by the ICT Steering Group and 
the budget request was deemed appropriate. 
 
 
Network Refresh     £57,000 

 
Funding is required to cover a number of ICT Network infrastructure replacements to 
ensure equipment is both current and supportable. The budget is also to maintain the 
network and ensure that it has the capacity to serve the business in the forthcoming 
budget year. 
 
The replacements include 13 Local Area Network (LAN) switches, 1 Digital 
Subscriber Line Access Multiplexer (DSLAM- equipment used to connect smaller 
remote sites), various IP Telephone handsets, and various  battery back-up/ 
Uninterruptable Power Supplies (UPS) that were all procured prior to 2010 and are 
now obsolete and out of support. 
 
When the above devices go end of life, they will no longer receive any software 
updates including bug fixes, and no faults will be investigated by the manufacturer or 
their agents. The GCSX/PSN code of connection forbids the use of unsupported 
software or hardware on our network and therefore we would be at risk of losing our 
connected status, causing loss of access to services such as GCSX email, DWP, and 
NHS’s RiO etc. if these devices are not replaced.  
 
 



Annex E 

2 

 
Server Refresh    £45,000 

 
Proposal for budget to cover a number of ICT infrastructure replacements to ensure 
equipment is both current and supportable and to provide consultation to support the 
design of the new Citrix farm. The budget is also to maintain the server hardware 
estate and ensure that it has the capacity to serve the business in the forthcoming 
budget year. 
 
The replacements include battery replacements for the Time Square Server Room 
Uninterruptable Power Supply (UPS) that was procured prior to 2008 and is now end 
of life. The remainder of the hardware costs is for servers coming out of warranty in 
2016/17.  
 
Consultancy costs will be incurred required for the update of the Citrix Farm, as the 
current version is unsupported from 2016 and will no longer receive any software 
updates including bug fixes, and no faults will be investigated by the manufacturer or 
their agents. 
 
 
Desktop Services Estate Management  £358,000 

 
It is clear that rather than expecting Directorates to try and build contingency in to 
already stretched budgets to deal with in-year changes to requirements, Corporate 
ICT should be responsible for managing and funding of desktop equipment. This 
includes new starters, changes to work styles and mobile solutions. During 
2015/2016 Corporate ICT carried out a piece of work to bring all laptops and 
desktops out on the estate up to the maximum warranty of 5 years. However on-
going additions to the estate are required on an annual basis. This budget request is 
broken down into the following areas: 
 
Computer Refresh 
 
252 laptops - £202,000 
4 desktops - £2,000 
Maintenance total - £58,000 
 
This equates to about 30% of the laptop estate that will be 5 years old during 2016/7. 
The Communication and Marketing team has an Apple Mac Pro that needs to be 
refreshed. Based on previous years there will be a requirement for a maintenance 
budget for equipment damaged or that fails in the year but was not due to be 
replaced.  
 
Dual Monitors & Monitor refresh 
There are more requests coming in asking for dual monitor to be implemented in 
certain teams. In the past this has been funded by the directorates who required 
them but now this is to be funded corporately. There have been discussions with 
ASCH&H, CYP&L and ECC who are looking to expand on usage of dual monitors to 
improve productivity. It should be noted that CYP&L and EC&C have had a 
programme of providing dual monitors where required. To date this has not been the 
cases in ASCH&H. Funds are also required to maintain a stock of monitors for 
hardware failures.  
Total = £20,000 
  



Annex E 

3 

Loan Projector Refresh 
 
While the meeting rooms at the council offices have had ICT equipment refreshed in 
2015 the loan projector hardware was not. These projectors are held by the ICT 
Helpdesk and Customer Services and loaned out to staff where they are holding 
meetings or conferences away from council buildings. There is a need to refresh the 
loan projector stock as none of the current stock has the correct connectors for a 
large proportion of our laptop estate to connect to them. 
 
Total = £3,000 
 
Mobile Devices 
 
Blackberry users are currently tied into 2 year contracts (Aug-Dec 2016 approx. end 
dates). Having reviewed previous working styles it is estimated that there could be as 
many as 30 new starters or working style changes who will need either an iPad or a 
Blackberry. The cost of an iPad is £390 per device and a Blackberry is £30 per 
device. Please note this does depend on the outcome of ongoing Mobile Technology 
project 
 
Total = £12,000 
 
New Starter and Working Style Change Requests 
 
Using service request information from 2014/2015 it is estimated that there will be up 
to 40 new starter requests and 10 working style changes that will require the 
procurement of additional ICT equipment. We will continue to carefully monitor actual 
numbers throughout the year. 
 
Total = £61,000 
 
 
Server  Anti -Virus  /Intrusion 
Prevention 

£65,000 
 

Funding is required to cover the procurement of a system to help defend the BFC 
server estate against security vulnerabilities. Currently, each server has an Anti-Virus 
(AV) program installed on the Microsoft Windows Operating System (OS). This 
program can scan the server for malicious files, controlled by a central policy. 
 
We are seeing increasing vulnerabilities in our systems mainly due to business 
applications not being updated by the vendors, and in many cases we are unable to 
apply critical software patches issued for Java, Oracle, etc. because the vendor has 
not validated their software against the latest versions. 
 
This situation leaves us with outstanding vulnerabilities that are then flagged up by 
our annual PSN health-check. To help mitigate these vulnerabilities, we can use a 
different technology to protect our servers and applications that adds an Intrusion 
Prevention System (IPS) to the AV component. Although not a panacea for all of our 
server security vulnerabilities, this new system would add another layer of defence 
and help us achieve and maintain compliance with PSN (and PCI-DSS if required). 
 
  



Annex E 

4 

 
Access Improvement Programme  £35,000 

 
Access Improvement is an annual programme of construction works to improve the 
accessibility of our corporate buildings for people with disabilities. Originally designed 
to ensure that our publically accessible buildings met the appropriate standards, its’ 
scope has been expanded in recent years to include all corporate buildings. The 
works included in the programme are identified though access audits undertaken at 
each property. Most of our buildings have been surveyed in this fashion although a 
small number remain outstanding due to changes in usage and responsibilities.   
 
The works identified by audits range from small items like signage and decorations 
up to complete new installations of facilities such as ramps, toilets and lifts. 
 
The works proposed for 2016/17 include the following properties: 
 
- The Oaks Children’s Centre 
- Wick Hill Cottage 
- The Willows Children’s Centre 
- Margaret Wells-Furby Centre 
- New Hope 
 
 
Asbestos Control  £30,000 

 
A budget is required to cover any asbestos removal or encapsulating works in 
corporate properties that is identified in future Asbestos Management Surveys. The 
surveys are currently being carried out and started in April 2015. The survey 
programme will be phased over three years. £30k has been allocated for this 
financial year (2015/2016) but further funding for asbestos removal works will be 
required for the next two years of the programme (2016/2017 & 2017/2018). 
  
This is a Health & Safety compliance issue. In April 2012 the Control of Asbestos 
Regulations (CAR) 2006 were amended resulting in changes to the licensing 
category of certain types of Asbestos Containing Materials (ACMs). 
 
 
Buildings Planned Maintenance  £1,670,000 

 
Buildings planned maintenance is an annual programme of repairs and maintenance 
to the Councils’ building stock and associated assets. It encompasses a wide range 
of activities but typically includes the repair or replacement of elements of building 
fabric, fixtures or fittings that are worn, obsolete or otherwise damaged. The purpose 
of the work is to maintain the Councils’ buildings to a sufficient standard to provide a 
safe and appropriate environment from which its’ various services can operate. 
 
The works included in the programme are identified through a series of condition 
surveys, which are currently undertaken on our behalf by external engineers and 
surveyors. The present arrangement generally allows for each property to be 
surveyed every five years and we are currently three years into our first five year 
programme. As a consequence, a combination of both new and much older data is 
used in the creation of each individual programme. The backlog figures shown in the 
supporting data have been arrived at following detailed analysis of all of our condition 
survey records as well as consideration of wider property issues and intentions.  



Annex E 

5 

 
As such, based on previous instructions or knowledge of impending project works, 
the values of maintenance works to the following properties are not  included: 
 
• Commercial Centre 
• Coopers Hill 
• Easthampstead House 
• Eastern Road 
• Edgbarrow Sports Centre 
• Harmans Water Community Centre  
• Heathlands Residential and Day Centres 
• High Street Car Park 
• Ladybank (Bridgewell) 
• North Ascot Youth Centre 
• Sandhurst Sports Centre 
• Whitegrove Youth Centre 
• Commercial properties let on full repairing leases 
 
With the above properties excluded, the estimated value of the remaining high 
priority works currently stands at £1.67m. 
 
 
Purchase of Magistrates’ Court 
Building 

£775,000 
 

 
Funding is requested to acquire the former magistrates’ court at £650,000 for the 
freehold premises. The Council is seeking to acquire this site to join with its own 
holdings for a significant and comprehensive future phase to support the 
development and vitality of the new town centre. There will be limited provision for 
some claw-back if sold/developed within 3 years, but this is unlikely to happen. 
Funding for this request also includes legal costs (£15,000), stamp-duty (£35,000) 
and refurbishment costs (£75,000) needed if the property is to be used pending any 
future redevelopment. 
 
 
Replacement of JEL Building Mgt 
System Controls 

£9,000 
 

 
The scope of this project involves replacing existing JEL BMS controls in Corporate 
Buildings namely libraries, Crematorium and Community Centres by up to date 
modern BMS controls with IT network capability or Conventional controls. The JEL 
systems are typically used for heating, hot water and boiler plant control. All of JEL 
systems for these buildings are not linked back to the JEL  central supervisor in 
Times Square as such they are not monitored for heating coming on outside hours 
etc.  It has been found that for controls that are not remotely monitored-heating has 
been found to left on out of hours, left on during public holidays and during the 
Summer period. In addition controller time is typically is 1 hour out due to BST/GMT 
changeover. 
 





                                                     Unrestricted                                          

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
CORPORATE 
PERFORMANCE 
OVERVIEW 
REPORT 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Q2 2015 - 16 
July - September 2015 
 
Chief Executive: 
Timothy Wheadon 



 

Corporate Performance Overview Report – 2015/16 Quarter 2 Page 2 

Contents 
 
Section 1: Chief Executive’s Commentary ....................................................... 3 

Section 2: Key Performance Indicators ............................................................ 8 

Section 3: Corporate Health ........................................................................... 18 

A) Summary of Complaints ......................................................................... 18 

B) Audits with Limited or No Assurance Opinions ...................................... 19 

C) Summary of People ............................................................................... 19 

D) Summary of Money ................................................................................ 21 

 



 

Corporate Performance Overview Report – 2015/16 Quarter 2 Page 3 

Section 1: Chief Executive’s Commentary 
 

1 Introduction 
 
1. This report sets out an overview of the Council’s performance for the second quarter of 

2015/16 (July - September 2015). The purpose is to provide the Executive with a high-
level summary of key achievements, and to highlight areas where performance is not 
matching targets or expectations, along with any remedial action that is being taken. It 
complements the detailed Quarterly Service Reports (QSRs) produced by each 
Director, which were circulated to Members in November.  
 

2. Overall, good progress has been made against the actions in the departmental service 
plans. At the end of the quarter progress showed  
 

▪ 14 actions (5.7% of the total) are complete; 

▪ 211 actions (85.8%) are on target;  

▪ 20 actions (8.1%) either have not yet started or where they have been started 
there is a possibility that they may fall behind schedule;  

▪ 1 action (0.4%) is behind schedule.  
 

3. Section 2 of this report contains information on the key performance indicators across 
the Council. Again the picture is generally positive, showing that the current status for 
the Council’s indicators is: 

 

▪ 42 (79.2%) green – i.e. on, above or within 5% of target; 

▪ 4 (7.5%) amber – i.e. between 5% and 10% of target; 

▪ 7 (13.2%) red – i.e. more than 10% from target. 
 

 
2 Overview of the 2nd quarter 

 
1. The key performance measures show that overall the Council is performing well with a 

number of areas where performance is good or has improved. Notable highlights from 
the performance information shows: 

 

 There has been increasing success in closing the gap in achievement for pupils 
in receipt of Pupil Premium funding at KS2 but a continued focus is needed on 
KS1 and KS4. Attainment targets are being reviewed to signify the Council’s 
efforts in closing the gap in attainment between those pupils receiving the grant 
and their peers. 

 Outcomes for Looked after Children continue to improve with four of seven 
pupils achieving the national benchmark of Level 4 in reading, writing and maths 
at the end of KS2. At the end of KS4, all of the 12 students (six of whom had a 
SEN statement) secured at least one A*- G at GCSE and 33.3% achieved at 
least 5 A* - C (including English and Maths).  

 The proportion of people with dementia who received a diagnosis has exceeded 
national targets and is the second best rate in the south central region. Work will 
continue to build on this recent success in collaboration with colleagues in the 
NHS and voluntary sector. 

 90% of all major planning applications, 95% of all minor application and 96% of 
other applications with an extension of time were determined within agreed 



 

Corporate Performance Overview Report – 2015/16 Quarter 2 Page 4 

timescales - an increase on the last quarter. This is the second quarter in a row 
to have shown improved performance. 

 The number of Looked after Children has decreased for the fifth quarter in a row 
to 99, down from 112 in Q2 2014/15. This almost certainly, in part at least 
reflects the measures the Council has adopted over the last three years to invest 
in early intervention and to improve the resilience of the Children’s Social Care 
workforce. 

 The percentage of adults with learning disabilities who live in their own home or 
with their family has increased over the past three quarters and now stands at 
89.8% against a target of 85%.   

 
2.2 Within a large and diverse organisation like the Council, there will inevitably be a small 

number of areas where performance did not match targets. The most noteworthy are as 
follows: 

 

 The number of household nights in B&B across the quarter remains high. A 
review of the Council approach to procuring accommodation compared to the 
best performing similar Councils is being undertaken. Dedicated accommodation 
officers will work for a six week period to increase access to private rented 
sector property. Adverts for the Council's leasing scheme and proactive 
investigation of options via planning consents and agents will be undertaken. 
Meanwhile progress continues with work to establish a new Council owned 
housing company, Downshire Homes, and the purchase of Tenterden Lodge to 
provide emergency temporary accommodation has been completed. 

 The delayed transfers of care and delayed transfers of care attributable to social 
care from hospital are still above target. Numbers are however small - delayed 
transfers of care accounted for 13.9 people per 100,000 against a target of 8 
and delayed transfers of care attributable to social care accounted for 8.6 people 
per 100,000 against a target of 5. In terms of bed days this was 795.7 against a 
target of 571.5. This is however not just a local issue as there is a national 
problem with securing appropriate places to move discharged patients on to. 
Discharge monitoring is being carried out to review working practices and 
timescales from first notification to first assessment visit, through to support plan, 
ready for discharge and actual discharge. In addition, a more detailed review is 
being undertaken of potential additional ways of increasing capacity to support 
people discharged from hospital. It is also worth noting that, whilst the absolute 
numbers of delayed transfers have increased, the proportionate increase in 
referrals to the in-reach team from the acute hospitals has increased at a far 
greater rate and so the percentage of referrals actually leading to a delay has in 
fact reduced. 

 Permanent admissions to residential or nursing care for 18 – 64 year olds is 
above target, however, the numbers involved are very small and therefore one 
person being admitted can make the difference between achieving target or not. 
Work continues to ensure that admissions are kept as low as possible. 

 The overall number of visits to libraries is still below target largely due to a 
reduced usage at the main Bracknell town centre library. This is an obvious and 
predictable consequence of the significant building works in the town centre and 
the isolated position of the library. It is, however, at this stage important to 
maintain the full range of opening hours. 

 The number of reported incidents of Nuisance Anti Social Behaviour is 
cumulatively 6% below the target for the year. The quarter 2 figures were largely 
on target but the year to date position has been affected by the Q1 figure being 
over 10% below target. Vehicle nuisance is the most reported nuisance ASB 
with parking accounting for 715 incidents. Reports revolving around substance 



 

Corporate Performance Overview Report – 2015/16 Quarter 2 Page 5 

misuse equate to 305 with the reports being split equally between suspicion of 
drug dealing and drug use. Complaints about parking and suspicion/observation 
of drug dealing have been fed in to the police Joint Tasking meetings and the 
partnership are using a problem solving approach to address these issues. 

 66.7% of Special Educational Needs statements were issued within 26 weeks 
against a target of 90%. 8 statements had exceptions placed upon them, 4 
within the timescales and 4 of which were issued outside of the timescales. All 4 
exceptions outside of timescales were because further advice was requested in 
order to complete the assessment process. Again a review of current practice is 
underway to try to minimise the number of delays. 

 
2.3 Other issues of note since the beginning of the quarter are: 
 

 On 20 October the Executive recommended the new Council Plan to Council. 
The plan sets out a fundamentally different "narrative" for the council, together 
with six new strategic themes for the next 4 years together with a package of key 
measures of success/performance indicators. The narrative reflects the 
challenging financial climate faced by the council.  

 In September the Executive agreed the Medium Term Financial Strategy. Initial 
five year budget projections have also been prepared.  

 Work on the Town Centre is progressing on programme. Charles Square is now 
hoarded off and an internal strip of the units is taking place before demolition 
begins. The steel works for the new Fenwicks department store will shortly be 
completed and the steelwork for Cineworld is now taking shape. Works on the 
roof/floors of the M&S department store are continuing.  

 A highly successful launch of the Lexicon brand for the new town centre 
development took place including stakeholder and community events. There 
were also the announcements of key retailers Next and River Island signing up 
to the regenerated town centre.  

 The RE3 partnership has now found an acceptable way to recycle the Borough's 
street sweepings and gully arisings as an alternative to landfill. A national ruling 
by the Environment Agency in 2012 lost the partnership circa 3% in its recycling 
rate and cost the partner Councils an additional circa £150k in landfill costs. 
Subject to the results of the trial the Council should recover some of this loss in 
coming months. A second trial is now under way to try to divert more waste from 
landfill using a new facility in Sutton Courtenay. This facility is known as a 'dirty 
materials recovery facility'. The material processed here is sorted for recycling 
(circa 10%) and the remainder is processed as refuse derived fuel (RDF). 
Subject to the trial not only will there be a slight improvement in recycling rates 
but also a small saving on disposal costs. 

 School results are relatively positive for the academic year 2014-15 but only in 
line with national averages. There have been modest improvements in most 
areas, with a significant improvement in Early Years Foundation Stage. Also A*- 
B grades achieved at A level are now well above the national average.  

 The annual Bracknell Forest Careers event took place on 15 October involving 
almost 1,000 pupils from all six secondary schools in the borough and over 80 
exhibitors.  

 Fostering recruitment has continued this quarter with a specific focus on carers 
for teenagers. The training and support offered to foster carers in Q1 has 
enabled more teenagers to be placed with in-house foster carers.  

 CIL charging commenced on 6 April 2015 and Liability Notices have been issued 
totalling more £1million. The Council has also received its first commencement 
which will trigger a payment of CIL.  



 

Corporate Performance Overview Report – 2015/16 Quarter 2 Page 6 

 A new "Prevent" duty was introduced by the Counter Terrorism and Security Act 
in July 2015. To date over 400 staff have received training on their 
responsibilities under the Prevent agenda. 

 The Rise@GHC, the new learning centre for young people with specific learning 
needs opened with 8 pupils in year 7. The specialist unit which forms part of 
Garth Hill College is serving pupils aged 11-19 with high functioning autistic 
spectrum conditions living in Bracknell Forest and other local authorities.  

 

3 External inspections, audit and scrutiny 

 

3.1 The Britain in Bloom judging took place on Thursday 9th July resulting in a Gold medal 
for Bracknell and a Gold medal for South Hill Park in the new park category - best in 
Thames and Chiltern Region.  

3.2 Eight of the borough’s parks, an increase of one over last year, have gained the 
prestigious Green Flag Award – the hallmark of excellent service in parks.   

3.3 The Council’s commitment to animal welfare was recognised by the RSPCA with two 
gold awards – one for contingency planning in the event of a civil emergency and 
another for how stray dogs are dealt with.   

3.4 The Council gained its second Award for the recycling scheme. There were 20 
categories in the Materials Recycling World (MRW) awards and BFC was selected from 
a short list of 8 as the outright winners for Local Authority Innovation.  

3.5 Larchwood had its first inspection in August under the new Children’s Homes 
Regulations 2015 and associated Quality Standards with an overall rating of 
‘Outstanding’. 

3.6 Overview and Scrutiny (O&S) activity included the provision of the remaining induction 
training for O&S members on: chairmanship skills; budget scrutiny; and a specialised 
induction session on health O&S. O&S Working Groups provided input to the draft 
Economic Strategy and the draft Local Enforcement Plan before Executive approval, 
and an O&S Member Workshop was held on the new Council Plan during its 
preparatory stage. Working Groups commenced on: Child Sexual Exploitation; 
Homelessness; and the Planning Function. Feedback from senior officers on the quality 
and usefulness of O&S reviews continues to be very positive with a 90% overall 
satisfaction rate to date. 

3.7 There were no directed surveillance operations under the Regulation of Investigatory 
Powers Act (RIPA) during the quarter. 

 

4. Strategic Risks 
 
4.1 The Strategic Risk Register was reviewed by the Corporate Management Team in 

August 2015 and by the Strategic Risk Management Group and Governance and Audit 
Committee in September 2015.  The key changes made to the Register during quarter 2 
were  

 
 To reduce the likelihood of risk 4 (Information Management and Information 

Technology) following PSN accreditation. 
 To increase the likelihood of risk 3 (Staffing) due to managing staff with reduced 

capacity   
 To reduce the likelihood score for risk 6 (major projects)  has been reduced and 

is no longer a red risk due to reduction in the risk score for risk 6b (The Care 
Act) given that phase 1 of the Care Act has been successfully implemented and 
phase 2 has been deferred. 

 To reduce the likelihood for risk 10 (Working with Partners) now that the 
management and staffing of umbrella support has stabilised  

mailto:Rise@GHC


 

Corporate Performance Overview Report – 2015/16 Quarter 2 Page 7 

 To create a specific new risk on economic development (previously incorporated 
into working with partners). 

 

5 Forward Look 
 

 The outcome of the Spending Review will be announced on 25 November and the 
Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement will follow in late December. Both 
will have a significant impact on the Council’s financial plans over the next four to 
five years, with particular reference to the emerging proposals around the future of 
business rates. 

 The Council’s budget proposals for 2016/17 will be finalised and published for 
consultation in December. 

 The Council will begin operating Tenterden lodge as emergency homeless 
accommodation. This will be beneficial for a number of homeless families as it is 
located within the Borough and also better for the Council in that it will generate 
savings of around £250 per household per week.  

 The Santa Catalina development will be let during the quarter. The new 
development of 6 flats (undertaken by Bracknell Forest Homes) has been leased to 
Advance housing (a specialist provider) to manage the homes for people with 
learning disabilities. 

 The public consultation on school catchment changes affecting changes to 
admission arrangements for 2017/18 entry, and likely changes in the longer term will 
close on 20 November. 

 A review of discretionary housing payment policy and social fund policy will take 
place to take account of the Universal credit changes. The consultation on proposed 
changes to the Council tax reduction scheme will conclude during the quarter.  

 Forestcare will launch a new range of services based mobile phone technology. To 
date the lifeline services have operated from fixed landline in customers’ homes. 
The new service provides a pendant/fob that monitors location and whether the 
person has fallen via a SIM card so that it is totally mobile. 

 
 
Timothy Wheadon 
Chief Executive 



 

Corporate Performance Overview Report – 2015/16 Quarter 2 Page 8 

Section 2: Key Performance Indicators 
 
Adult Social Care, Health and Housing  

 

Ind Ref Short Description 

Previous 
Figure 

Q1 
2015/16 

Current 
Figure 

Q2 
2015/16 

Current 
Target 

Current 
Status 

Comparison with 
same period in 
previous year 

ASCHH All Sections - Quarterly 

NI135 
Carers receiving needs assessment or 
review and a specific carer's service, 
or advice and information (Quarterly) 

10.9% 21.3% 20.0% 
  

OF2a.1 
Permanent admissions to residential 
or nursing care per 100,000 population 
18-64 (Quarterly) 

1.3 4.0 3.4 
  

OF2a.2 
Permanent admissions to residential 
or nursing care per 100,000 population 
65 or over (Quarterly) 

206.30 312.50 298.40 
  

L172 Timeliness of financial assessments 
(Quarterly) 100.0% 99.0% 95.0% 

  

L214 
Delayed transfers of care (delayed 
bed days) from hospital per 100,000 
population (Quarterly) 

1,132.0 
795.7 

(Jul-Aug 
only) 

571.5 
  

Community Mental Health Team - Quarterly 

OF1f 
Proportion of adults in contact with 
secondary mental health services in 
paid employment (Quarterly) 

Data is 
being 
challenged 
with the 
Info.Centre 

Data is 
being 
challenged 
with the 
Info.Centre 

13.0% N/A N/A 

OF1h 

Proportion of adults in contact with 
secondary mental health services 
living independently, with or without 
support (Quarterly) 

Data is 
being 
challenged 
with the 
Info.Centre 

Data is 
being 
challenged 
with the 
Info.Centre 

84.0% N/A N/A 

Community Response and Reablement - Quarterly 

OF2c.1 
Delayed transfers of care - total 
delayed transfers per 100,000 
population (Quarterly) 

14.4 
13.9 

(Apr-Jul 
only) 

8.0 
  

OF2c.2 
Delayed transfers of care - delayed 
transfers attributable to social care per 
100,000 population (Quarterly) 

7.8 
8.6 

(Apr-Aug 
only) 

5.0 
  

L135.1 
Percentage of Enhanced Intermediate 
Care Referrals seen within 2 hours 
(quarterly) 

100.0 100.0 95.0 
  

L135.2 

Occupational Therapy (OT) 
assessments that were completed 
within 28 days of the first contact 
(Quarterly) 

99.0% 98.3% 
No 

target 
set 

N/A 
 



 

Corporate Performance Overview Report – 2015/16 Quarter 2 Page 9 

Ind Ref Short Description 

Previous 
Figure 

Q1 
2015/16 

Current 
Figure 

Q2 
2015/16 

Current 
Target 

Current 
Status 

Comparison with 
same period in 
previous year 

Community Team for People with Learning Difficulties - Quarterly 

OF1e Adults with learning disabilities in paid 
employment (Quarterly) 16.7% 17.5% 15.0% 

  

OF1g 
Adults with learning disabilities who 
live in their own home or with their 
family (Quarterly) 

89.0% 89.3% 85.0% 
  

Housing - Benefits - Quarterly 

NI181 
Time taken to process Housing Benefit 
or Council Tax Benefit new claims and 
change events (Quarterly) 

8.0 7.0 9.0 
  

L033 
Percentage of customers receiving the 
correct amount of benefit (Sample 
basis) (Quarterly) 

97.8% 96.5% 98.0% 
  

Housing - Forestcare - Quarterly 

L030 Number of lifelines installed 
(Quarterly) 205 203 200 

  

Housing - Options - Quarterly 

NI155 Number of affordable homes delivered 
(gross) (Quarterly) 9 1 0 

  

L178 
Number of household nights in B&B 
across the quarter (Quarterly) 2,790 2,512 1,650 

  

L179 

The percentage of homeless or 
potentially homeless customers who 
the council helped to keep their home 
or find another one (Quarterly) 

89.09% 88.89% 85.00% 
  

 
 
Children, Young People & Learning 

 

Ind. Ref Short Description 

Previous 
Figure 

Q1 
2015/16 

Current 
Figure 

Q2 
2015/16 

Current 
Target 

Current 
Status 

Comparison with 
same period in 
previous year 

Children's Social Care - Quarterly 

NI043 

Young people within the Youth Justice 
System receiving a conviction in court 
who are sentenced to custody 
(Quarterly) 

0.09 0.09 0.00 
  

CSP9.01 
Reduce the reoffending rate of the 
Bracknell Forest local cohort of all 
young offenders (Quarterly) 

0.71 
(Freq) 

14.5% 
(Binary) 
Mar 15 

0.81 
(Freq) 

21.0% 
(Binary) 
Jun 15 

No 
target 

set 
N/A 

 



 

Corporate Performance Overview Report – 2015/16 Quarter 2 Page 10 

Ind. Ref Short Description 

Previous 
Figure 

Q1 
2015/16 

Current 
Figure 

Q2 
2015/16 

Current 
Target 

Current 
Status 

Comparison with 
same period in 
previous year 

L092 Number of children on protection plans 
(Quarterly) 109 94 

No 
target 

set 
N/A 

 

L140 
Percentage of children looked after in 
family placement or adoption 
(Quarterly) 

63% 66% 63% 
  

L161 
Number of looked after children 
(Quarterly) 101 99 

No 
target 

set 
N/A 

 

Learning and Achievement - Quarterly 

NI103.1 
Special Educational Needs - 
statements issued within 26 weeks - 
excluding exception cases (Quarterly) 

100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 
  

NI103.2 
Special Educational Needs - 
statements issued within 26 weeks - 
all cases (Quarterly) 

75.0% 66.7% 90.0% 
  

L139 Schools judged good or better by 
Ofsted (Quarterly) 

69% 69% 70% 
  

Strategy, Resources and Early Help - Quarterly 

NI067q 
Percentage of child protection cases 
which were reviewed within required 
timescales (Quarterly) 

100.0% 94.6% 98.0% 
  

L141 Number of youth centre attendances 
(Quarterly) 7,546 6,137 4,500 

  

L203 Number of Referrals to Early 
Intervention Hub (Quarterly) 

76 49 
No 

target 
set 

N/A 
 

L204 Number of CAF or Family CAFs 
undertaken (Quarterly) 57 47 

No 
target 

set 
N/A 

 

 
 
Corporate Services 

 

Ref Short Description 

Previous 
Figure 

Q1 
2015/16 

Current 
Figure 

Q2 
2015/16 

Current 
Target 

Current 
Status 

Comparison with 
same period in 
previous year 

Customer Services - Quarterly 

L051 Percentage of current year's Council 
tax collected in year (Quarterly) 

29.41% 56.93% 57.2% 
  

L053 
Percentage of current year's Business 
Rates collected in year (Quarterly) 31.80% 57.59% 53.6% 

  



 

Corporate Performance Overview Report – 2015/16 Quarter 2 Page 11 

L221 
Satisfaction level expressed in survey 
of contact with Customer Services, 
across all channels (Quarterly) 

100.0% 86.0% 75.0% 
  

Democratic and Registration Services - Quarterly 

L231 Number of entries on the Electoral 
Register (Quarterly) 87,537 87,054 

No 
target 

set  

New indicator for 
2015/16 

Finance - Quarterly 

BV8 Percentage of invoices paid within 30 
days (Quarterly) 

97.0% 96.5% 95.0% 
  

L065 Return on investments exceeds 7 day 
LA cash benchmark rate (Quarterly) 0.53% 0.57% 0.50% 

  

Legal Services - Quarterly 

L086.1 Number of Freedom of Information 
requests received (Quarterly) 261 266 

No 
target 

set 
N/A 

 

L086.2 

Percentage of Freedom of Information 
requests dispatched (where 50% or 
more of the request) was refused as 
the information is already publicly 
available (Quarterly) 

7% 9% 
No 

target 
set 

N/A 
 

L086.3 

Percentage of Freedom of Information 
requests dispatched which were 
refused because the time limit would 
be exceeded (Quarterly) 

1% 1% 
No 

target 
set 

N/A 
 

 
 
Chief Executive’s Office  

 

Ind Ref Short Description 

Previous 
Figure 

Q1 
2015/16 

Current 
Figure 

Q2 
2015/16 

Current 
Target 

Current 
Status 

Comparison with 
same period in 
previous year 

Community Safety - Quarterly 

CSP1.01 
Prevent a rise in the number of 
incidents of Burglary Dwelling 
(Quarterly) 

25 30 103 
  

CSP11.0
1 

Reduce the number of reported 
incidents of Nuisance ASB as per 
CADIS (Quarterly) 

1,074 1,977 1,857 
  

CSP2.01 

Reduce the number of reported 
criminal offences committed by the 
Domestic Abuse Service Co-ordination 
(DASC) cohorts (Quarterly) 

26 
Awaiting 

data 33 Not yet 
available 

Not yet available 

CSP7.02 
Reduce the number of reported 
incidents of theft of motor vehicle 
(Quarterly) 

14 14 15 
  

L185 Reduce all crime (Quarterly) 1,130 2,156 2,439 
  



 

Corporate Performance Overview Report – 2015/16 Quarter 2 Page 12 

Ind Ref Short Description 

Previous 
Figure 

Q1 
2015/16 

Current 
Figure 

Q2 
2015/16 

Current 
Target 

Current 
Status 

Comparison with 
same period in 
previous year 

Overview and Scrutiny - Quarterly 

L116 
Percentage of high level complaints 
dealt with in accordance with 
corporate standards (Quarterly) 

100% 89% 90% 
  

L132 
Cumulative number of local 
government ombudsman complaints 
requiring a local settlement (Quarterly) 

0 1 2 
  

 
 
Environment, Culture & Communities 

 

Ind Ref Short Description 

Previous 
Figure 

Q1 
2015/16 

Current 
Figure 

Q2 
2015/16 

Current 
Target 

Current 
Status 

Comparison with 
same period in 
previous year 

Environment & Public Protection - Quarterly 

NI191 
Residual household waste in kgs per 
household (Cumulative figure for 
14/15 reported quarterly in arrears) 

660 (Q4) 176 (Q1) 161 
  

NI192 

Percentage of household waste sent 
for reuse, recycling and composting 
(Cumulative figure for 14/15 reported 
quarterly in arrears) 

39.3%  
(Q4) 

38.9%  
(Q1) 

42.0% 
  

NI193 
Percentage of municipal waste land 
filled (Cumulative figure for 14/15 
reported quarterly in arrears) 

22.9%  
(Q4) 

21.6%  
(Q1) 25.0% 

  

L128 
Number of reported missed collections 
of waste (Quarterly) 139 185 180 

  

L146.1 
Percentage of borough where 
environmental cleanliness is above 
EPA standard - Litter (Quarterly) 

100.0% 100.0% 99.0% 
  

L146.2 
Percentage of borough where 
environmental cleanliness is above 
EPA standard - Detritus (Quarterly) 

100.0% 100.0% 97.0% 
  

L146.3 

Percentage of borough where 
environmental cleanliness is above 
EPA standard - Graffiti and Fly posting 
(Quarterly) 

100.0% 100.0% 99.0% 
  

L183 

Percentage of food establishments in 
Bracknell Forest rated 4 or above on 
the food hygiene rating scheme at the 
end of the quarter (Quarterly) 

84.8% 84.2% 80.0% 
  

L201 
Percentage of the Borough's 
households participating in recycling 
reward scheme (Quarterly) 

25.1% 25.6% 25.0% 
  

Leisure and Culture - Quarterly 



 

Corporate Performance Overview Report – 2015/16 Quarter 2 Page 13 

Ind Ref Short Description 

Previous 
Figure 

Q1 
2015/16 

Current 
Figure 

Q2 
2015/16 

Current 
Target 

Current 
Status 

Comparison with 
same period in 
previous year 

L003 Number of visits to leisure facilities 
(Quarterly) 592,827 996,855 1,000,00

0   

L017 Number of web enabled transactions 
in libraries (Quarterly) 43,275 85,464 84,348 

  

L018 Number of web enabled transactions 
in leisure (Quarterly) 

7,712 14,369 14,000 
  

L020 Number of people enrolled in the 
Leisure Saver Scheme (Quarterly) 

530 555 520 
  

L035 Income from Leisure Facilities 
(Quarterly) 

2,865,000 5,861,000 5,018,00
0   

L151 Number of visits to libraries (Quarterly) 74,993 170,134 191,500 
  

Planning and Transport - Quarterly 

NI154 
Net additional homes provided 
(Quarterly) 99 30 

No 
quarterly 

target 
set 

N/A 
 

NI157a Percentage of major applications 
determined in 13 weeks (Quarterly) 85% 90% 80% 

  

NI157b Percentage of minor applications 
determined in 8 weeks (Quarterly) 70% 95% 80% 

  

NI157c 

Percentage of other applications 
determined in 8 weeks or within an 
agreed extension of time period 
(Quarterly) 

90% 96% 80% 
  

L008 Number of planning applications 
received to date (Quarterly) 237 268 

No 
target 

set 
N/A 

 

L009 Number of full search requests 
received (Quarterly) 428 410 

No 
target 

set 
N/A 

 

L014 

Number of people slightly injured in 
road traffic accidents in the preceding 
12 months (percentage change) 
(Quarterly) 

-24.4% -22.1% 
No 

target 
set 

N/A 
 

L046 Percentage of full searches answered 
in 10 working days (Quarterly) 100% 98% 90% 

  

L175 

People killed or seriously injured in 
road traffic accidents in the preceding 
12 months (percentage change) 
(Quarterly) 

-38.9% 2.8% 
No 

target 
set 

N/A 
 

 
 



 

Corporate Performance Overview Report – 2015/16 Quarter 2 Page 14 

Traffic Lights 
Compares current performance to target 

Performance Trend  
Identifies direction of travel compared to same point in 
the previous year or quarter 

 
On, above or within 5% of target  

Performance has improved (more than 5% 
from same point in previous year or quarter) 

 
Between 5% and 10% of target  

Performance sustained (within 5% of same 
point in previous year or quarter) 

 
More than 10% from target  

Performance has declined (more than 5% 
from same point in previous year or quarter) 

 
 
The following key performance indicators are annual measurements where data is not due 
to be reported this quarter:- 

 

Adult Social Care, Health & Housing 

 

Ind 
Ref 

Short Description 
Quarter 

due 

OF1c.
1 

Percentage of people receiving self-directed support Q4 

OF1c.
2 

Percentage of people receiving Direct payments Q4 

Of2b Achieving independence for older people through rehabilitation or 
intermediate care 

Q4 

Of3a Overall satisfaction of people who use services with their care with their 
care and support 

Q4 

Of3b Overall satisfaction of carers Q4 

NI155 Number of affordable homes delivered (gross) Q4 

 

 

Children, Young People & Learning 

 

Ind 
Ref 

Short Description 
Quarter 

due 

L153 Children in care reaching level 4 in English at Key Stage 2 Q3 

L154 Children in care reaching level 4 in Maths at Key Stage 2 Q3 

L155 LAC achieving 5 A* to C GCSE or equivalent at KS 4 including English 
and Maths 

Q3 

L158 Reduction in number of schools where fewer than 60% of pupils achieve 
level 4 or above in both English and Maths at KS2 

Q3 



 

Corporate Performance Overview Report – 2015/16 Quarter 2 Page 15 

Ind 
Ref 

Short Description 
Quarter 

due 

L188 Percentage of single assessment for children's social care carried out 
within 45 working days 

Q4 

L189 Percentage of referrals to children's social care going on to single 
assessment 

Q4 

L190 Children in care reaching Level 4 in writing at KS2 Q3 

L192 KS2 attainment for BME groups containing more than 30 pupils who 
achieve level 4 in writing 

Q3 

L193 KS2 attainment for BME groups containing more than 30 pupils who 
achieve level 4 in maths 

Q3 

L205 Number of adoptive families recruited to meet the needs of children 
requiring adoption 

Q4 

L206 Recruit foster carer households Q4 

L207 Analysis of primary schools performance data and track pupil progress in 
order to plan and implement appropriate interventions 

Q3 

L208 Analysis of secondary schools performance data and track pupil progress 
in order to plan and implement appropriate interventions 

Q3 

NI019 Rate of  proven re-offending by young offenders Q4 

NI061 Stability of looked after children adopted following an agency decision that 
the child should be placed for adoption 

Q4 

NI062 Stability of placements of looked after children: number of placement Q4 

NI063 Stability of placements of looked after children: length of placement Q4 

NI064 Child protection plans lasting 2 years or more Q4 

NI065 Children becoming the subject of a Child Protection Plan for a second or 
subsequent time 

Q4 

NI066 Looked after children cases which were reviewed within required 
timescales 

Q4 

NI067 Child protection plans lasting 2 years or more Q4 

NI073 Achievement at level 4 or above in both English and Maths at KS2 (Floor) Q3 

NI075 Achievement of 5 or more A*-C grades at GCSE or equivalent including 
English and Maths 

Q3 

NI079 Achievement of a Level 2 qualification by the age of 19 Q4 

NI080 Achievement of a Level 3 qualification by the age of 19 Q4 

NI081 Inequality gap in the achievement of a Level 3 qualification by the age of 
19 

Q4 



 

Corporate Performance Overview Report – 2015/16 Quarter 2 Page 16 

Ind 
Ref 

Short Description 
Quarter 

due 

NI082 Inequality gap in the achievement of a Level 2 qualification by the age of 
19 

Q4 

NI087 Secondary schools persistent absence rate Q4 

NI091 Participation of 17 year-olds in education or training Q4 

NI092 Narrowing the gap between the lowest achieving 20% in the Early Years 
Foundation Stage Profile and the rest 

Q3 

NI102.
1 

Achievement gap between pupils eligible for free school meals and their 
peers achieving the expected level at Key Stages 2 

Q3 

NI102.
2 

Achievement gap between pupils eligible for free school meals and their 
peers achieving the expected level at Key Stages 4 

Q3 

NI103.
1 

Percentage of Special Educational Needs - statements issued in 26 weeks 
as a proportional of all 

Q4 

NI103.
2 

Percentage of Special Educational Needs - statements issued in 26 weeks 
excluding exceptions 

Q4 

NI107 Key Stage 2 attainment for Black and minority ethnic groups containing 
more than 30 pupils who achieve level 4 in Reading 

Q3 

NI108 Key Stage 4 attainment for Black and minority ethnic groups Q3 

NI111 First time entrants to the Youth Justice System aged 10-17 Q4 

NI114 Rate of permanent exclusions from school Q4 

NI117 16 to 18 year olds who are not in education, training or employment 
(NEET) 

Q1 

NI147 Care leavers in suitable accommodation Q4 

NI148 Care leavers in employment, education or training Q4 

 

 

Corporate Services  

 

Ind 
Ref 

Short Description 
Quarter 

due 

BV156 Buildings accessible to people with a disability Q4 

L052 Cumulative percentage of Council Tax collected for the previous year at 31 
March 

Q4 

L054 Cumulative percentage of business rates collected for the previous year at 
31 March 

Q4 

L070 Percentage of employees with a disability Q4 



 

Corporate Performance Overview Report – 2015/16 Quarter 2 Page 17 

Ind 
Ref 

Short Description 
Quarter 

due 

L071 Percentage of black and ethnic minority employees Q4 

L072 Gender pay gap Q4 

L073 Average number of off the job training days per employee Q4 

L075 Number of commercial property voids Q4 

L078 ICT user satisfaction – service user survey Q3 

L130 Percentage staff turnover Q4 

L131 Percentage staff leaving within one year of starting Q4 

L174 Working days lost due to sickness absence Q4 

NI006 Participation in regular volunteering (Biennially (every two years)) 
Q4 – 

2016/17 

 

 

Chief Executive’s Office 

 
There are no key indicators within the Chief Executive’s Office reported on annually. 

  

Environment, Culture & Communities 

 

Ind Ref Short Description 
Quarter 

due 

L160 Supply or ready to deliver housing sites Q4 

L175 People killed or seriously injured in road traffic accidents Q4 

L200 Percentage of Borough's households participating in recycling Q4 

NI167 Congestion - average journey time per mile during the morning peak Q4 

NI168 Principle roads where maintenance should be considered Q4 

NI169 Non-principle roads where maintenance should be considered Q4 

NI196 Improved street and environmental cleanliness - fly tipping  Q4 

NI154 Net additional homes provided Q4 

NI191 Residual household waste in kgs per household Q4 

NI192 Percentage of household waste sent for reuse, recycling and composting Q4 

NI193 Percentage of municipal waste land filled Q4 

 



 

Corporate Performance Overview Report – 2015/16 Quarter 2 Page 18 

Section 3: Corporate Health  

A) Summary of Complaints  
 

Corporate Complaints  
The total number of corporate complaints received this quarter was 8.  
The total number of corporate complaints received this year to end September was 21. 
 

Department Stage 
New 
complaints 
activity in Q2 

Complaints 
activity year 
to date 

Outcome of total 
complaints activity 
year to date 

Adult Social Care,  

Health & Housing 

Stage 2 3 6 2 upheld, 1 not upheld, 
2 partially upheld, 1 
ongoing 

Stage 3 - -  

Ombudsman 0 1 1 not upheld 

Children, Young 
People & Learning 

Stage 2 0 2 1 partially upheld, 1 
upheld 

Stage 3 1 1 1 not upheld 

Ombudsman - -  

Corporate 
Services   

Stage 2 0 1 1 upheld 

Stage 3 - -  

Ombudsman - -  

Chief Executive’s 
Office 

Stage 2 - -  

Stage 3 - -  

Ombudsman - -  

Environment, 
Culture  

& Communities 

Stage 2 0 3 2 not upheld, 1 ongoing  

Stage 3 1 2 1 not upheld, 1 partially 
upheld  

Ombudsman 3 5 4 not upheld, 1 ongoing  

 
 
Statutory Complaints  
The total number of statutory complaints received this quarter was 15. 
The total number of statutory complaints received this year to end September was 26. 
 

Department Stage 
New 
complaints 
activity in Q 2 

Complaints 
activity year 
to date 

Outcome of total 
complaints activity 
year to date 



 

Corporate Performance Overview Report – 2015/16 Quarter 2 Page 19 

Adult Social Care,  

Health & Housing 

Statutory 
Procedure: 

6 10 
5 upheld, 4 not upheld, 1 
partially upheld  

Ombudsman - - - 

Children, Young 
People & Learning 

Stage 1 
8 15 

3 upheld, 9 not upheld, 2 
partially upheld, 1 
ongoing 

Stage 2 1 1 1 ongoing 

Stage 3 - - - 

Ombudsman - - - 

 

 
No complaints were received in respect of Public Health. 

B) Audits with Limited or No Assurance Opinions 
 
There were three limited assurance reports finalised in quarter 2. All are being addressed by 
managers. 
 
 

C) Summary of People 
 
Staff Turnover  
 

Department 
Quarter 2 

(%) 
For the last four 

quarters (%) 
Notes 

Adult Social Care, 
Health & Housing 

3.29% 10.12% - 

Corporate Services 1.4% 7.48% 
Vacancies within HR, Democratic & 
Registration Services and Property 
Services will be filled in October.   

Chief Executive’s 
Office 

3.57% 7.41% 
Vacancies within Regeneration and 
Community Safety 

Children, Young 
People & Learning 

5.29% 15.5% 
21 people left their contracts 
voluntarily this quarter and 22 new 
employees joined  

Environment, Culture 
& Communities 

2.48% 9.88% 
There were 7 fewer vacancies 
compared to last quarter (51).  

 

 
 
 
 
 



 

Corporate Performance Overview Report – 2015/16 Quarter 2 Page 20 

Comparator data % 

Total voluntary turnover for BFC, 2013/14 12.64% 

Average UK voluntary turnover 2012 12.5% 

Average Public Sector voluntary turnover 2012 12.0% 

 
 
(Source: XPertHR Staff Turnover Rates and Cost Survey 2014 and LGA Workforce Survey 2012/13)) 

 
Staff Sickness  
 

Department Quarter 2  

(days per 
employee) 

2015/16 
Projected 

Annual Average 

(days per 
employee) 

Notes 

Adult Social Care, 
Health & Housing 

2.88 10.0 
There were 14 cases of long term 
sickness but 7 members of staff have now 
returned to work.   

Corporate Services 1.59 5.66 

Sickness for this quarter stands at 339.5. 
There were 200 days attributable to long 
term sick however there is now only one 
person off on long term absence 

Chief Executive’s 
Office 

1.06 3.03 
13 days due to long term sickness. 
Projected average excl. long term 
absence is 2.13 days per employee 

Children, Young 
People & Learning 

1.63 5.9 

Absence levels are higher this quarter, but 
58% of the absence is accounted for by 
12 long term sick cases, five of which 
arose this quarter. Managers and HR are 
working in line with the absence 
management policy on all these cases 
and being supported by advice from 
Occupational Health 

Environment, Culture 
& Communities 

1.04 4.34 

Sickness has increased slightly compared 
to last quarter mainly due to an increase 
in short-term sick. However, long-term 
sick has decreased compared to last 
quarter. 

 
 

Comparator data 
All employees, average days sickness 

absence per employee 



 

Corporate Performance Overview Report – 2015/16 Quarter 2 Page 21 

Bracknell Forest Council 13/14 5.50 days 

All local government employers 2013 8.0 days 

All South East Employers 2013 6.9 days 

 
 

(Source: Chartered Institute of Personnel and Development Absence Management survey 2014) 

 

D) Summary of Money 
 

REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 
 
At the end of the second quarter there is a potential over spend of £1.023m.  Details of 
individual variances are outlined in each department’s Quarterly Service Report (QSR).  
 
This net over spend is comprised of the following significant variances: 
 

 On the 21 July, the Executive agreed to fund the changes proposed by the 
Children's Social Care Management Board for addressing the long term shortage of 
experienced and qualified Social Workers directly employed by the Council. The 
actual cost of the changes will to a large extent be dependent on the success of 
recruiting to the new posts which is now underway, coupled with the ability to 
reduce the number of high cost agency staff currently engaged. The estimated cost 
of £0.8m will be funded from the £2m Contingency. 

 

 Placement costs within Children’s Social Care exceed the current budget 
(£0.225m). There have been a number of changes to the forecast made when the 
budget was set in December, which in line with the budget strategy of the Council 
included removing costs of known leavers but not adding a provision for future 
placements.  

 

 Additional costs are being incurred on care packages, in particular within Older 
People and Long Term Conditions, due to an increase in the number and value of 
placements and the loss of Continuing Healthcare funding (£0.416m). 

 

 The level of cash balances is such that the Council has been able to pay all 
2015/16 employers and employees pension fund contributions, in full, in advance. 
This will generate an additional -£0.100m of interest. Further income has also been 
received (-£0.082m) relating to our Heritable Icelandic Bank deposit. The Council 
has now recovered 100% of our original deposit (£2m), and £0.011m in interest. 

 
It is anticipated that the over spend will be managed downwards or where appropriate met 
from the Contingency. 
 
Within the Schools Budget significant progress has been made in addressing the cost 
pressures arising from High Needs Pupils and a -£0.124m under spend is currently 
projected in this area. This is, however, a volatile budget and needs to be monitored closely 
for the rest of the year. 
 
At this stage in the financial year there remain significant risks to the budget. Those budgets 
representing the greatest risk will continue to be scrutinised in detail as part of the Council’s 
usual budget monitoring arrangements. 





Unrestricted 

 
TO: OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMISSION 
            28 JANUARY 2016 
  

 
EXECUTIVE KEY AND NON-KEY DECISIONS RELATING TO 

CORPORATE ISSUES 
Assistant Chief Executive 

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT 

1.1 This report presents scheduled Executive Key and Non-Key Decisions relating to 
corporate issues for the Commission’s consideration. 

2 RECOMMENDATION(S) 

2.1 That the Overview and Scrutiny Commission considers the scheduled 
Executive Key and Non-Key Decisions relating to corporate issues appended 
to this report. 

3 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 

3.1 To invite the Commission to consider scheduled Executive Key and Non-Key 
Decisions. 

4 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

4.1 None. 

5 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

5.1 Consideration of Executive Key and Non-Key Decisions alerts the Commission to 
forthcoming Executive decisions and facilitates pre-decision scrutiny. 

5.2 To achieve accountability and transparency of the decision making process, effective 
Overview and Scrutiny is essential.  Overview and Scrutiny bodies are a key element 
of Executive arrangements and their roles include both developing and reviewing 
policy; and holding the Executive to account. 

5.3 The power to hold the Executive to account is granted under Section 21 of the Local 
Government Act 2000 which states that Executive arrangements of a local authority 
must ensure that its Overview and Scrutiny bodies have power to review or scrutinise 
decisions made, or other action taken, in connection with the discharge of any 
functions which are the responsibility of the Executive.  This includes the ‘call in’ 
power to review or scrutinise a decision made but not implemented and to 
recommend that the decision be reconsidered by the body / person that made it.  
This power does not relate solely to scrutiny of decisions and should therefore also 
be utilised to undertake pre-decision scrutiny. 



Unrestricted 

6 ADVICE RECEIVED FROM STATUTORY AND OTHER OFFICERS 

No advice was sought from the Borough Solicitor, the Borough Treasurer or Other 
Officers or sought in terms of Equalities Impact Assessment or Strategic Risk 
Management Issues.  Such advice will be sought in respect of each Executive 
Forward Plan item prior to its consideration by the Executive. 

7 CONSULTATION 

 None. 

Background Papers 
 
Local Government Act 2000 
 
Contact for further information 
 
Richard Beaumont – 01344 352283 
e-mail: richard.beaumont@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
 
 

mailto:richard.beaumont@bracknell-forest.gov.uk


Unrestricted 
 

 

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMISSION 
 

EXECUTIVE WORK PROGRAMME 
 

REFERENCE: I057980 

TITLE: Agency Workers Framework - Tender Outcome 

PURPOSE OF REPORT: To agree the new provider for the Agency Workers 
Framework..  

DECISION MAKER: Executive 

DECISION DATE: 9 Feb 2016 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: Within existing budgets. 

CONSULTEES: Officers  

CONSULTATION METHOD: Meetings  

 
 

REFERENCE: I058779 

TITLE: Amendments to arrangements for the exercise of powers 
relating to the Neighbourhood Planning Process 

PURPOSE OF REPORT: To seek amendments to the governance arrangements for 
the discharge of decsions in relation to facilitating the 
neighbourhood Planning Process as set out in Table A at 
Appendix 1 to the report approved by the Leader on the 10 
September 2015.  

DECISION MAKER: Executive Member for Council Strategy and Community 
Cohesion 

DECISION DATE: 23 Feb 2016 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: None 

CONSULTEES: The public. 

CONSULTATION METHOD: By web-site  

 
 



Unrestricted 
 

 

REFERENCE: I057224 

TITLE: Bracknell Town Centre Regeneration Committee Update 
Report 

PURPOSE OF REPORT: To update the Committee on the regeneration of Bracknell 
town centre  

DECISION MAKER: Bracknell Town Centre Regeneration Committee 

DECISION DATE: 9 May 2016 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: Contained within the report 

CONSULTEES: Not applicable  

CONSULTATION METHOD: Not applicable  

 
 

REFERENCE: I057223 

TITLE: Bracknell Town Centre Regeneration Committee Update 
Report 

PURPOSE OF REPORT: To update the Committee on the regeneration of Bracknell 
town centre  

DECISION MAKER: Bracknell Town Centre Regeneration Committee 

DECISION DATE: 14 Mar 2016 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: Contained within report 

CONSULTEES: Not applicable  

CONSULTATION METHOD: Not applicable 

 
 



Unrestricted 
 

 

REFERENCE: I052738 

TITLE: Capital Budget 2016/17 

PURPOSE OF REPORT: To recommend to Council the annual budget.  

DECISION MAKER: Executive 

DECISION DATE: 9 Feb 2016 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: Council's annual budget. 

CONSULTEES: Targeted consultation exercises will be undertaken with 
business rate payers, the Schools Forum, Parish Councils 
and voluntary organisations. In addition, this report and all 
the supporting information will be publicly available to any 
individual or group who wish to comment on any proposal 
included within it. Internal consultation is via officers, 
members and more specifically the Overview & Scrutiny 
Commission and its panels.  

CONSULTATION METHOD: The Council’s web site, a dedicated mailbox and a letter to 
all business ratepayers. 

 
 

REFERENCE: I058407 

TITLE: Commercial Investment Property Acquisition in Bracknell 

PURPOSE OF REPORT: To seek approval and release of funding for the acquisition 
of a commercial investment property within the Borough  

DECISION MAKER: Executive 

DECISION DATE: 9 Feb 2016 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: The Council requires funding of approximately £4.5millon to 
support the purchase. 

CONSULTEES: Corporate Management Team  

CONSULTATION METHOD: Meetings with officers 

 
 



Unrestricted 
 

 

REFERENCE: I057610 

TITLE: Community Safety Partnership Plan 2016-17 

PURPOSE OF REPORT: Executive are asked to endorse the 2016-17 refresh of the 
Community Safety Partnership Plan.  

DECISION MAKER: Executive 

DECISION DATE: 12 Apr 2016 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: Contained within the report 

CONSULTEES: Pubic  
Elected Members  
Partnerships  
Stakeholders  
Business community  

CONSULTATION METHOD: Via email  
Online survey  

 
 

REFERENCE: I056853 

TITLE: Corporate Asset Management Plan - Annual Update 

PURPOSE OF REPORT: The Executive to agree the Council's Corporate Asset 
Management Plan.  

DECISION MAKER: Executive 

DECISION DATE: 12 Apr 2016 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: No financial implications 

CONSULTEES: Corporate Asset Management Group  

CONSULTATION METHOD: Meetings  

 
 



Unrestricted 
 

 

REFERENCE: I057529 

TITLE: Customer Contact Strategy 2016 - 2019 

PURPOSE OF REPORT: To outline the direction for customer contact for the coming 
three years. There will be an action plan to accompany the 
strategy, which will be updated annually.  

DECISION MAKER: Executive 

DECISION DATE: 18 Oct 2016 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: The financial impact of each work package in the action plan 
will be assessed as it arises, and may be subject to capital 
bids. 

CONSULTEES: Internally - DMTs, Customer Contact Strategy Group, All 
Staff, Elected Members  
Externally - Partners, public  

CONSULTATION METHOD: Internally - surveys, meetings and workshops  
Externally - on-line questionnaire / survey  

 
 

REFERENCE: I052927 

TITLE: Financial Reporting Process (Budget Book 2016/17) 

PURPOSE OF REPORT: To approve the Council's "Cash" Budget Book for 2016/17  

DECISION MAKER: Executive Member for Transformation & Finance 

DECISION DATE: 31 Mar 2016 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: None at this time. 

CONSULTEES: Not applicable  

CONSULTATION METHOD: None  

 
 



Unrestricted 
 

 

REFERENCE: I056356 

TITLE: Home to School Transport and Occasional Transport 
Services 

PURPOSE OF REPORT: To approve the contract award for Home to School 
Transport and Occasional Transport Services. 

DECISION MAKER: Executive 

DECISION DATE: 12 Apr 2016 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: Within existing budgets 

CONSULTEES: Council Officers including the Head of Procurement, 
Borough Solicitor and the Borough Treasurer were consulted 
during the course of the project.  
 
Also included were parents of service users, prospective 
contractors and current contractors.  

CONSULTATION METHOD: Engagement of key stakeholders was undertaken during the 
procurement process through meetings, tender surgeries 
and an online quetionnaire.  

 
 

REFERENCE: I058408 

TITLE: Potential Acquisition of Former Magistrates Court 

PURPOSE OF REPORT: To seek approval for the aquisition of the former magistrates 
court.  

DECISION MAKER: Executive 

DECISION DATE: 9 Feb 2016 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: The Council will require funding of around £775,000. 

CONSULTEES: Town Centre Regeneration Committee  

CONSULTATION METHOD: Meetings with Councillors 

 
 



Unrestricted 
 

 

REFERENCE: I052628 

TITLE: Revenue Budget 2016/17 

PURPOSE OF REPORT: To recommend to Council the annual budget.  

DECISION MAKER: Executive 

DECISION DATE: 9 Feb 2016 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: Council's annual budget. 

CONSULTEES: Targeted consultation exercises will be undertaken with 
business rate payers, the Schools Forum, Parish Councils 
and voluntary organisations. In addition, this report and all 
the supporting information will be publicly available to any 
individual or group who wish to comment on any proposal 
included within it. Internal consultation is via officers, 
members and more specifically the Overview & Scrutiny 
Commission and its panels. 

CONSULTATION METHOD: Method of Consultation: The Council’s web site, a dedicated 
mailbox and a letter to all business ratepayers.  

 
 

REFERENCE: I058276 

TITLE: Voluntary Sector Grants Decision 

PURPOSE OF REPORT: Subject to Service Level Agreements being concluded 
between the Council and each grantee, to award grants to 
various voluntary bodies for 2016-17. 

DECISION MAKER: Executive Member for Culture, Corporate Services and 
Public Protection 

DECISION DATE: 18 Mar 2016 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: Contained within report 

CONSULTEES: Chief Executive's Office  
Borough Treasurer  
Borough Solicitor  

CONSULTATION METHOD: Internal email  

 
 





Unrestricted 

 
TO: OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMISSION 

28 JANUARY 2016 
 
 

WORK PROGRAMME AND PANEL ACTIVITY UPDATE REPORT 
Assistant Chief Executive 

 
 
1 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 This report provides an update on the Overview and Scrutiny (O&S) Work 

Programme for 2015-16 and Panel activity, with particular reference to Working 
Groups of the Overview and Scrutiny Commission. 

 
 
2 RECOMMENDATION 

 
That the Overview and Scrutiny Commission: 
 

2.1 Reviews the progress by the O&S Commission and the O&S Panels against the 
work programme   

 
2.2 Notes the progress achieved to date by the Commission’s Working Groups. 
 
 
3 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 
O&S Work programme 

 
3.1 The O&S Work Programme for 2015-16, incorporating (where available) each 

Chairman’s assessment of progress, is at Appendix 1. As previously explained to the 
Commission, the Panels have seen the need to make some changes to the 
previously adopted work programme.  

 
O&S Commission’s Working Groups  

 
3.2 As reported previously to the O&S Commission, the Commission’s Working Groups 

on the Economic Strategy and the Draft Council Plan have completed their work and 
no further meetings are planned. 

 

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED/ ADVICE RECEIVED FROM STATUTORY AND 
OTHER OFFICERS/ EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT/ STRATEGIC RISK 
MANAGEMENT ISSUES / OTHER OFFICERS/ CONSULTATION – Not applicable 

 

Contact for further information 
 
Richard Beaumont – 01344 352283 
e-mail: richard.beaumont@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
 

mailto:richard.beaumont@bracknell-forest.gov.uk


Unrestricted 

Appendix 1 
 

Monitoring Of Work Programme for Overview and Scrutiny in 2015/16 
 

The Overview and Scrutiny (O&S) Chairmen’s assessment of the progress on the work 
programme for O&S in 2015/16 is shown below, where the symbols represent: 
 

  Completed or on course for completion      Delayed or completion at risk  
 

 Will not be achieved in 2015/16 
 
Comments by O&S Commission Chairman 
 
 
 
 

 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMISSION 

 

Status / 
Comment 

1. Co-ordination of the work of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Panels 
 

 

2. Routine monitoring of the performance of the Council’s 
corporate functions 
 

 
 

3. 
 

Exercising pre-decision scrutiny by reference to the 
Executive Forward Plan 
 

 

 
4. 2016/17 Budget Scrutiny 

 
To review the Council’s budget proposals for the Chief 
Executive’s Office and the Corporate Services Department for 
2016/17, and plans for future years.  To include a discussion with 
the Borough Treasurer during 2015 on the evolving budgetary 
position. Overview and Scrutiny Panels will also scrutinise the 
budget proposals in their departmental areas. 
 

  
 

 

5. Crime and Disorder Committee 
 
To include an annual meeting with representatives of the 
Community Safety Partnership. 
 

 

 

6.  
 

The Council Plan (Formerly Medium Term Objectives) 
 
To contribute to the review of the Council’s Plan (formerly 
Medium Term Objectives) following local government elections in 
May 2015. 
 

 

 



Unrestricted 

Comments by Adult Social Care And Housing Overview And Scrutiny Panel Chairman 
 
A full report of the meeting of 15th September can be found at : 

http://democratic.bracknell-forest.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=618&MId=5972&Ver=4 
The next meeting of the panel will be 19th January 2016 when, in addition to the budget 
consultation, the panel will be considering the potential impact of the National Living Wage 
on the Social Care sector, the Bracknell Forest Sensory Needs Strategy and the Advocacy 
Joint Commissioning Strategy. Members interested in learning more about any of these 
topics are welcome to attend the Panel. 
 
 

 
ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HOUSING OVERVIEW AND 

SCRUTINY PANEL 
 

Status / 
Comment 

1. Monitoring the performance of the Adult Social Care, Health 
and Housing Department 
 
To receive an introductory briefing on the role of the Adult Social 
Care, Health and Housing Department. 
 
To include on-going review of the Quarterly Service Reports, 
receiving statutory plans and reports (such as the annual reports 
on complaints received), monitoring the action taken by the 
Executive to earlier reports by the Panel, and being briefed on 
the progress of any significant developments (such as the Care 
Act). 
 

 
 
 

 

2. Exercising pre-decision scrutiny by reference to the 
Executive Forward Plan 
 

 

3. 2016/17 Budget Scrutiny 
 
To review the Council’s Adult Social Care and Housing budget 
proposals for 2016/17, and plans for future years. 
 

 

 
 

4. Homelessness Strategy 
 
To form a Working Group to make an input to the preparation of 
the new Homelessness strategy 

 

 

 
Comments by Children, Young People and Learning Overview And Scrutiny Panel Chairman 
 
We had a panel meeting on Monday 11th January where we looked at schools attainment 
data. For the first time we looked at value added and progress in detail, focusing on KS1 and 
KS2. 
Annually we are going to look at the overall picture and compare our performance nationally 
and locally. 
The Annual report of the Local Safeguarding Children's Board and School Places Plan 2015-
2020 were considered. 
The working group looking at Child Sexual Abuse is on track to finish before  the next panel 
meeting  in April. 
 

http://democratic.bracknell-forest.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=618&MId=5972&Ver=4


Unrestricted 

 
 

 
CHILDREN, YOUNG PEOPLE AND LEARNING OVERVIEW AND 

SCRUTINY PANEL 
 

Status / 
Comment 

1. Monitoring the performance of the Children, Young People 
and Learning Department 
 
To receive an introductory briefing on the role of the Children, 
Young People and Learning Department. 
 
To include on-going review of the Quarterly Service Reports, 
receiving statutory plans and reports (such as the annual reports 
of the Local Safeguarding Children Board, and on complaints 
received). Monitoring: 
 
• The creation of the ‘Learning Village’ in Binfield 
• Schools’ performance, particularly secondary schools; 
• The action taken by the Executive to earlier reports by 

the Panel 
 

 
 
 

 

2. Exercising pre-decision scrutiny by reference to the 
Executive Forward Plan 
 

 

3. 2016/17 Budget Scrutiny 
 
To review the Council’s Children, Young People and Learning 
budget proposals for 2016/17, and plans for future years. 
 

 

 

4. Child Sexual Exploitation 
 
To form a Working Group to review the Council’s response to the 
risks of Child Sexual Exploitation, delivered in concert with 
Community safety partner organisations. 
 

 

 

 
Comments by Environment, Culture and Communities Overview And Scrutiny Panel 
Chairman 
 
The ECC panel last met on 12th January and considered the annual draft budget proposals. 
The future challenges associated with the waste collection and disposal service was also a 
subject reported and discussed. 
The panels working group reviewing the Planning Processes and Procedures is drawing to 
it’s conclusions with a meeting on 9th February to review the draft report.  
 

 
ENVIRONMENT CULTURE AND COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW AND 

SCRUTINY PANEL 
 

Status / 
Comment 

1. Monitoring the performance of the Environment, Culture and 
Communities Department 
 
To receive an introductory briefing on the role of the Environment, 

 
 

 



Unrestricted 

Culture and Communities Department. 
 
To include on-going review of the Quarterly Service Reports; the 
performance of the Department, review of any inspection reports 
or self-evaluations; monitoring the action taken by the Executive to 
earlier reports by the Panel, and monitoring significant 
departmental developments, particularly: 

• The works at Coral Reef 
• The Local Development Framework  
• The potential extended uses of the Council’s E+ 

Smartcard. 

 

2. Exercising pre-decision scrutiny by reference to the 
Executive Forward Plan 
 

 

3. 2016/17 Budget Scrutiny 
 
To review the Council’s Environment, Culture and Communities 
budget proposals for 2016/17, and plans for future years. 
 

 
 

4. The Council’s Planning Function 
 
To form a Working Group to review the Council’s Planning 
Function, including making an input to the draft Local Enforcement 
Plan. 
 

 
 

 

 
Comments by Health Overview And Scrutiny Panel Chairman 
 
This last quarter has seen a lot of activity by the Health Overview and Scrutiny panel. The 
core members for the GP Capacity working group have been identified along with a 
Chairman Cllr Peacey and Vice Chair David Norman. The group has met once and plan on 
instigating a scoping document soon. 
 
The Health and Wellbeing board produced a draft strategy for which the HO+S members 
reviewed and summited comments for amendments to be made. We are waiting to see if 
these recommendations were actioned in the revised strategy.  
 
Green Meadows GP surgery had undergone a CQC inspection and found to be inadequate. 
The panel wrote to the practice for further clarification and responded with favourable 
progress. They are due to be re- inspected in February. 
The panel continues to compile a list of external specialist members that can be called upon 
should their expert knowledge be advantageous.  
 
 

 
HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 

 

Status / 
Comment 

1. Monitoring the performance of the Local NHS Organisations 
and the Adult Social Care, Health and Housing Department 
in relation to health 
 
To receive an introductory briefing on the Council’s role in 
relation to Health. 
To include on-going review of the Quarterly Service Reports and 

 
 
 
 

 



Unrestricted 

monitoring significant developments, particularly: 
• The Better Care Fund 
• The Care Act 
• Improvements at Heatherwood and Wexham Park 

Hospitals following the acquisition by Frimley Park 
Hospital Trust 

Provision of sufficient GP surgeries to match long-term growth in 
the Borough’s population (see below) 

2. Implementing the new Approach to Health Scrutiny 
 
To deliver the new approach to health scrutiny as recommended 
by the Panel’s Working Group on the Francis report.  
 

 

 

3. 2016/17 Budget Scrutiny 
 
To review the Council’s budget proposals for public health in 
2016/17, and plans for future years. 
 
 

 
 

 

4. Responding to NHS Quality Accounts and Consultations 
 
Under Department of Health guidance, the Health O&S Panel 
should provide comments on the annual Quality Accounts 
produced by the NHS Trusts nearby, and the Panel is a statutory 
consultee for any substantial variation in NHS services affecting 
the Borough.  

 
 

 

5.  GP Capacity 
 
To form a Working Group to review whether there is sufficient GP 
capacity to match the long-term growth in the Borough’s 
population and other demands. 
 

 

 

 



Unrestricted 

 

TO: OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMISSION 
28 JANUARY 2016 

 

 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PROGRESS REPORT 

Assistant Chief Executive 
 
 
1 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 This report highlights Overview and Scrutiny (O&S) activity during the period June to 

November 2015. 
 
 
2 RECOMMENDATION 
  
2.1 To note Overview and Scrutiny activity and developments over the period June to 

November 2015, set out in section 5 to 6, and Appendices 1 and 2. 
 
 
3 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 The Chief Executive has asked for a six monthly report on O&S activity to be submitted to 

the Corporate Management Team and O&S Members. 
 
 
4 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
4.1 None. 
 
 
5 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 
Overview and Scrutiny Structure and Membership 
 

5.1 There were no changes to the membership of the O&S Commission or Panels in the period.  
Action continues to be taken periodically on the long-running vacancies for representatives 
of the Catholic Diocese and the Church of England on the O&S Commission and the 
Children, Young People and Learning O&S Panel. 

 
Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme and Working Groups 

 
5.2 The O&S Commission has approved some minor revisions to the O&S work programme for 

2015-16, which is being delivered largely as planned.  A routine report has been submitted 
to each O&S Commission meeting, monitoring progress against the O&S Work 
Programme, using traffic light indicators, and with particular reference to the Commission’s 
own Working Groups. 

 
5.3 The table at Appendix 1 sets out the status of the O&S Working Groups currently 

underway, along with the list of completed reviews since 2010. 
 

 



Unrestricted 

 

Overview and Scrutiny Commission 
 
5.4 The O&S Commission met on 9 July, 24 September and 19 November.  The main items 

included: 
 
 The customary annual meeting with representatives of the Community Safety 

Partnership and Thames Valley Police, with a focus on the 2014/15 annual crime 
figures and the priorities in the Community Safety Plan. 

 An introductory briefing in respect of the Chief Executive’s Office and the Corporate 
Services Department. 

 Discussions with the Executive Members for Corporate Services and Transformation 
& Finance on their priorities and plans.  

 Reviewing the quarterly performance reports for the Corporate Services Department, 
the Chief Executive’s Office and the Council as a whole.  

 Considering the response by the Executive to the Overview and Scrutiny report 
resulting from the review of Business Rates and Discretionary Relief. 

 Reviewing corporate decision items on the Executive Forward Plan. 
 Receiving the Bi-Annual O&S Progress Report, and progress reports from Panel 

Chairmen. 
 Considering an update from the Executive Member for Transformation and Finance, 

and the Borough Treasurer on the current budgetary position, in preparation for 
scrutiny of the 2016/17 budget proposals. 

 Receiving a presentation on the work of the Human Resources function, its current 
priorities and future plans 

 Receiving an update on the customer contact strategy, including performance in 
telephone response rates in the Customer Services Contact Centre. 

 Considering a briefing about complaints made against the Council in 2014/15 
 

5.5 The O&S Commission’s next planned meeting is on 28 January 2016 when the main item is 
anticipated to be the Executive’s draft budget proposals for 2016/17. 
 
 
Environment, Culture and Communities O&S Panel 
 

5.6 Meetings of the Panel were held on 7 July, when it elected its Chairman and appointed its 
Vice Chairman, and 22 September, 2015.  During the meetings the Panel considered and 
commented on: 
 
 Director’s Introductory Briefing & Service Plan 2015/16. 
 Bracknell Forest Borough Local Plan Updates. 
 Draft Parking Standards Supplementary Planning Document (SPD). 
 Highway Maintenance Modelling System. 
 Highway Infrastructure Asset Management Plan. 
 Local Bus Services Update. 
 Changes to the Method of Collecting Christmas Trees. 
 Control of Horses Act 2015. 
 2015/16 Work Programme Review Topics. 
 Working Group Update Report - Planning Function. 
 O&S Progress Report. 
 Scheduled Executive key and non-key decisions. 
 Quarterly Service Reports (QSRs) for the relevant quarters. 

 
5.7 The Panel established a Working Group to review the Council’s planning function.  The 

Working Group met for the first time on 24 August when Members received a 
comprehensive briefing from senior officers regarding the functions and structure of the 
planning function, and related matters.  A review scoping document focusing on issues of 
interest and concern to Members was subsequently agreed.  At following meetings 



Unrestricted 

 

Members reviewed information requested from officers, research findings and the draft 
Local Enforcement Plan; received advice on the legal input to the planning function; 
considered Members’ views on the planning function and the issue of Member and officer 
roles; and visited another local authority with a highly performing planning function to learn 
about best practice.  Future work will feature meeting the Executive Member, Chairman of 
the Planning Committee and Director to discuss main findings, conclusions and 
recommendations flowing from the review before the Working Group finalises and reports 
on its work (see Appendix 1). 
 

5.8 Further to actions sought by Members at Panel meetings, a revised statement accurately 
reflecting the status of road traffic growth was included in the departmental Service Plan, 
the rationale behind a road diversion was explained, a concession at Downshire Golf 
Complex was looked into and a letter responding to residents asking for existing trees to be 
pruned was reviewed.  Points raised by the Panel as part of the response to the Parking 
Standards consultation were taken into account. 
 

5.9 The Panel’s next meeting will take place on 12 January 2016 and items under consideration 
will include the draft 2016/17 budget proposals, Bracknell Forest Local Plan Update and the 
Quarter 2 QSR. 
 
 
Health O&S Panel 
 

5.10 The Panel met on 2 July and 1 October 2015.  The main items considered at those 
meetings included:  
 
 Receiving an introductory briefing in respect of the Council’s role and functions in 

relation to health. 
 Discussing with the Executive Member for Adult Services, Health and Housing his 

priorities for Health over the next four years. 
 Meeting the Chief Executive of the South Central Ambulance Service to review the 

Trust’s performance and future plans  
 Receiving the results of inpatient surveys and other independent information on the 

performance of NHS Trusts providing services to Bracknell Forest residents. 
 Receiving the bi-annual progress report of O&S. 
 Meeting the Chief Executive of Frimley Health NHS Foundation Trust to review the 

Trust’s progress, with particular reference to overcoming the weaknesses found by 
the Care Quality Commission at Heatherwood and Wexham Park hospitals. 

 Agreeing the Panel’s future work programme, for approval by the O&S Commission.  
 Reviewing the quarterly service reports of the Adult Social Care, Health and Housing 

department, relating to health. 
 Considering scheduled Executive Key and Non-Key Decisions relating to Health. 
 Receiving the 2014-15 Annual report of Healthwatch Bracknell Forest. 

 
5.11 Between formal Panel meetings, members were engaged in other Health O&S work 

pertinent to their specialist interests, for example: 
 

 Attending the annual general meetings of nearby NHS Trusts 

 Providing comments on Berkshire Healthcare Trust’s annual Quality Account 

 Holding two informal Panel meetings to consider a range of issues including 
specialist member roles and providing detailed comments on the draft Health and 
Wellbeing strategy. 

 Commencing a Working Group to review whether there is sufficient GP capacity to 
meet the Borough’s future needs.  

 
5.12 The Panel’s next meeting is on 14 January 2016, when the main items are likely to be a 

meeting with the Director of Public Health and the Council’s Consultant in Public Health, 



Unrestricted 

 

and consideration of the Executive’s draft budget proposals for health related work in 2016-
17. 
 
 
Joint East Berkshire with Buckinghamshire Health O&S Committee 
 

5.13 This Committee, formed jointly with Slough Borough Council, the Royal Borough of Windsor 
& Maidenhead, and Buckinghamshire County Council has remained suspended, the last 
meeting having been held in March 2013.  The O&S Commission had previously decided 
to end the Council’s involvement in the Joint Committee, unless there is a need to respond 
to a statutory consultation affecting health services in East Berkshire. 
 
 
Children, Young People and Learning O&S Panel 
 

5.14 Meetings of the Panel took place on 10 June and 30 September, 2015.  During the 
meetings the Panel considered and commented on: 

 
 The minutes of meetings of the Corporate Parenting Advisory Panel. 
 Director’s Introductory Briefing and Service Plan 2015/16. 
 Quarterly Service Reports (QSRs) for the relevant quarters, giving particular attention 

to matters including outcomes of Ofsted school inspections, headteacher recruitment, 
recruitment and retention of children's social workers, social worker salary bandings 
and free school places. 

 Update on the implementation of the Children and Families Act 2014. 
 Independent Reviewing Officer Annual Report 2014/15. 
 Elective Home Education. 
 Children's Social Care Complaints, Concerns and Compliments Annual Report 

2014/15. 
 Consultations on changes to Annual Admissions Arrangements 2017/18 and School 

Designated Areas. 
 Next review topic / working group. 
 Working Group Update Report. 
 O&S Progress Report. 
 Scheduled Executive key and non-key decisions. 
 

5.15 The Panel received the Executive’s response to the report of the review of substance 
misuse involving children and young people undertaken by one of its working groups.  In its 
response the Executive stated that: ‘We would like to thank the Working Group for their 
very helpful and well informed report which will enable us to further improve and develop 
our services.’ 
 

5.16 The Panel set up a Working Group to review Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) in the 
Borough owing to concerns associated with the increasing level of awareness of it following 
recent high profile cases in areas such as Rotherham, Rochdale and Oxford.  The Working 
Group commenced its review in August 2015 when it received an introductory briefing in 
respect of CSE.  It has met on numerous occasions since when it has met Council officers 
involved in all aspects of Children's Social Care, Youth Services and Community Safety, 
and also representatives of multi-agency groups working to prevent and tackle CSE, the 
police and a local charity.  Relevant information and data has been gathered.  Future work 
will consist of exploring work in schools to raise awareness of CSE and meeting 
representatives of the NHS to discuss commissioning and providing sexual health services 
and the GP role in child protection (see Appendix 1). 
 

5.17 In response to actions arising at Panel meetings, Members received information concerning 
the under 18 conception rate, which schools had fewer than 60% of pupils achieving Level 
4 or above in Reading, Writing and Maths at KS2, the independent audit of a school’s 



Unrestricted 

 

Private Fund Accounts, consulting parents/carers and neighbours on the Education Capital 
Programme for Great Hollands Primary School and elective home education. 
 

5.18 The Panel next meets on 11 January 2016 when it will consider agenda items including the 
draft 2016/17 budget proposals, the Quarter 2 QSR, the School Places Plan 2015-2020 and 
the Local Safeguarding Children Board Annual Report. 
 
 
Adult Social Care and Housing O&S Panel 
 

5.19 The Panel met on 16 June and 15 September, 2015.  The main items discussed and 
considered at the meetings were: 

 
 Director’s Introductory Briefing and Service Plan 2015/16 
 Quarterly Service Reports (QSRs) for the relevant quarters. 
 Adult Social Care Annual Report (Local Account) 2014/15. 
 Annual Complaints Reports 2014/15 for Adult Social Care and for Housing. 
 Bracknell Forest Safeguarding Adults Partnership Board Annual Report 2014/15. 
 Implementation of the Care Act 2014. 
 Next Review Topic / Working Group. 
 Working Group Update Report 
 O&S Progress Report 
 Scheduled Executive key and non-key decisions. 
 

5.20 A Working Group of the Panel was established in July 2015 to contribute to the Council’s 
emerging Homelessness Strategy.  Members received an introductory presentation 
concerning the Homelessness Strategy, met representatives of local organisations involved 
in homelessness, observed at meetings of the Homelessness Forum Board owing to its 
involvement in developing the Homelessness Strategy and visited some of the 
homelessness accommodation utilised by the Council.  The Working Group has formulated 
and fed back its views in respect of the draft Strategy and its work is now complete (see 
Appendix 1). 
 

5.21 Between formal meetings, the Panel responded to consultations in respect of the Council 
Tax Scheme, Housing Related Support and Charging in Social Care. 
 

5.22 The next meeting of the Panel will be held on 19 January 2016 and items under 
consideration will include the draft 2016/17 budget proposals, the Quarter 2 QSR and the 
Panel’s next review topic. 
 
 
Other Overview and Scrutiny Issues 
 

5.23 Various O&S training events were held to help Members in their O&S role. This included 
 

 The Commission and Panels receiving briefings on issues of departmental interest 
in their respective areas. 

 An externally-delivered training session for the O&S Chairmen and Vice Chairmen 
on chairmanship skills 

  Specialised Health O&S induction training. 

  An externally-delivered Budget scrutiny training event.  
 
5.24 Responses to the feedback questionnaires on the quality of O&S reviews are summarised 

in Appendix 2, showing a high average score of 2.7 (90%). 
 



Unrestricted 

 

5.25 Quarterly review and agenda setting meetings between O&S Chairmen, Vice-Chairmen, 
Executive Members and Directors are taking place regularly for the Panels (every two 
months for the O&S Commission).  
 

5.26 The O&S Commission Chairman, together with O&S officers attended the annual 
conference of the Centre for Public Scrutiny in June.  

 
 
6 DEVELOPMENTS IN OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
 
6.1 There were no notable developments in O&S nationally or locally in the period covered by 

this report.  
 
 
7 ADVICE RECEIVED FROM STATUTORY AND OTHER OFFICERS 
 

Statutory Scrutiny Officer 
 

7.1 The monitoring of this function is carried out by the Statutory Scrutiny Officer on a quarterly 
basis.  The induction and training for the new members of the Commission and its Panels 
has gone well. Good progress is being made on the agreed programme of work by 
Overview and Scrutiny for 2015/16.  Scrutiny Panels’ planned reviews will focus on areas of 
importance to local residents. 

 
Borough Solicitor 

 
7.2 There are no legal implications arising from the recommendations in this report. 
 

Borough Treasurer 
 

7.3 There are no additional financial implications arising from the recommendations in this 
report. 

 
Equalities Impact Assessment 
 

7.4 Not applicable.  The report does not contain any recommendations impacting on equalities 
issues. 
 
Strategic Risk Management Issues 
 

7.5 Not applicable.  The report does not contain any recommendations impacting on strategic 
risk management issues. 

 
Workforce Implications 
 

7.6 Not applicable.  The report does not contain any new recommendations impacting on 
workforce implications. 
 
Other Officers 
 

7.7 Directors and lead officers are consulted on the scope of each O&S review before its 
commencement, and on draft O&S reports before publication. 

 
 



Unrestricted 

 

8 CONSULTATION 
 
 Principal Groups Consulted 
 
8.1 None. 
 
 Method of Consultation 
 
8.2 Not applicable. 

 
Representations Received 
 

8.3 None. 
 
 
Background Papers 
 
Minutes and papers of meetings of the Overview and Scrutiny Commission and Panels. 
 
 
Contact for further information 
 
Victor Nicholls, Assistant Chief Executive 
Victor.nicholls@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
Tel: 01344 355604 
 
Richard Beaumont, Head of Overview & Scrutiny 
Richard.beaumont@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
Tel: 01344 352283 
 
Doc. Ref 
 
CXO\Overview and Scrutiny\2015-16\progress reports 
 

mailto:Victor.nicholls@bracknell-forest.gov.uk
mailto:Richard.beaumont@bracknell-forest.gov.uk


Unrestricted 

 

Appendix 1 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY CURRENT WORKING GROUPS – 2015/16 
Position at 20 November 2015 
 

 
Overview and Scrutiny Commission 
 

WORKING 
GROUP 
 

MEMBERS DEPT. LINK 
OFFICER 

O&S LEAD 
OFFICER 

SCOPING PROGRESS 
OF REVIEW 

REPORT / 
SUBMISSION 
 

EXECUTIVE 
RESPONSE 

CURRENT 
STATUS 

Draft Economic 
Strategy 

Leake (Lead) 
Allen, Angell, 
and Mrs Mattick 

Victor 
Nicholls 

Richard 
Beaumont 

√ Completed N/A – 
Comments 
provided at 

meeting on 25 
August 2015 

N/A  The O&S 
views were 
taken into 
account in the 
revised draft 
strategy. 
 

Draft Council 
Plan 

Leake (Lead)), 
Angell, Allen, 
Mrs Angell, 
Mrs Birch, 
Brossard, 
Finnie, Harrison, 
Mrs Mattick, 
Mrs McCracken, 
Mrs Phillips and 
Mrs Temperton 
 

N/A Richard 
Beaumont 

√ Completed N/A – 
Comments 
provided at 

workshop on 
10 September 

2015 

N/A  The O&S 
Views were 
taken into 
account in the 
revised draft 
Council Plan. 

 

 
Environment, Culture and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
 

WORKING 
GROUP 
 

MEMBERS DEPT. LINK 
OFFICER 
 

O&S LEAD 
OFFICER 

SCOPING PROGRESS 
OF REVIEW 

REPORT / 
SUBMISSION 

EXECUTIVE 
RESPONSE 

CURRENT 
STATUS 

The Planning 
Function 

Angell (Lead), 
Mrs Angell, 

Max Baker Richard 
Beaumont 

√ At the 
information 

  About 80% 
through 



Unrestricted 

 

Brossard, 
Finnie, Leake 
and Porter 
 

gathering 
stage 

information 
gathering. 

 
 

 
Children, Young People and Learning Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
 

WORKING 
GROUP 
 

MEMBERS DEPT. LINK 
OFFICER 

O&S LEAD 
OFFICER 

SCOPING PROGRESS 
OF REVIEW 

REPORT / 
SUBMISSION 
 

EXECUTIVE 
RESPONSE 

CURRENT 
STATUS 

Child Sexual 
Exploitation 

Mrs McCracken 
(Lead), 
Mrs Birch, 
Ms Gaw, 
Peacey and 
Mrs Temperton 
 

Karen 
Roberts / 
Sonia 
Johnson 

Andrea Carr √ At the 
information 
gathering 
stage. 
 

  The review is 
approximately 
50% 
complete. 

 
 
 

 
Adult Social Care and Housing Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
 

WORKING 
GROUP 
 

MEMBERS DEPT. LINK 
OFFICER 
 

O&S LEAD 
OFFICER 

SCOPING PROGRESS 
OF REVIEW 

REPORT / 
SUBMISSION 

EXECUTIVE 
RESPONSE 

CURRENT 
STATUS 

The Draft 
Homelessness 
Strategy 

Mrs Angell 
(Lead), King, 
Mrs McCracken, 
Ms Merry, 
Peacey and 
Mrs Temperton 
 

Simon 
Hendey 

Andrea Carr √ Completed N/A N/A The Working 
Group has 
considered, 
and submitted 
its views on, 
the draft 
Strategy. 
 

 



Unrestricted 

 

 
Health Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
 

WORKING 
GROUP 
 

MEMBERS DEPT. LINK 
OFFICER 

O&S LEAD 
OFFICER 

SCOPING PROGRESS 
OF REVIEW 

REPORT / 
SUBMISSION 
 

EXECUTIVE 
RESPONSE 

CURRENT 
STATUS 

GP Capacity Peacey (Lead), 
Phillips, Mrs 
Mattick,  
Mrs Temperton, 
Tullett and 
Virgo.  
Dr Norman 
 

TBC Richard 
Beaumont 

 At scoping 
stage 

  First meeting 
held on 19 
November 



Unrestricted 

 

Completed Reviews (Since 2010) 
 

Date Completed Title 
 

January 2010 Medium Term Objectives 2010/11 
 

January 2010 Review of the Bracknell Healthspace (publication withheld to 2011) 
 

January 2010 14-19 Years Education Provision 
 

April 2010 Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2009/10 
 

July 2010 Review of Housing and Council Tax Benefits Improvement Plan (Update) 
 

July 2010 The Council’s Response to the Severe Winter Weather 
 

July 2010 Preparedness for Public Health Emergencies 
 

October 2010 Safeguarding Vulnerable Adults in the context of Personalisation 
 

October 2010 Review of Partnership Scrutiny 
 

December 2010 Hospital Car Parking Charges 
 

January 2011 Safeguarding Children and Young People 
 

March 2011 Review of the Bracknell Healthspace (Addendum) 
 

April 2011  Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2010/11 
 

June 2011 Office Accommodation Strategy 
 

June 2011 
 

Plans for Sustaining Economic Prosperity 

July 2011 Review of Highway Maintenance (Interim report) 
 

September 2011 Performance Management Framework 
 

September 2011 Review of the Council’s Medium Term Objectives 
 

October 2011 Plans for Neighbourhood Engagement 
 

October 2011 
 

Regulation of Investigatory Powers 

October 2011 
 

Site Allocations Development Plan Document 

January 2012 Common Assessment Framework 
 

February 2012  Information and Communications Technology Strategy 
 

April 2012 NHS Trusts Quality Accounts 2011/12 (letters submitted to five Trusts) 
 

 



Unrestricted 

 

Date Completed  Title 
 

April 2012 Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2011/12 
 

June 2012 & April 
2015 

Commercial Sponsorship 
 

July 2012 
 

Communications Strategy 

November 2012 
 

Proposed Reductions to Concessionary Fares Support and Public 
Transport Subsidies 
 

November 2012 Modernisation of Older People’s Services 
 

January 2013 Preparations for the Community Infrastructure Levy 
 

February 2013 Substance Misuse 
 

February 2013 ‘Shaping the Future’ of Health Services in East Berkshire 
 

April 2013 Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2012/13 
 

April 2013 NHS Trusts Quality Accounts 2011/12 (letters submitted to three Trusts) 
 

July 2013 School Governance 
 

September 2013 Delegated Authorities 
 

October 2013 Bracknell Forest Bus Strategy 
 

January 2014 Applying the Lessons of the Francis Report to Health Overview and 
Scrutiny 
 

April 2014 Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2013/14 
 

June 2014 Review of School Places 
 

September 2014 Review of Cultural Services 
 

October 2014 The Council’s Role in Regulated Adult Social Care Services 
 

February 2015 Business Rates and Discretionary Relief 
 

April 2015 Substance Misuse Involving Children and Young People 
 

April 2015 Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2014/15 
 

August 2015 Draft Economic Strategy 
 

September 2015 Draft Council Plan 
 

November 2015 
 

Draft Homelessness Strategy 



Unrestricted 

 

Appendix 2 
 
Results of Feedback Questionnaires on Overview and Scrutiny Reports 
 
Note – Departmental Link officers on each major Overview and Scrutiny review are asked to score 
the key aspects of each substantive review on a scale of 0 (Unsatisfactory) to 3 (Excellent). 
 
 

 Average score for 
previous 23 Reviews1 

PLANNING 
Were you given sufficient notice of the review? 
 

2.9 

Were your comments invited on the scope of the review, 
and was the purpose of the review explained to you? 
 

2.9 

CONDUCT OF REVIEW 
Was the review carried out in a professional and 
objective manner with minimum disruption? 
 

2.8 

Was there adequate communication between O&S and 
the department throughout? 
 

2.8 

Did the review get to the heart of the issue? 
 

2.6 

REPORTING 
Did you have an opportunity to comment on the draft 
report? 
 

 
2.8 

Did the report give a clear and fair presentation of the 
facts? 
 

2.6 

Were the recommendations relevant and practical? 
 

2.5 

How useful was this review in terms of improving the 
Council’s performance? 
 

2.5 

Overall average score 
 

2.7 (90%) 

 

                                                
1
 Road Traffic Casualties, Review of the Local Area Agreement, Support for Carers, Street Cleaning, 

Services for Adults with Learning Disabilities, English as an Additional Language in Schools, Children's 
Centres and Extended Services, Waste and Recycling, Older People’s Strategy, Review of Housing and 
Council Tax Benefits Improvement Plan, 14-19 Education, Preparedness for Public Health Emergencies, 
Safeguarding Children, Safeguarding Adults, the Common Assessment Framework, Modernisation of Older 
People’s Services, Community Infrastructure Levy, School Governance, Delegated Authorities, Applying the 
Lessons of the Francis Report, School Places, Cultural Services, and Business Rates. 





Unrestricted 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMISSION 
28 JANUARY 2016 
 

 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMISSION WORK PROGRAMME AND ANNUAL 

REPORT 
Assistant Chief Executive 

 
 
1 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 This report invites members to propose items for inclusion in the Overview and 

Scrutiny (O&S) Commission’s work programme for 2016/17, and to note the process 
for production of the annual report of O&S. 

 
 
2 RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
That the Overview and Scrutiny Commission: 
 

2.1 Proposes items for inclusion in the Commission’s work programme for 2016/17. 
2.2 Notes the process for production of the annual report of O&S for 2015/16. 
 
 
3 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
3.1 To assist Members’ consideration of possible items for inclusion in the Commission’s 

work programme for 2016/17, the previously completed reviews are listed on the 
following page, also the work programme for the current year.  

 
3.2 The Overview and Scrutiny Panels have also been invited to consider, at their 

meetings in January 2016, items for their future work programmes. Officers also have 
items to suggest for members’ consideration. The complete draft programme will form 
part of the annual report of O&S for 2015-16, which will be put forward for O&S 
Commission approval, and consultation with the Corporate Management Team and 
the Executive, in due course.  
 

3.3 The work programme for 2016/17 will form part of the annual report of O&S for 
2015/16, which is due to be presented to Council (as required by the Constitution) on 
27 April 2016. In line with previous practice, passages in the report will be drafted by 
officers and agreed with the respective O&S Chairman. The composite draft report 
will then be circulated to all members of the O&S Commission for their comments, 
and the Chairman of the Commission will be asked to approve the final version, after 
comments have been sought from the Executive and the Corporate Management 
Team.   

 

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED/ ADVICE RECEIVED FROM STATUTORY AND 
OTHER OFFICERS/ EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT/ STRATEGIC RISK 
MANAGEMENT ISSUES / OTHER OFFICERS/ CONSULTATION – Not applicable 

 
Contact for further information 
 
Richard Beaumont – 01344 352283 
e-mail: richard.beaumont@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 

mailto:richard.beaumont@bracknell-forest.gov.uk


Unrestricted 

Previously Completed Overview and Scrutiny Commission Reviews 
 
 

Date Completed Title 
 

May 2004 Review of Community & Voluntary Sector Grants  
 

April 2005 Review of Members’ Information Needs 
 

December 2007 Review of the Council’s Medium Term Objectives 
 

September 2008 Scrutiny of Local Area Agreement 
 

January 2010 Medium Term Objectives 2010/11 
 

October 2010 Review of Partnership Scrutiny 
 

June 2011 Office Accommodation Strategy 

 

June 2011 
 

Plans for Sustaining Economic Prosperity 

September 2011 Performance Management Framework 
 

September 2011 Review of the Council’s Medium Term Objectives 
 

October 2011 Plans for Neighbourhood Engagement 
 

October 2011 
 

Regulation of Investigatory Powers 

February 2012  Information and Communications Technology Strategy 
 

July 2012 Communications Strategy 

 

January 2013 Preparations for the Community Infrastructure Levy 
 

September 2013 Delegated Authorities 
 

January 2015 Review of Business Rates and discretionary relief 
 

August 2015 Draft Economic Strategy 
 

September 2015 Draft Council Plan 
 

 
 
2015-16 Overview and Scrutiny Commission Work Programme 
 

Co-ordination of the work of the Overview and Scrutiny Panels 
 

Routine monitoring of the performance of the Council’s corporate functions 
 

Exercising pre-decision scrutiny by reference to the Executive Forward Plan 
 



Unrestricted 

2016/17 Budget Scrutiny 
 

Crime and Disorder Committee 
 

Other Policy Development 
 
To make an input to the review of the Economic Development Strategy. 
To contribute to the review of the Council’s Medium Term Objectives following local 
government elections in May 2015. 

 

 
 

 
FUTURE PROPOSED REVIEWS 

(Unlikely to be resourced until 2016/17 or later) 
 

1. Learning and Development 
 
To review the Learning and Development functions for officers, with an emphasis on 
E-Learning activities. 
 

2. Procurement – Contract Management 
 
To review the Council’s arrangements for effective management of significant 
contracts. 
 

3. Bracknell Town Centre – Crime and Anti-Social Behaviour 
 
To review the crime and anti-social behaviour issues arising from the growth in the 
night-time economy in the regenerated Bracknell Town centre. 
 

 




	Agenda
	2 Minutes and Matters Arising
	2a Information Requests (19 Nov Meeting)

	6 The Council's Budget Consultation
	06b CS  CW Combined Budget Report
	15 Dec 15  Revenue Budget Report v2
	TO: THE Executive
	Draft Budget Requirement 2016/17

	Annexe A - Commitment Budget
	Commitment budget Dec 2015
	Commitments 

	Description of Commitment Budget Items for 2016_17 v2

	Annexe B - Pressures v1
	CORPORATE SERVICES / CHIEF EXECUTIVE ‘S OFFICE

	Annexe C - Savings v1
	CORPORATE SERVICES / CHIEF EXECUTIVE’s office

	Annexe D - Fees &  Charges 2016-17 combined v2
	CS Fees & Charges 2016-17
	F&C


	00 Capital 16-17  Report FINAL LAURA
	00 Capital Programme 2016-17 Annexes FINAL


	8 Corporate Performance Overview Report (CPOR) 2015/16
	9 Executive Forward Plan
	Executive Forward Plan 28.1.16

	10 Work Programme and Panel Activity Update
	TO: overview and scrutiny COMMISSION
	WORK PROGRAMME AND PANEL ACTIVITY UPDATE REPORT

	11 Overview and Scrutiny Progress Report
	12 Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme and Annual Report



